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ABOUT CR POWER
P ERE T

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”

r “CR Power”) mainly invests, develops, operates and manages
wind farms, photovoltaic power plants, hydro-electric power plants
and other clean and renewable energy projects and coal-fired power
plants in China. Its business also covers distributed energy, power
sales, intelligent energy, coal mining, and other areas.

As at 31 December 2023, CR Power had 47 coal-fired power plants,
183 wind farms, 123 photovoltaic power plants, 28 hydro-electric
power plants and 5 gas-fired power plants in commercial operations.
Its total attributable operational generation capacity was 59,764MW,
with 27.8% of its capacity located in Central China, 26.1% in
Eastern China, 15.8% in Southern China, 13.8% in Northern China,
7.0% in Northwestern China, 4.9% in Southwestern China and
4.6% in Northeastern China. Its attributable operational generation
capacity in wind, hydro-electric and photovoltaic power in aggregate,
amounted to 22,597MW, accounting for approximately 37.8% of its
total attributable operational generation capacity.

CR Power has been selected, for four consecutive years, as a
constituent of the Hang Seng ESG 50 Index and the Hang Seng
Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index (“HSSUSB") since 7
September 2020.

CR Power has always adhered to the concept of sustainable
development and integrated the implementation of environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") responsibilities into the Company'’s
strategies and operations. The Company has been publishing
sustainability reports for 14 consecutive years, constantly reviews its
own performance and shortcomings, and strives to improve its
sustainable development practices, laying a solid foundation for
creating long-term value for the Company. CR Power’s inclusion into
the Hang Seng ESG 50 Index and HSSUSB for four consecutive years
demonstrates its excellence in the three aspects of ESG, and reflects
the recognition on the sustainable development efforts of the
Company by the capital markets.

CR Power has also been selected as a constituent in the Hang Seng
Index since 5 June 2023. The Company’s efforts towards strategic
transformation and innovative development are highly recognised by
the capital markets.
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5-YEAR SUMMARY
LERE

Basic Earnings per share EREHBEANZ

attributable to owners BEASRER (B)

of the Company (HK$) 2.29 1.46 0.44 1.58 137
Turnover (HK$'000) HEE (THT) (IESEELECPP 103,305,097 90,414,166 69,550,811 67,757,632
Profit attributable to owners ZAAFEA A

of the Company (HK$'000)  FE(LFE (FB7T) (GPIEREER 7,042,478 2,137,849 7,582,668 6,590,345
Dividend per share (HK$) BREE (B) 1.415* 0.586 0.295 0.631 0.548
Consolidated statement BHEBRAER

of financial position (F#7m)

(HK$'000)
Non-current assets ERBEE yppEREIS 232,705,334 234,009,787 218,993,912 186,166,238
Current assets RHEE (RPN 48,630,799 53,957,565 40,638,025 29,569,488
Non-current liabilities E|FEI=N CEEGEET 99,951,023 112,245,011 88,616,713 71,358,497
Current liabilities i II=NE Nyl 82,670,777 68,059,460 65,064,932 57,661,216
Equity attributable to owners ~ &ATEA A

of the Company FE(LiER RPENEEN 82,238,602 88,991,769 85,802,768 72,923,979
Total assets nEE Sbicllclll 283,387,646 287,967,352 259,631,937 215,735,726
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY NEYEYPN 7721275 7,934,211 5,036,484 4,907,306
Bank and other borrowings RITRAEMEES LERRIEN 138,319,399 134,747,702 108,219,038 94,136,758
Attributable operational EEERRKAE

generation capacity (MW) (KR)
Central China #FEh 16,635 15,081 13,210 11,988 11,250
Eastern China FEH 15,582 14,135 13,215 12,604 12,582
Southern China £y 9,457 8,158 7,834 7.471 7,097
Northern China 1 8,248 7,709 7,629 6,603 5,363
Northwestern China il 4,159 3,075 1,799 910 820
Southwestern China il 2,942 1,790 1,678 1,487 1,328
Northeastern China 3l 2,741 2,632 2,632 2,302 1,952
Total st 59,764 52,581 47,997 43,365 40,392
Renewable energy EEESS 22,597 17,004 15,441 11,238 9,420

* Including special dividend of HK$0.50. * BE050BTHAKE o

A
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SERVICE AREAS
AR 35 & 33

As at 31 December 2023, the total

operational generation capacity of

the Company was 77,324 MW, and
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SERVICE AREAS
PR %5 & 4

Be

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4 /B8 /BLE POWER PLANTS (Note 1) KiAE (kR) BHkR BRERAE OkR)
Jiangsu Changshu B3 1950.0 100.0% 1,950
TEE Guoneng Taicang EELE 1,000 40.0% 480.0

Huaxin 3 660.0 72.0% 4752
Nanjing Bangiao ARkl 660.0 79.0% 5214
Nanjing Chernical Industry Park HRIE 6700 90.0% 603.0
Nanjing Thermal [y 1,200.0 100.0% 1,000
Tongshan $iLl 2,000.0 59.9% 1,198
Xuzhou i3l 1,280.0 4.7% 546.6
Yangzhou No. 2 aNEZ 12600 45.0% 567.0
Thenjiang o 1,540.0 425% 6545
Changzhou Gas Eilling 103.0 100.0% 103.0
Taizhou Gas 3 808 100.0% 808
Gaoyou Wind EHEE 530 100.0% 530
Huai'an Bojing Wind HRERAE 475 94.0% 447
Huai'an Wind EREE 80.0 100.0% 80.0
Nantong Wind HEAE 655 1000% 655
Pizhou Wind BHEE 875 100.0% 815
Suining Wind EEE 371 100.0% 371
Yancheng Wind ZhEE 40 80.0% 352
Yixing Wind EERE 09 450% 193
Huai'an PV R 101 100.0% 101
Boyunte Distributed PV FEEABISMR 27 100.0% N7
Gaoyou Distributed PV EARRIAR 20 100.0% 20
Gaoyou Distributed PV Phase I EHAEAAR A 04 100.0% 04
Nanjing Distributed PV BRAHAR 32 100.0% 32
Pizhou Distributed PV BMARIAR 06 100.0% 06
Rudong Distributed PV MIED LR 64 100.0% 64
Sugian Distributed PV REAHIAR 252 100.0% 252
Suzhou Distributed PV EMamTER 15 100.0% 15
Taing Distributedt PY REANRIAR 48 100.0% 48
Xuzhou Distributed PV BMARAIR 75 100.0% 75
Yancheng Binhai Distributed PV BRI RN 95 80.0% 76
Yanjiang Rel Distributed PV AN AR 02 49.0% 0.1
Thenjiang Distrbuted PV EIAHARR 21 100.0% 2
Note 1:  Unless stated, photovoltaic (“PV") refers to concentrated photovoltaic projects. MsE1:  BREHETEA > BRICRIEE RSP RIE

Annual Report 2023

F5



SERVICE AREAS
AR 75 & i

ATTRIBUTABLE

PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/BET/BRE POWER PLANTS (Note 1) B (13 KiAE (kR) R S EhEkRAE (OkR)
Henan Dengfeng B 18400 75.0% 1,380.0
Eg Gucheng il 6000 100.0% 6000
Jiaozuo Longyuan EIEER 13200 100.0% 13200

Shouyangshan ERW 1,200.0 85.0% 1,020.0

Anyang Wind 2REE 2500 100.0% 250.0

Biyang Wind WRAE 2389 100.0% 2389

Fenggiu Wind ARAE 700 100.0% 700

Huaxian Wind BERE 2000 100.0% 2000

Huojia Wind EREE 400 100.0% 400

Linying Wind BEAE 100.0 100.0% 100.0

Luohe Wind 21EE 520 100.0% 520

Lushan Wind BUEE 286 100.0% 286

Luyi Wind EERE 100.0 100.0% 1000

Neihuang Wind REEE 450.0 100.0% 450.0

Qirian Wind EHEE 340 100.0% 340

Queshan Wind BURE 604 100.0% 604

Shanggiu Wind HhEE 200 1000% 200

Tanghe Wind ETEE 3630 90.0% 367

Wugang Wind #EE 76.0 100.0% 760

Xinxian Wind HEE 25 100.0% 05

Xinyang Hengming Wind FRRBEE 140 100.0% 140

Xinyang Mingjie Wind ERAZEE 200 100.0% 200

Xinyang Yangming Wind FRFHAE 200 100.0% 200

Xinyang Yaoming Wind [EREREE 300 100.0% 300

Xinye Wind HEEE 9.0 100.0% 9.0

Yanshi Wind Bl 300 100.0% 300

Yexian Wind EREE 60.7 100.0% 60.7

Yuanyang Wind FREZE 300 100.0% 300

Yucheng Wind BHEE 500 100.0% 500

Zhoukou Wind BOAE 200 100.0% 200

Zhumadian Wind HEERE 180 100.0% 180

Dengfeng Distributed PV EHARIAR 48 51.0% 25

Jiaozuo Distributed PY EEDRIAR 08 100.0% 08

Luoyang Distributed PV EEAHAAR 05 100.0% 05

Luoyang Yanshi Distributed PV AEEIAEAAR 60 100.0% 6.0

Qbian Distributed PV REARILR 27 100.0% 27

Queshan Xin Distriouted PV BUAHAR 39 100.0% 39

Xinxiang Economic Development Zone HALBENBIAM 45 100.0% 45

Distributed PV

Xuchang Weidugu Distributed PV FERBERR 35 100.0% 35

Yexian Distriouted PV ERARIAR 15 100.0% 15

Zhengzhou Distributed PV BMARIAR 52 100.0% 52

Zhengzhou Xinmi Distributed PV DHEERHRM 26 100.0% 26

| &l
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 6
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SERVICE AREAS
PR %5 & 4

ATTRIBUTABLE

PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4 /B8 /BLE POWER PLANTS (Note 1) KiAE (kR) BHkR BRERAE OkR)
Guangdong Guangzhou Thermal ENHE 600.0 100.0% 600.0
EEE Liyujiang A BHTA 6000 60.0% 3600
Liyujang B B&Ip 1,300.0 100.0% 1,300

Shenzhen 7 2,0000 100.0% 2,0000

Yunfu ¥ 660.0 80.0% 5280

Zhuhai Gas KERE 1020 100.0% 1020

Fogang Wind GHEAE 500 100.0% 500

Huilai Wind EREE 1335 100.0% 1335

Leizhou Wind ENEE 1000 100.0% 1000

Lianzhou Wind ENRE 3450 100.0% 3450

Lianzhou Wind Phase I EMNEEH 50.0 82.5% 43

Longmen Wind EMEE 817 100.0% 817

Lufeng Wind RERE 66.0 100.0% 66.0

Qingyuan Fogang Wind BEGNER 745 82.0% 611

Qingyuan Qingxin Wind BRENEAE 1100 82.0% 9.

Shantou Chaonan Wind LESERE 1459 100.0% 145.9

Shantou Haojiang Wind UERIRE 180 100.0% 18.0

Shantou Wind LEEE 293 100.0% 293

Xinfeng Wind HERE 50,0 100.0% 50,0

Xinyi Wind FEEE 390 100.0% 390

Xuwen Wind HEEE 100.0 100.0% 1000

Yangjiang Wind BIRE 89.8 100.0% 89.8

Yangjiang Wind Phase I BIEE_H 455 100.0% 455

Yingde PV EERR 280 100.0% 280

Qingyuan PV BEAR 406 100.0% 406

Qingyuan PV Phase | BENAH 604 90.0% 544

Guangzhou Distributed PV BMNARARR 79 100.0% 79

Huizhou Distributed PV EAHARR 149 100.0% 149

Lianjiang Distributed PV RIARIAR 25 100.0% 25

Shenzhen Distributed PV RAHASR 65 100.0% 65

Shuntuo Qingyuan Distributed PV [BRBEA AR 24 70.0% 17

Yangjiang Yangchun Distributed PV BIBEA BN 136 100.0% 136

Yunfu Yun'an Distributed PV EFERARAAN 83 100.0% 83

Zhaoging Distributed PV ZEAHIN 211 100.0% 211

Thuhai Distributed PV FEARIAR K 100.0% 1.1

7 Annual Report 2023
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SERVICE AREAS
AR 75 & i

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/BET/BRE POWER PLANTS (Note 1) RHEAE (KR B BaREAS OLR)
Hubei Hubel i 6000 100.0% 6000
) Hubei Phase I oy 2,0000 100.0% 2,0000
Xiantao flik 13200 100.0% 13200
Yichang B8 7000 100.0% 7000
Dangyang Wind EREE 375 100.0% 375
Guangshui Wind EKAE 1823 100.0% 1823
Shayang Wind hEEE 1000 100.0% 1000
Suiian Tianhekou Wind BEXIOES 6348 100.0% 6348
Suizhou Fengming Wind BHEREE 765 100.0% 765
Suizhou Wind BNEE 498 100.0% 4938
Yicheng Lvze Wind BNG2EE 750 85.5% 64.1
Yicheng Wind ENEE 2178 100.0% 2178
Yingcheng Wind ENEE 300.0 100.0% 300.0
Zaoyang Bailu Wind EROEER 400 70.0% 280
Zaoyang Wind ZREE 1813 100.0% 1813
Zhongxiang Wind BEEE 700 1000% 700
Chibi PY HERLR 4309 100.0% 4309
Qianjiang PV B 736 100.0% 736
Xiaochang PV ZERR 1920 100.0% 1920
Xiantao PV kR 3002 100.0% 3002
Chibi Distributed PV FENRIAR 28 100.0% 28
Ezhou Distributed PV B AHAR 266 100.0% 2656
Hong'an Distributed PY IR i 08 51.0% 04
Wuhan Distributed PV HEARARR 14 100.0% 14
Yichang Distributed PV BEEARIAR 10 100.0% 10
Hebel Bohai Xinqu HENE 700.0 100.0% 700.0
b=} Cangzhou i 6600 95.0% 6270
Caofeidian 2 6000 51.0% 3060
Caofeidian Phase | ERg_H 2,0000 51.0% 10200
Tangshan Fengrun EWLEE 700.0 £0.0% 400
Yundong ER 7000 90.0% 6300
Chengde Weichang Wind AEERRE 260 100.0% 260
Fucheng Wind ENEE 500 100.0% 500
Handan Wind BERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Linzhang Wind GEEE 500 1000% 500
Mulan Weichang Wind AEERAE 4500 100.0% 4500
Qinhuangdao Wind REEEE 1000 100.0% 1000
Zhangbei Wind FIEE 505 100.0% 505
Cangzhou Distributed PV BNAEARR 05 1000% 05
Caofeidian Distributed PV ERantiti 113 95,0% 107
Caofeidian Distributed PV Phase I ST paiihay o 33 100.0% 33

Qinghuangdao Shanhaiquanqu Distributed PV Z2 ELI/EHE A%
pIHN 002 100.0% 0.02
Tangshan Fengnanqu Distributed PY BELEHEN BN 27 100.0% 27

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 8
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SERVICE AREAS
PR %5 & 4

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
& /B /HLE POWER PLANTS (Note 1) Zh (M) KiAE (kR) BHkR BRERAE OkR)
Shandong Heze R 1,200.0 90.0% 1,080.0
IS Dezhou Wind ENEE 150.0 100.0% 150.0
Dongying Wind REEE 1000 100.0% 1000
Febian Wind EHEE 1194 100.0% 1194
Haiyang Wind BREE 300.0 100.0% 300.0
Heze Wind TEEE 1000 100.0% 1000
Jiaozhou Wind BNEE 284 100.0% 284
Jining Wind HEEE 495 100.0% 495
Jixian Wind Phase | EREE-H 500 100.0% 500
Jixdian Wind Phase EBAE"H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Juancheng Wind BHEE 9.0 100.0% 9.0
Linyi Wind BNEE 8.0 100.0% 86.0
Linyi Wind Phase | BTEEH 800 100.0% 80.0
Penglai Daliuhang Wind BRANAEE 498 100.0% 4938
Penglai Daxindian Wind BRATERE 498 100.0% 4938
Qingdao Wind EEAE 1340 100.0% 1340
Qingdao Wind Phase | EERE—H 500 100.0% 50,0
Qingdao Wind Phase | ESEE"H 500 100.0% 50,0
Rizhao Wind 486 100.0% 486
Weihai Huancui Wind 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Weihai Wind 500 100.0% 50,0
Walian Wind Phase | IERE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Walian Wind Phase I TERE"H 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Yantai Penglai Wind BREREE 466 95.0% 43
Yantai Wind EEEE 480 95.0% 456
Xiajin Tianchen Wind EEHERAR 500 935% 4638
Yucheng Wind BHAE 1000 100.0% 1000
Yuncheng Guangrun Wind BHEHEE 50.0 1000% 500
Yuncheng Shangyuan Wind i 50.0 100.0% 500
Ziho Wind HEEE 380 100.0% 380
Zoucheng Wind BHEE 40 100.0% 40
Haiyang Distributed! PV BEARIAR 11 100.0% 11
Jining Distributed PV HERRIAR 88 95.0% 84
Juancheng Distributed PY BAHAR 53 100.0% 53
Qingdao Distributed PY EEARIAN 102 100.0% 102
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region ~ Dengkou BN 600.0 75.0% 450.0
REGEN Jingneng Xilingol b et 13200 300% 39.0
Xiingol Hna 13200 700% 940
Mlashan Wind FHERE 2000 65.0% 1300
Bayannur Wind EEZERAE 1000 100.0% 1000
Bayinxile Wind ERAEE 198.0 100.0% 198.0
Hangjingi Wind WiHEEE 1000 100.0% 1000
Manzhouli Wind wlEEE 495 100.0% 495
Manzhouli Wind Phase I NERE_H 495 100.0% 495
Ordos Wind SALHER 2000 65.0% 1300
Taipusiqi Wind AMFEEE 3200 100.0% 3200
Wulanchabu Hongmu Wind BEZRINEE 495 100.0% 495
Xiinhaote Wind HEREE 2000 100.0% 2000
Zhengxiangbaici Wind F20ERE 250 100.0% 250
9 Annual Report 2023

F5



SERVICE AREAS
AR 75 & i

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
t/B&M/BAR POWER PLANTS (Note 1) RHEAE (KR B BaREAS OLR)
Liaoning Jinzhou il 13200 50.0% 660.0
EEL Panjin B 7000 100.0% 7000
Shenhai Thermal TEHE 600.0 54.1% 3246
Beipiao Wind IZRE 2401 100.0% 201
Fuxin Wind ENAE 9.0 100.0% 9.0
Fuxin Wind Phase | EHAEH 975 100.0% 975
Jianping Wind BIAE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Jinzhou Wind #NEE 480 100.0% 40
Linghai Wind EREE 90.0 100.0% 90.0
Faku Distributed PV HEENRARM 18 100.0% 18
Huludao Distributed PV BEENBARR 43 100.0% 43
Jinzhou Distributed PV vk 18 100.0% 18
Jinzhou Distributed PV Phase I BHABAARH 21 50.0% 11
Guangx Autonomous Region Hezhou B 2,000.0 66.0% 13200
FEABRE Beiliu Wind BREE 42 100.0% 42
Cangwu Wind EfEAE 1000 9.7% 9%.7
Cenxi Wind 220E 700 100.0% 700
Hezhou Wind BHAE 80.0 51.0% 408
Nanning Wind HEEE 200 100.0% 200
Rongxian Wind AHEE 1300 100.0% 1300
Tiandong Wind mEEE 100.0 100.0% 1000
Xiangzhou Wind SMEE 500 51.0% 2555
Xiangzhou Wind Phase | SHEE"H 500 1000% 500
Yulin Wind IMEE 84,0 100.0% 840
Hezhou PV Btk 6.0 100.0% 60
Nanning PV BEAR 169.7 100.0% 169.7
Hezhou Distributed PV BNABARR 19 100.0% 190
Guangyi Distributed PV EEARILR 382 100.0% 382
Zhaoping Distributed PV BEARIAR 04 100.0% 04
Thejiang Cangnan =] 20300 55.0% 11165
g Wenzhou Telluride AINRER 660.0 40.0% 2640
Cangnan Offshore Wind EEBLRE 4000 100.0% 4000
Daishan PV Rtk 1014 100.0% 1014
Thejiang Distributed PV MIAHARR 6.1 100.0% 6.1
Guizhou Guizhou Liuzhi Bl 13200 49.0% 646.8
Mg Jianhe Wind SEE 1820 100.0% 1820
Jinping Wind BRAZ 35.1 100.0% 35.1
Kaili Wind HERE 500 100.0% 50.0
Liping Wind RIEE 3531 100.0% 3531
Shanxi Ningwu =iy 700.0 50.0% 350.0
A% Datong Guangling Wind ABEEEE 9.0 100.0% 9.0
Datong Wind ABAE 1980 100.0% 1980
Datong Yanggao Wind AAREAE 1290 100.0% 1290
Guxian Wind hHEE 195 100.0% 195
Linfen Wind BAEE 1144 100.0% 1144
Tayuan Wind AREE 500 100.0% 50,0
Wuzhai Wind RERE 500 100.0% 500
Xinrong Wind REE 60.0 100.0% 60.0
Xinzhou Wind ITHEE 190.0 100.0% 190.0
Thongyang Wind THEE 200 100.0% 200
Datong PV RERR 200 100.0% 200
Lanxian PV R 300 51.0% 153
Xinrong PV E N 500 100.0% 50.0

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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SERVICE AREAS
PR %5 & 4

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
2/BEH/BRE POWER PLANTS (Note 1) RHAE (KR B Ea%iAS OkR)
Hunan Lianyuan B 600.0 100.0% 600.0
HEd Linwy Wind BEREE 68.0 100.0% 680
Loudi Distributect PY BEARIAR 03 90.0% 03
Wugang Distributed PV REABRRK 56 100.0% 56
Zhing Distributed! PY EEARIAR 02 51.0% 01
Anhui Fuyang &5 1,280.0 40.0% 5120
2HE Fuyang Phase I ER"H 13200 40.0% 5280
Dingyuan Wind TEAE 250 100.0% 250
Dingyuan Wind Phase I TERE"H 500 100.0% 50.0
Fengyang Wind EREE 308 100.0% 308
Lingbi Wind BEME 500 100.0% 50,0
Mengcheng Wind XNEE 500 100.0% 500
Mingguang Wind Phase | HrEE—H 500 100.0% 500
Suixi Wing BZRE 1300 100.0% 1300
Chizhou Distrbuted PV HMARIAR 02 100.0% 02
Huaibei Distributed PV ELARIAR 59 100.0% 59
Huaiyuan Distriouted PV BEAHR 30 100.0% 30
Huoshan Distributed PV EUARIAR 180 100.0% 180
Lu'an Distrbuted PY AEARIAR 6.0 100.0% 60
Ningxia Autonomous Region Halyuan Wind BRAZ 7100 100.0% 7100
EERRE Zhongwei City Wind PETEE 500 100.0% 50.0
Haiyuan PV BEEHK 200 100.0% 200
Shizuishan City PV RELmLHR 200 100.0% 200
Yuanguang PV B 500 100.0% 50,0
Zhongningxian PY PEHLK 5304 100.0% 5304
Gansu Changle B 2,0000 34.0% 680.0
HEd Guazhou Wind INEE 4795 100.0% 4795
Huachi Wind U 500 100.0% 500
Huanian Wind BHAZ 500 100.0% 50.0
Jinchang Yongneng Wind SEXERE 1000 100.0% 1000
Subei Wind EIAE 2000 60.0% 1200
Zhangye Lilong Wind FRURERE 4000 100.0% 4000
Guazhou PY MR 500 100.0% 50,0
Hellongjiang Fujin Wind EREE 50,0 100.0% 50,0
Sl Jiamusi Wind EAHEE 45 100.0% 835
Anda PY RERMR 1200 100.0% 1200
Tailai PV R 200 100.0% 200
Anda Distributed PY RENRIAR 07 100.0% 07
Shaanxi Baoji Wind Er 2000 100.0% 2000
REEd Dingbian Wind TEAE 500 100.0% 500
Tongguan Wind EHEE 69.4 100.0% 69.4
Yan'an Wind tzEE 1000 100.0% 100.0
Yanchuan Distributed PV ENAHARR 01 100.0% 01
Yunnan Honghe Hydro kg 2100 70.0% 1470
ZEg Yiliang Wind EREE 800 100.0% 800
Midu PV RESR 200 100.0% 200
Yiliang PV ERAR 1266 100.0% 1266
Zhaotong PV BB 200 100.0% 200
Yiliang Distributed PV ERAHAAR 137 100.0% 137
Yimen Distributed PV AAHAR 46 100.0% 46
Zhenkang Distributed PV BRARIAR 45 100.0% 45
1 1 Annual Report 2023
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SERVICE AREAS
AR 75 & i

ATTRIBUTABLE
PROVINCE/MUNICIPALITY/ INSTALLED EFFECTIVE INSTALLED
AUTONOMOUS REGION CAPACITY (MW) EQUITY INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
4/BET/BRE POWER PLANTS/ASSOCIATES (Note 1) RRAE (KR) AR ERERAE (KE)
Sichuan Yazuihe Hydro BIETLE 260.0 51.0% 1326
mi Yuexi Wind HEEE 106.1 100.0% 106.1

Heishui PV DAk 300 75.0% 05
Panzhihua Distributed PV ERTEARIR 48 100.0% 48
Jiangyi De'an Wind EREE 70.0 100.0% 70.0
IEE Dingnan Wind TEEE 700 100.0% 700
Ganzhou Nankang Wind EEREE 64.0 100.0% 64.0
Ruichang Wind hEEE 36.0 100.0% 360
Xiajiang Wing WIRE 820 100.0% 820
Fuzhou PV LR 156.8 100.0% 156.8
Fujian Changting Wind RITEE 46.0 100.0% 4.0
BRE Longyan Wind keEE 480 100.0% 480
Minging Wind HEEE 300 100.0% 300
Fujan Distributed PV BEAAAMM 143 65.0% 93
Fuging Distributed PV BENBIAR 70 70.0% 49
Fuzhou Distributed PV BNpRIAR 8.1 100.0% 8.1
Shaowu Distributed PV BEARIAR 139 100.0% 139
Putian Distributed PV ERARALR 125 100.0% 125
Beijing Beijing Thermal bt 1500 51.0% 765
plhUi Beijing Huaguang Distributed PV TrERARIAR 22 51.0% 11
Qinghai Dachaidan Wind REERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
EhE Gonghe Wind HEE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Delingha PV BLRRR 200 100.0% 200
Jipin PV BB 100.0 60.0% 60.0
Tibet Autonomous Region Jiangzi PV TR 200 1000% 200
FHARE
Jin Da'an Wind AZEE 1000 100.0% 1000
Eis} Nong'an Wind EZEE 400 100.0% 400
Hainan Haikou Distributed PV BOARIAR 13 100.0% 13
HHeE
Shangh Shanghai Gas LEig 24 100.0% 24
L&
Chongging Chongging Energy (Note 2) EBILR (13H2) 23711 3825% 909.2
EL Chongging Wind EEAE 625 100.0% 625
Tianjin Baodi Wind ZREE 300 100.0% 300
XEm Qingzhifeng Wind EZEEE 515 100.0% 515
Tianjin Distributed PV REAHAAR 04 1000% 04
Hong Kong SAR Huachuang PY R 07 100.0% 07
EERIIE
Note 2:  As at 31 December 2023, Chongging Energy Investment Group Co. Ltd (“Chongging 5% 2 AR =FE+ZRB=+—H> EETRERRE

Energy”), had 5 coal-fired power plants, 1 wind farms, 16 photovoltaic power plants,

26 hydro-electric power plants in commercial operations.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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SHI BAOFENG
FHEIE

Chairman of the Board
EETIE
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In 2023, with the in-depth advancement of the national “double
carbon” policy and the new strategy of energy security, the power
industry has received dual support in terms of capital and resources,
the pace of green and low-carbon transformation has continued to
accelerate, and new energy has entered into a stage of high-quality
and large-scale development.

In response to the new situation, CR Power has closely aligned with
its strategy by focusing on its core responsibilities and main
businesses, firmly establishing its development direction, and steadily
promoting high-quality growth. It has achieved significant progresses
in promoting the development of strategic emerging industries,
energy technology innovation and improvement of operational
quality and efficiency. In the past year, the Company has actively
assumed the social responsibilities of an energy enterprise and made
continuous efforts to become a world-class company. The Company
has achieved historic breakthroughs in various indicators such as
development, operation and financial position, and has been
included in the Hang Seng Index constituent stocks.
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PERFORMANCE RESULTS

In 2023, the Company had attributable operational generation
capacity for renewable energy of 22,597MW, accounting for 37.8%
of the total attributable operational generation capacity, representing
an increase of 5.5 percentage points over the previous year. As at
the end of 2023, the Company had total assets of HK$322.4 billion.

In 2023, the Company reported turnover of HK$103.3 billion for the
full year, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.03%. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$11,003
million, while basic earnings per share was HK$2.29. The core profit
contribution from the Company’s renewable energy business
amounted to HK$9,726 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 12.5%.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, based on the national industrial policies, energy planning
and layout, and industry development trends, the Company focused
on the two major approaches of “enhancing core competitiveness”
and “strengthening core functions” to comprehensively accelerate
industrial layout, adhere to clean and efficient power generation,
promote integrated energy development, and strengthen energy
technology innovation, with an aim to become a world-class clean
energy supplier and integrated energy service provider.
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Clean and efficient energy

In 2023, the Company is committed to achieving high-quality
development and comprehensively constructing clean and efficient
power generation capabilities. We are focusing on planning for
scalable growth and strategically expanding our presence in the new
energy sector, and making good medium and long-term resource
reserves. During the year, we obtained a total of 19,500MW of
renewable energy construction permits, including 9,250MW of
onshore base projects and 4,260MW of offshore wind farms,
achieving a total of 9,473MW of renewable energy capacity
commenced construction, 6,458MW of new grid-connected
renewable generation capacity, and 1,220MW of newly acquired
renewable capacity, all of which were at historically high levels. We
have focused on new energy base projects by investing more
resources in all aspects and emphasized on major sectors. We have
made breakthroughs in large-scale projects such as the transmission
project of “Xinjiang Electricity to Chongging”, the “Desert, Gobi and
Wilderness (70 % 37) ” base and the offshore wind power projects.
We have strived to reinforce new energy smart operation and
maintenance capabilities, strengthen equipment management,
improve operational efficiency, and leverage the value of new energy
smart operation systems to further improve equipment operation
reliability and reduce operation and maintenance costs.

Integrated energy services

In 2023, the Company adhered to strategic orientation in shaping an
integrated energy service brand. We improved the business structure
and developed distributed power supply, electric energy storage,
charging piles, energy saving and carbon reduction services, energy
efficiency management and other businesses. We further developed
a flexible, intelligent and integrated virtual power plant system and a
green, low-carbon, safe and efficient energy-saving service model.
Our integrated energy service core capabilities have gradually
matured. We have assumed great importance in customers’ needs,
focused on our core business, increased our resource investments
and expanded industrial layout. Throughout the year, 1,345.6MWh
of new energy storage projects were put into operation, and 33
integrated energy service projects, including zero-carbon parks and
hydrogen energy, were launched. During the year, the turnover of
integrated energy service business exceeded RMB1.5 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 43%.
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Energy technology innovation

In 2023, the Company continued to promote technology
innovation and explore technological directions with commercial
value and industry influence. We have focused on introducing
advanced technologies for intelligent transformation, and
cooperated with renowned enterprises and research institutions
to strengthen our research in areas such as intelligent power
generation and digitalization of key sectors. During the year, 62
new research projects were approved, and R&D investment
increased by 73.3% year-on-year. We have strived to overcome
development obstacles in the energy industry by conducting
research and comparison in multiple aspects, and carry out more
than 10 major research projects, such as large-span flexible
supports and network-based energy storage. We have
continuously fulfilled the talent needs of scientific and
technological innovation by enhancing the cultivation and
introduction of industry experts and core talents, and
strengthening our R&D capabilities in an orderly manner, which
help making satisfactory achievements in major research projects.

ESG RESPONSIBILITY

The Company attaches great importance to ESG and practices the
concept of sustainable development, with an aim to maximize the
comprehensive economic, social and environmental value,
establish a social responsibility management model and enhance
its ESG capability. In 2023, CR Power was granted various ESG
awards, such as a constituent of the “Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Benchmark Index and the Hang Seng ESG 50
Index”, No. 2 in the “Central State-owned Enterprise ESG Pioneer
100 Index” and No. 1 in “China Central Television China ESG
Listed Companies Greater Bay Area Pioneer 50”.
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Eco-friendliness

In 2023, the Company insisted on fulfilling its commitment to
combating climate change and has always developed energy
business with the priority of ecological protection based on site-
specific construction. We strive for coexistence with the environment
and pursue maritime strength by carrying out new energy projects
that are complementary to the ecology in Hubei, Yunnan and other
regions, and exploring new development models that integrate with
the ocean in Guangdong, Zhejiang and other regions. We have
empowered green development and collaborated to create a low-
carbon lifestyle. We have actively participated in green power market
transactions, and planned energy-saving and carbon-reduction
services. We completed 2,772 million kWh of green power
transactions throughout the year and recorded a turnover of
RMB200 million from energy-saving and carbon-reduction service
business. We have implemented our corporate mission to commit to
environmental friendliness. We have attached great importance to
investment in environmental protection, and integrate the concept
of green environmental protection into the entire lifecycle of
corporate development. The comprehensive energy consumption per
RMB10,000 of output value has been reduced year by year, down
2.5% year-on-year, demonstrating our initiatives to create an
environmentally friendly enterprise brand.

Social responsibility

In 2023, the Company adhered to corporate social responsibility and
actively participated in public welfare and charity. We have always
stayed true to our original aspirations, and our subsidiaries have
taken the initiative in various public welfare activities across the
country, and have actively provided supports and assistances in
disaster relief, student aid and poverty alleviation. We have
supported rural revitalization and launched the “Energy Action”
charity brand. The first batch of “Energy Classrooms” were
implemented in Hebei, Guangxi, Sichuan and other regions. In
response to new situations such as the “coal and electricity
shortage”, we have commenced the construction of large-capacity
and high-parameter clean and efficient thermal power plants,
including Pugi Phase Ill and Haifeng Phase Il. During critical periods,
we have effectively met the electricity needs of local residents,
enterprises and institutions in key areas, and continuously
contributed to the safe and stable operation of the economy and
society.
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Corporate governance

In 2023, the Company continued to enhance reforms and stimulate
organizational vitality. We further consolidated the results of the
reform, strengthened our management as a listed company through
close communication with our investors. We gained recognition from
the capital market, and won the "Outstanding Listed Company
Award”. We optimized the application of the evaluation mechanism,
improved the manager management system and realized the
“normalization” of promotion and demotion to maintain strong
development momentum. We continued to optimize our governance
structure by establishing a transparent, coordinated and effective
corporate governance mechanism. We aimed to better convert our
institutional advantages into governance efficiency, comprehensively
enhance our corporate governance, and adopt a more scientific
governance structure and more effective management model to
promote higher, faster and better development of various businesses.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2024, the new power system in China will continue to experience
rapid development. Under the active and steady advancement of the
planning process to reach carbon peak and carbon neutrality, the
energy consumption structure will continue to evolve. The
establishment of a new energy system will inevitably be a critical
aspect of the energy transformation in China. China has a vast
territory and abundant wind and solar resources. The scale of new
energy installed capacity will maintain a rapid upward trend in the
coming period, which will further stimulate market vitality and drive
a steady growth of the industry.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 18
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In 2024, CR Power will seize the development opportunity of China’s
new energy system construction, accelerate the transformation of
green and low-carbon development, and continue to increase its
investments in strategic emerging industries around the three major
business segments of clean and efficient power generation,
integrated energy services and energy technology innovation, so as
to strengthen its business value creation capabilities and ensure safe
and stable supply of energy. In the second half of the “14th Five-
Year Plan”, we will always aim to become a world-class clean energy
enterprise, achieve continuous breakthroughs in various businesses,
and realize a continuous increase in market share and a steady
improvement in industry position in the ongoing energy transition in
China.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) (the
“Board”), | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
employees, shareholders, investors and all sectors of society for their
long-term trust and support for CR Power. CR Power will continue to
maximize value for shareholders, serve as enablers for green
development in the new era, commit to following the path of green
development and work together to create a low-carbon future and
better quality of life for all.

Shi Baofeng
Chairman of the Board
20 March 2024
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
BEE@N

MR. SHI BAOFENG
SPHEIERE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Shi Baofeng, aged 52, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board in April 2023 and an Executive Director in
September 2021. Mr. Shi served as the President of the
Company from September 2021 to April 2023. Mr. Shi served
as an executive director, the president and the chairman of
corporate governance committee of China Resources Gas
Group Limited (“CR Gas"”) from November 2018 to
September 2021. Mr. Shi joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH") in 2006 and China Resources Gas
(Holdings) Limited (“CR Gas Holdings"”) in March 2007. He
consecutively served as the assistant general manager and
vice president of CR Gas Holdings and responsible for the
operation of South China Region.

Mr. Shi holds a Master of Business Administration (“MBA")
Degree from Southwest Jiaotong University in China and a
Master’s Degree from China Europe International Business
School. He also holds a Senior Engineer qualification.
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Mr. Zhang Junzheng, aged 59, was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board in
December 2019. He served as a director of the Health Safety
and Environment Department of CRH from June 2014 to
December 2019, and deputy director from June 2009 to
June 2014 of the office of the board of CRH respectively. Mr.
Zhang joined the Company in 1995, had worked as Deputy
Chief Engineer and Deputy General Manager for China
Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd., and served as
General Manager of the Assets Operations Department of
the Company from November 2004 to June 2009.

Mr. Zhang is qualified as a Senior Engineer, and holds an
MBA Degree from China Europe International Business
School.
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MR. SONG KUI
RERE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EBHENEZERBRAT

Mr. Song Kui, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board in May 2023.
Mr. Song has been serving as the chairman of board of
Chongging Energy Investment Group Company Limited since
December 2020, and he was the deputy general manager of
Chongging Energy Investment Group Company Limited from
December 2019 to December 2020. Mr. Song held various
positions in local government departments of Chongging
Municipality from June 1998 to December 2019, including a
member of the standing committee, the deputy secretary of
the party leadership group and the deputy district chief of the
People’s Government of Ba'nan District, Chongqing
Municipality, the deputy county governor and a member of
the standing committee of the poviat council of Tongnan
County, Chongging Municipality, the deputy county governor
of Dazu County, Chongging Municipality, and a member of
the standing committee of the poviat council of Rongchang
County, Chongging Municipality, etc.

Mr. Song holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Engineering in mining
engineering from the Department of Mining Engineering of
Chengdu Institute of Geology (currently known as Chengdu
University of Technology).
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Mr. Zhou Bo, aged 55, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in October 2023. He currently
serves as a designated external director of business units of
CRH, and he works in China Resources Corporate Service
(Shenzhen) Limited. He has been appointed as a non-
executive director of China Resources Building Materials
Technology Holdings Limited (“CR Bldg Mat Tec”) since
September 2023 and a non-executive director of China
Resources Enterprise Limited since August 2023. Mr. Zhou
joined CRH in September 1989. He was the deputy general
manager of China Resources Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited from September 2019 to
August 2023, and he took various managerial roles in China
Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited from October
2002 to September 2019, including the deputy general
manager, financial controller and the general manager of
finance department, etc. Mr. Zhou worked for the finance
department of China Resources National Corporation
(currently known as China Resources Company Limited) from
MR. ZHOU BO September 1989 to February 2000, and the finance

Bk E department of China Nanyang Import and Export

Corporation from February 2000 to October 2002.

Mr. Zhou studied in Shanghai Institute of Foreign Trade,
China (currently known as the Shanghai University of
International Business and Economics, China) with finance
and accounting profession and in University of South
Australia, Australia with an MBA Degree. He has over 30
years of experience in finance and corporate management.
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MR. ZHANG YINGZHONG
SRAERRE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Zhang Yingzhong, aged 57, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in October 2023. He
currently serves as a designated external director of business
units of CRH and an external director of China Resources
Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited. He
works in China Resources Corporate Service (Shenzhen)
Limited and has also been appointed as a director of China
Resources Chemical Innovative Materials Company Limited
since January 2023. Mr. Zhang joined CRH in October 1999
and he took various roles successively, including the vice
president and chief safety and environmental protection
officer, the director of operations department and the deputy
director of operations department of China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited (currently known as China
Resources Building Materials Technology Holdings Limited)
and the general manager of China Resources Cement
(Pingnan) Company Limited, the deputy general manager of
China Resources Cement (Guangdong) Company Limited, the
general manager of China Resources Cement (Guiping)
Limited, and the general manager of China Resources
Cement (Fengkai) Company Limited, etc.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan University of Technology
in China majoring in silicate technology.
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Mr. Chen Guoyong, aged 62, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2021. He
currently serves as a designated external director of the
business unit of CRH and he works in China Resources
Corporate Service (Shenzhen) Limited. Mr. Chen was
appointed as the vice president of CR Gas in March 2012. He
serves as regional chief representative (Henan Region) of CRH
and regional general manager (Central and Western China
Region) of CR Gas since April 2015, responsible for operation
and management of Central and Western China Region. He
concurrently serves as the chairman and general manager of
Zhengzhou China Resources Gas Company Limited. He is
currently a member of the Gas Transmission and Distribution
Professional Committee of the China Civil Engineering
Society. He worked for Jining Gas Company from 1984 to
2007 and served as an assistant engineer of the design
institute, the director of the dispatch office and an engineer,
the deputy general manager and the general manager. He
served as the general manager of Jining China Resources Gas

MR. CHEN GUOYONG Company Limited from 2007 to 2011, and a regional general
PREE o manager (Jinan Area) of CR Gas and the general manager of
Jining China Resources Gas Company Limited from 2011 to

2015.
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EFREREER

MS. ELSIE LEUNG OI-SIE
REHLT

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Ms. Elsie Leung Qi-sie, aged 85, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April
2010. Ms. Leung was the first Secretary for Justice of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR"), as well
as a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from
July 1997 to October 2005. Ms. Leung was admitted as a
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1968. She
was a partner of P. H Sin & Co., a Hong Kong law firm, which
amalgamated with the law firm lu, Lai & Li Solicitors &
Notaries in 1993; she was a senior partner with lu, Lai & Li
Solicitors & Notaries from 1993 to 1997. At the end of 2006,
she resumed to practice at lu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries.
Ms. Leung was an independent non-executive director on the
board of United Company RUSAL, international public joint-
stock company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from
30 November 2009 to 24 June 2021 and China Life Insurance
Company Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange, New
York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (“SSE”) from 20 July 2016 to 18 July 2022
respectively. Ms. Leung also served as an independent non-
executive director on the board of Petro China Company
Limited listed on the Stock Exchange, NYSE and SSE from
June 2017 to June 2023.

Ms. Leung served as a member of several government boards
and committees, including the Independent Police Complaints
Council, Equal Opportunities Commission, Social Welfare
Advisory Committee and Inland Revenue Board of Review.
Ms. Leung was appointed as a delegate of the People’s
Congress of Guangdong Province in 1989. In 1993, she was
appointed as a delegate of the 8th National People’s
Congress and in 1994 as well as a Hong Kong Affairs Advisor.
Ms. Leung had been the Deputy Director of the Hong Kong
Basic Law Committee of the Standing Committee of the
National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China
between 2006 and 2018.

Apart from being a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong, Ms. Leung was qualified as a solicitor in England and
Wales and obtained a Master of Law degree from the
University of Hong Kong in 1998.

Ms. Leung was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1982 and
was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2002.
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EFREREER

DR. RAYMOND CH’IEN KUO FUNG
BREELT

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung, aged 72, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April
2010. Dr. Ch'ien is a partner of Asia Pacific Capital (HK)
Limited, and the chairman of the College Council and School
Management Committee of St Stephen’s College, Hong Kong.

Dr. Ch'ien served as an independent non-executive director
of Swiss Re Limited and Swiss Re Asia Pte. Ltd. until 13 April
2022. Dr. Ch'ien was the chairman and an independent non-
executive director of Hang Seng Bank Limited from August
2007 to May 2021, an independent non-executive director of
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
from November 1997 to November 2020 and an non-
executive chairman of MTR Corporation Limited from July
2003 to December 2015.

In public service, Dr. Ch'ien is an honorary president and past
chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. From
January 2013 to March 2018, Dr. Ch'ien was a member of the
Economic Development Commission of the Government of the
Hong Kong SAR. From January 2008 to January 2018, Dr.
Ch'ien was a member of the Standing Committee of the
Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. From 1992 to 1997, Dr. Ch'ien was
a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong, then under
British administration. He was appointed a member of the
Executive Council of the HKSAR on 1 July 1997 and served
until June 2002. Dr. Ch'ien was a Hong Kong member of the
APEC Business Advisory Council from 2004 to 2009. He was
the chairman of the Hong Kong/European Union Business
Cooperation Committee from 2005 to January 2012. Dr.
Ch'ien was previous chairman of the Advisory Committee on
Corruption of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption, the Hong Kong/Japan Business Cooperation
Committee, the Industry and Technology Development Council
and the Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation
Ltd.

Dr. Ch'ien received a Doctoral Degree in Economics from the
University of Pennsylvania in 1978 and was a Trustee of the
University from 2006 to 2016. Dr. Ch'ien was appointed a
Justice of the Peace in 1993 and a Commander in the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1994. In 1999, he was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star Medal. In August 2008, Dr.
Ch’ien was conferred the honour of Chevalier de I'Ordre du
Meérite Agricole of France.
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EFERERERE

Mr. JACK SO CHAK KWONG
BENSLE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, aged 79, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2014. He is currently the chairman of Airport Authority Hong
Kong, an independent non-executive director of AIA Group
Limited and a member of the Chief Executive’s Council of
Advisers of the HKSAR Government. Mr. So was previously an
independent senior advisor to Credit Suisse, Greater China
from January 2008 to October 2022, a non-official member
of the Chief Executive’s Council of Advisers on Innovation
and Strategic Development from March 2018 to June 2022
and chairman of the Consultative Committee on Economic
and Trade Co-operation between Hong Kong and Mainland
China from October 2013 to December 2015. Mr. So was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star and the Grand Bauhinia
Medal by the HKSAR Government in 2011 and 2017,
respectively. Mr. So served as an executive director of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council from 1985 to 1992
and served as its chairman from 2007 to 2015. He was an
independent non-executive director of Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited from 2002 to 2015, a non-executive director of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited from
2000 to 2007, the chairman of the Hong Kong Film
Development Council from 2007 to 2013 and a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference from 2008 to 2018.
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Mr. Yang Yuchuan, aged 60, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2021. Mr. Yang is the guest professor of Hong
Kong Financial Services Institute, the chief executive and
chief macro economist of Prime China Securities Limited,
responsible for the day-to-day management and operation of
the company. He has extensive experience in the financial
industry. Mr. Yang was an executive director of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, a non-executive director of TTG Fintech
Limited, a company listed on The Australian Securities
Exchange, an executive director of Partners Capital Securities
Limited and the chief executive of Sunshine Asset
Management (HK) Limited. Mr. Yang was an independent
non-executive director of Huiyin Holdings Group Limited
from December 2018 to June 2020. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of CR Gas in August

2018.
MR. YANG YUCHUAN Mr. Yang holds a Bachelor’s Degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong
BENKZE University in China and an MBA Degree from the University

of San Francisco in the United States of America.
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EFERERERE

MR. ZHOU JIANBO
BRI E

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Zhou Jianbo, aged 50, is the Senior Vice President of the
Company. From January to October 2018, he served as the
senior deputy director of the Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Department of CRH and the senior deputy
general manager of China Resources Vanguard Company
Limited (“CR Vanguard”). From August 2015 to January
2018, he was the deputy director of the Discipline Inspection
and Supervision Department of CRH and also the deputy
general manager of CR Vanguard. Mr. Zhou holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Law from Jiangnan University in China.
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Mr. Hou Yongjie, aged 55, is a Vice President and the
General Manager of the South China Region of the
Company. From May 2016 to August 2017, he was the
General Manager of the Central and Western Region of the
Company; from May 2012 to May 2016, he was the General
Manager of the Thermal Power Division of Henan Branch;
from January 2011 to May 2012, he was the Deputy General
Manager of the Henan Branch; from September 2010 to
January 2011, he served as the Deputy General Manager of
Henan Branch and the General Manager of Dengfeng Project
as well as the General Manager of Luore Project; from
September 2009 to September 2010, he served as the
General Manager of Shouyangshan Project and the General
Manager of Luore project; from October 2004 to September
2009, he successively served as the Deputy General Manager
and the General Manager of Luore Project; from April 2003
to October 2004, he successively served as the Assistant
General Manager of the Production Preparation Division of
Dengfeng Project, the General Manager of the Production

MR. HOU YONGIJIE Preparation Division, Head of the Power Generation
xR E Department, and the Assistant Technical Director. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Hou worked at the Gansu Jingyuan

Power Plant.
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EFREREER

MR. LIU XIUSHENG
BFELE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBENERARA

Mr. Liu Xiusheng, aged 45, is a Vice President of the
Company. From November 2016 to June 2020, he served as
an assistant president of CR Gas, during which, he was also a
general manager of the Human Resources Department and a
general manager of the Party and Mass work Department of
CR Gas; from September 2012 to November 2016, he
successively served as a general manager of the Human
Resources Department and a general manager of the Party
and Mass Work Department of CR Gas; from February 2011
to September 2012, he successively served as a general
manager and a senior manager of the Human Resources
Department of CRH; from July 2006 to February 2011, he
was manager in the Beijing division of the Human Resources
Department of CRH. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Harbin Institute of Technology in China.

AFERE O+AHRE > ARBRIERE c —F—RE+—
BEZE"ZTFXA » FEHANRBNIBER > BB FREE
HMRANE RS ARKE B TESPEAKLE ,, _——
FNBEBEZE—XRE+—B > ZEBEEBR :FL?D‘EHQ%BE@
BIANERIPMELIE  REEFF TIEIELE, —_T——
F_RE_E——_FhA> 5‘E1§E$/F3$./\ﬁzﬁ;}_u%¥
BER&KE, —_EEELtBE_E——&_ AFEH
EBRANERIBIERDBKIE o A EIFERREHGTHEEL
FENRBEJ B o

34



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREER

Mr. Gao Li, aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Gao joined China Resources in 2007 and has
successively worked for China Resources Enterprise Limited,
China Resources Beverage (Holdings) Limited, and CRH. Since
June 2012, he has successively been the chief financial officer
of China Resources Beverage (Holdings) Limited and the
deputy general manager of the Finance Department of CRH.
Mr. Gao holds a Bachelor’'s Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Economics from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics in China, and is a Certified Public Accountant and
an International Internal Auditor in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"). Prior to joining China Resources, Mr. Gao
worked in the National Audit Office for many years.
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EFERERERE

MR. BU XIANDOU
hEMKE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Bu Xiandou, aged 57, is a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Bu served as General Manager of the East
China Region of the Company from May 2016 to January
2021. He has successively served in various managerial
positions including the General Manager of Construction
Department of the Company, Construction Director and
Assistant General Manager of China Resources New Energy
Holdings Co., Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of New
Energy Division of the Company from July 2010 to May 2016.
And he successively served as Deputy Director of the
Preparatory Office of Yangzhong Project and Nanjing Bangiao
Project of the Company, General Manager of Nanjing
Chemical Industrial Park Thermal Power Co., Ltd., Deputy
General Manager of China Resources Thermal Power Nanjing
Co., Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of China Resources
Power (Dengfeng) Co., Ltd. from August 2002 to July 2010.
He worked in Xuzhou Power Plant and China Resources
Power (Xuzhou) Co., Ltd. from August 1989 to August 2002.
Mr. Bu holds a Master’s Degree in Engineering from
Southeast University in China and is a Senior Engineer.
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Mr. Xi Yong, aged 49, is a Vice President and General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Xi has served as General
Manager of East China Region of the Company since January
2021. From April 2016 to January 2021, he served as General
Manager of Southeast China Region of the Company. He has
successively served in various managerial positions including
the Vice President of the Company, Deputy General Manager
of Thermal Power Division of the Company and Chairman of
China Resources Power Henan Shouyangshan Co., Ltd.,
Deputy General Manager and Human Resources Director of
Coal Division of the Company, and Deputy General Manager
of New Energy Division of the Company from March 2012 to
April 2016. He worked in CR Gas from May 2003 to March
2012 and successively served as general manager of CR Gas
Group (Wuhan) Limited and general manager of CR Gas
Wuhan Region. Mr. Xi holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from
the Renmin University of China.
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EFREREER

MR. WANG BO
ER&EE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Wang Bo, aged 49, is a Vice President of the Company
and the General Manager of Chongging Energy Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (“Chongging Energy”). He has served as the
General Manager of Chongging Energy from April 2023;
General Manager for the CR Power Northern Region from
January 2021 to June 2023; General Manager of North China
Region of the Company from March 2019 to January 2021;
General Manager of Human Resources Department of the
Company from May 2016 to March 2019; successively served
as General Manager of Hebei Branch of Thermal Power
Division and General Manager of Operation Department of
Thermal Power Division of the Company from August 2013
to May 2016; General Manager of China Resources Thermal
Power (Cangzhou) Co., Ltd. from November 2010 to August
2013; successively served as Assistant General Manager and
Deputy General Manager of Asset Operation Department of
the Company, Deputy General Manager of Zhejiang Wenzhou
Telluride Power Generation Co., Ltd., and Assistant General
manager and Deputy General Manager of Construction
Department of the Company from June 2007 to November
2010; successively worked in China Resources Power
(Xuzhou) Co., Ltd. and SDIC Qujing Power Generation Co.
Ltd. from July 1995 to June 2007. Mr. Wang holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from Xi'an Jiaotong
University in China.
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Mr. Ma Li, aged 51, is a Vice President and General Manager
of North China Region of the Company. He has served as the
General Manager of North China Region of the Company
from January 2021; General Manager of South China Region
of the Company from May 2016 to January 2021;
successively served as General Manager of Office of the
Board of Directors, Administrative Director of the Company,
and General Manager of South China Branch of Thermal
Power Division of the Company from August 2013 to May
2016; successively served as Deputy General Manager and
General Manager of China Resources Power (Dengfeng) Co.,
Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of Henan Branch of
Thermal Power Division of the Company from September
2010 to August 2013; successively served as Assistant
General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Henan
China Resources Power (Shouyangshan) Co. Ltd. from March
2004 to September 2010. Before joining the Company, Mr.
Ma worked at Datang Lueyang Power Plant in Shaanxi.
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EFREREER

MR. LIN NIANSHENG
MEELE

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Mr. Lin Niansheng, aged 59, is a Vice President and General
Manager of Central China Region of the Company. He has
served as the General Manager of Central China Region of
the Company since May 2016. During this period, he also
served as General Manager of Jiangsu Region of the
Company from May 2020 to January 2021; General Manager
of China Resources Power (Yichang) Co., Ltd. from July 2011
to May 2016; Successively served as Deputy Representative
and Chief Representative of China Resources Power Beijing
Representative Office, Deputy General Manager of
Development Department of the Company, Chief
Representative of China Resources Power Hubei
Representative Office, and Development Director of combined
heat and power generation project of the Company from
October 2007 to July 2011; General Manager of the
Administrative and Human Resources Department of China
Resources Power (Hubei) Co., Ltd. from August 2004 to
October 2007. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lin worked
at Central China Normal University. Mr. Lin holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Education from Central China Normal University.
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Mr. Fan Zhe, aged 47, is a Vice President of the Company.
He served as the general manager of Legal Affairs
Department/Legal Compliance Department of CR Gas from
April 2015 to July 2022; the assistant general manager and
deputy general manager of Legal Affairs Department of CR
Gas from August 2011 to April 2015; the assistant general
manager of Investment and Development Department of CR
(S / Gas from January 2010 to August 2011. Prior to joining
China Resources, Mr. Fan was engaged in audit, financial
management, investment development and legal compliance
at Towngas Investment Co., Ltd. Mr. Fan graduated from
Nanjing Audit University majoring in auditing. He holds a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics, a Chinese CPA non-
practicing membership certificate, a Legal Professional
Qualification Certificate and a Corporate Lawyer
Qualification Certificate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the Annual
Report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in investing, developing, operating
and managing power plants and coal mine projects in China. The
activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set out
in Notes 54, 23 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated statement of profit or loss is set out on page 149
which shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2023. A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
on pages 67 to 97 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) is set out in the sections
headed “5-Year Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” from pages 2 to 3, pages
13 to 19, and pages 67 to 97 respectively of this Annual Report and
other sections of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but
not limited to, operational risks, policy risks, industry risks, market
risks, business risks and financial risks.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 13 to 19 of
this Annual Report for a discussion on the operational, policy, market
and business challenges and uncertainties facing by the Group;
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” on pages 67 to 97 of this
Annual Report for a discussion on foreign exchange rate risk facing
the Group; and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on
pages 159 to 354 of this Annual Report for details of the financial
risks facing by the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout its
business operations. As a responsible corporation, and in order to
stay in line with national energy and environmental protection
strategies, the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental
impacts by committing to resources conservation, promoting clean
and renewable energy projects development and strengthening
emission control.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 13 to 19 of
this Annual Report for a discussion on the Group’s development in
promoting ESG.

More details regarding the Group’s performance by reference to
environmental and social-related key performance indicators and
policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Company, have been
provided in the Sustainable Development Report 2023 which has
been published by the Company pursuant to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix C2
(formerly Appendix 27) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and is available
on the Company’s website at www.cr-power.com and the HKEx
website at www.hkexnews.hk on the same publication date of this
Annual Report.

The Sustainable Development Report 2023 can be accessed by
clicking “Sustainability” on the home page of the Company’s
website, then selecting “Sustainable Development Report 2023”
under “Sustainable Development Report” and viewing it using
Adobe® Reader®; or browsing through the HKEx website. If there is
difficulty in gaining access to the Sustainable Development Report
2023 posted on the Company’s website, a printed version(s) of the
said report may be sent upon receipt of the shareholder’s request by
the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. Updates on
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and operation units from time to time. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has complied in all
material respects with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group, including but not
limited to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing
Rules.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and their
contribution and support are valued at all times. The Group places
importance on the career development of its employees and
organised trainings for employees to facilitate their career
development. In order to promote work-life balance for employees,
the Group created a competitive, yet united and pleasant working
environment, encouraging individuals to strive for improvement and
enhance personal value to strengthen their sense of belonging.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Company believes that maintaining good relationships with
stakeholders, including customers and suppliers, is one of the key
factors contributing to the success of the Group. The Group has
established stable long-term relationship with customers and
suppliers, and has been proactively maintaining good cooperative
relationships with customers and suppliers to strengthen
communication with them.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.328 per share (2022: HK$0.21 per
share) of the Company (“Share”) with currency option for electing
Renminbi (“RMB") was paid on 3 November 2023.

In addition, a special dividend of HK$0.50 per Share with currency
option for electing RMB was also paid on 23 January 2024.

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.587 per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 12 June 2024, subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM") to be held on Wednesday, 5 June 2024. The
proposed dividend will be paid on Monday, 22 July 2024 following
approval at the AGM.

The final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") to each
shareholder. However, shareholders may elect to receive the final
dividend in RMB in cash.

The Company is not aware of any arrangement under which a
shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 16 to
the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movement in the Shares issued by the Company during
the year are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
HK$25,183,277,000 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
HK$27,561,957,000). Movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 154 to 155 of this Annual
Report and Note 55 to the financial statements, respectively.
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BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$159,191,805,000 (2022: HK$131,705,574,000).
Particulars of borrowings are set out in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

BONDS AND NOTES ISSUED

The Group issued corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates with
face value amounting to RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,103,480,000) (2022: RMB3,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,358,440,000)) as at 31 December 2023, details of which are
set out in Note 39 to the financial statements. Such corporate bonds
and notes with fixed rates were issued in order to meet the Group's
general funding requirement, including the financing of capital
expenditure and refinancing of debts.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB49.89 million (2022: RMB55.00 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year of 2023 and as at
20 March 2024 are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Baofeng
Mr. Zhang Junzheng
Mr. Song Kui

(Chairman)
(Vice Chairman)
(Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zhou Bo
Mr. Zhang Yingzhong
Mr. Chen Guoyong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie

Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong

Mr. Yang Yuchuan

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors had a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Pursuant to Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Association (the
“Articles”), Mr. Zhou Bo and Mr. Zhang Yingzhong, being the
directors appointed after the last annual general meeting of the
Company, shall retire from office at the AGM and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Pursuant to Article 120 of the
Articles, every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Ms. Elsie
Leung Oi-sie shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM and
being eligible, offer herself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors in regard to their independence
to the Company. The Company considers that all independent Non-
executive Directors continued to demonstrate strong independence
in judgement and were free from any business or other relationship
which could interfere with their ability to discharge their duties
effectively. Accordingly, each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is independent to the Company.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung and
Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong have served more than 9 years.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 20 to 31 of this Annual Report.

The Executive Directors are entitled to salaries and discretionary
bonuses determined by the Board at its absolute discretion regarding
to the Group’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.
The Independent Non-executive Directors are entitled to Director’s
fees authorised by shareholders and approved by the Board (with
recommendation from Remuneration Committee) with reference to
the prevailing market conditions. Details of Directors’ remuneration
are provided under Note 12 in financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of persons who have served on the board of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to 20 March
2024 are available on the Company’s website at www.cr-power.com.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group regards the President, Senior Vice Presidents, Chief
Financial Officer and Vice Presidents of the Company as members of
the senior management team.

The emoluments of the members of the senior management team

who are not Executive Directors, by band, are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 132 of this Annual Report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director shall be indemnified out of
the funds of the Company against all liability incurred by him or her
as such Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgement is given in his or her favour, or in which
he or she is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and operation of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors had
any interest in a business, apart from the business of the Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business, which would require disclosure under rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein:
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E5ERE
(A) The Company (A) KRF)
Details of Shares held by the Directors as at 31 December 2023 A TE T =ZF+"_H=+—H'&
are as follows: EFAENRMHEBEAOT
Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued shares of
ordinary the Company
shares held Long/short EARAE
Name of Director Capacity FEB®T position BEITRAE
EENR 5145 BiEREE Ba KA Bt
Zhang Junzheng Beneficial Owner 700,000 Long 0.015%
SREBIE BHEEBA Fa
Interest of Spouse 96,000 Long 0.002%
Ao B m 5=
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung Interest of Spouse 4,000 Long Below 0.001%
BRE BBt e E500.001%
Jack So Chak Kwong (Note) Interest of Controlled 400,000 Long 0.008%
Corporation
gr= (fsh) R EE D 5=}
Note: Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, through a 100% controlled entity holds these 400,000 MI5E © BRZEA S EFEB—E100% ZEFBREEZ
Shares. £ 400,000 PR RE1H ©
(B) CR Gas (B) EHMR
CR Gas is an associated corporation of the Company (as EBRRTL AR BINERER (R
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Gas held by the BENAERAIFFARE) cEFN
Director(s) as at 31 December 2023 are as follows: T —FE+_HA=+—HEFEEEH

MR EFIBUNT -

Percentage

Number of of the

issued issued shares

ordinary of CR Gas

shares held Long/short HEBIRR

Name of Director Capacity RHEB%T position BRITRE

EEHR 515 BiEREE wE %E B

Zhang Junzheng Beneficial Owner 10,000 Long Below 0.001%

SREE BmEA A Fa  1&520.001%
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(C) China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“CR
Pharmaceutical”)

CR Pharmaceutical is an associated corporation of the Company
(as defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR
Pharmaceutical held by the Director(s) as at 31 December 2023
are as follows:

Name of Director

EENZ

Capacity
S1n

EHBRRERBRAR (IFEHE
)

EHBETLANTWEREZE (R
BEMPERAIPAIRE) cEENRZ
E_FE+_A=+—HEBEH
BERMEEBRNOT

(o)

Percentage

of the

Number of issued shares

issued of CR

ordinary Pharmaceutical

shares held Long/short CEEE

FBEBET position BEITRA

kA Ha wE B

Shi Baofeng Beneficial Owner 650,000 Long 0.010%
SEIE EmEAA S

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

During the year, neither had, the Company’s holding company nor
their subsidiaries entered into any arrangement to enable the
Directors or the senior management of the Company or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities of, the Company or any associated corporation
and none of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
or their spouse and children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries, parent company or fellow
subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director or his or her
connected entities had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or during the year.

In addition, there was no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and its controlling shareholder (or
any of its subsidiaries) and there was no contract of significance for
the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
its controlling shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) subsisting during
the year.
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SHARE SCHEME

During the year under review, the Company did not adopt any share
scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” above) who had
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company as required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
recorded referred to therein:
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Approximate percentage
of the issued shares

of the Company as at
Number of 31 December 2023
issued ordinary RZ%Z=

Name of substantial shares held Long/short +ZA=1+-H

shareholders Capacity RAENBET position AR EETRG

TERREME 51 LERHE 8/ %8 Rl

CRH (Power) Limited* 1 Beneficial owner 3,027,003,337 Long 62.93%
EHEE (BN ERAE BREAA #e

CRH 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
B K-SR iBNER sy}

CRC Bluesky Limited 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
R-RRDEENER #e

China Resources Inc. ("CRC") 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
EBRNERAE (EBRL) R—xZELENER #e

China Resources Company Limited 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%

("CRCL")

PEERERAR (MMEEE) R—RZ R iENER e

Note 1:CRH (Power) Limited is a 100% subsidiary of CRH, which is a 100% subsidiary of CRC
Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to 100% by CRC, which is in turn held as to
100% by CRCL. Each of CRH, CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky Limited is deemed by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in 3,027,003,337 Shares as those of CRH
(Power) Limited. CRH, through Commotra Company Limited (i.e. wholly-owned subsidiary),
is interested in 902,000 Shares of the Company. Accordingly, each of CRCL, CRC and CRC
Bluesky Limited is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in the
902,000 Shares as those of CRH.
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MAJOR TRANSACTION

On 18 June 2023, the Company published an announcement in
relation to the proposed spin-off and separate listing of China
Resources New Energy Group Company Limited (ZEE#AETRIZIRE
R~ &) (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
("Spinco”) on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, which, if materializes,
constitutes a deemed disposal of the Company’s equity interest in
Spinco under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules and a major transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The proposed
spin-off was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting convened on 7 July 2023. For more
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22
March 2023, 18 June 2023 and 7 July 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 21 June 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted connected transactions for the
Group under the Listing Rules. The connected transactions which are
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are summarised below.

CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 24
December 2021, on even date, the Company entered into the CR
Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021 with China Resources
Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank"”) for a term from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024, whereby the relevant annual caps were
set in accordance with the Group's liquidity, business needs and the
expected level of services to be provided by CR Bank. Under the CR
Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021, CR Bank will provide
deposit services bearing the same interest and on the same terms
and conditions as would apply to a similar deposit made by any other
customer of the bank, which rates was determined with reference to
the rates published by the People’s Bank of China. CR Bank also
provides commercial banking services, including credit services (such
as commercial loans, bill acceptance and discount services and
account receivable factoring services), settlement services, agency
services (such as entrustment loan, insurance and custodian services),
cash management services, financial advisory services, and other
financial services as agreed by the parties. These services will be
provided on normal commercial terms and such service fees shall not
be higher than the net discounted fees offered to other preferred
customers of CR Bank.

As at the date of such agreement, CRC, being a controlling
shareholder of the Company, holds approximately 70.28% equity
interest of CR Bank, CR Bank is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The maximum daily deposit cap, inclusive of interest payable, and
the maximum daily cap of financial services and products to be
provided by CR Bank to the Group during the term of the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2021 are RMB2 billion (equivalent
to HK$2.33 billion) and RMB1 billion (equivalent to HK$1.17 billion)
respectively. For the period between 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023, the maximum daily deposit amount was
approximately RMB1,305.0 million (equivalent to HK$1,451.4
million), and CR Bank did not provide any commercial loans. Details
of the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2021.

Integrated Energy Projects Framework Agreement

On 28 June 2022, the Company and CRH entered into a framework
agreement (the “Integrated Energy Projects Framework Agreement”)
in relation to the cooperation on Integrated Energy Projects for a
term from 28 June 2022 to 31 December 2024. The Company will
utilize the rooftops and relevant storage and operation space of CRH
Group to install photovoltaic power station facilities and will supply
power and provide integrated energy services to CRH Group after
photovoltaic power stations were put into operation. The Company
will also utilize the waste steam, heat and pressure to construct
power generation projects to supply power and provide integrated
energy services to CRH Group. The Company will take advantage of
its power industry resources to construct energy storage and cold
storage projects to supply power and provide integrated energy
services to CRH Group based on the peak-to-trough price difference
of CRH Group’s power consumption throughout the whole day and
in accordance with its energy consumption needs and conditions
(collectively, “Integrated Energy Projects”). The pricing policy of
Integrated Energy Projects will be based on the market prices
determined by ascertaining the prevailing prices at which the same
or similar type of products or services are provided by or to or
between independent third parties under normal commercial terms
in the ordinary course of business, in each case taking into account
the applicable circumstances, including but not limited to the
relevant policies and regulations of the PRC and provincial power
system reformation and the configuration, costs, profit, resources,
experience, quality assurance requirements and technical solutions of
relevant parties. When determining whether the transaction price for
any transaction under the Integrated Energy Projects Framework
Agreement represents market prices, to the extent reasonably
practicable, the business team of CRH Group and the Company
would (i) compare the power tariffs supplied by/offered to other
independent third party suppliers/customers of the same type in the
vicinity of the relevant power projects, (ii) obtain market and industry
data on such power tariffs from time to time through public available
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information, and (iii) keep regular contact with other established
customers/suppliers to better understand the market price trends (if
applicable). CRH Group and the Company will review and ensure
that the terms and pricing of the transactions to be conducted under
the Framework Agreement are consistent with those of other
independent third parties.

As the demand on the Integrated Energy Projects by CRH Group is
anticipated to exceed the original projection, the original annual cap
for the Integrated Energy Projects for each of the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 and the financial year ending 31
December 2024 is expected to be insufficient. Accordingly, on 19
October 2023, CRH and the Company entered into the supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) to accordingly revise
the annual caps. Save for the revision of the annual caps for the
Integrated Energy Projects, all terms and conditions of the Integrated
Energy Projects Framework Agreement (including the pricing policy
and payment arrangement) remain unchanged. The revised annual
caps for the transactions under the Integrated Energy Projects
Framework Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 and for the financial year
ending 2024 is RMB300 million and RMB400 million respectively.
During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, the
above-mentioned Integrated Energy Projects were carried out with
connected parties, which are fellow subsidiaries of the CRH Group,
with a transaction amount of approximately RMB38.6 million
(equivalent to HK$42.9 million). Details of the continuing connected
transactions are set out in the announcements issued by the
Company on 28 June 2022 and 19 October 2023.

As at the date of Integrated Energy Projects Framework Agreement
and the date of the Supplemental Agreement, CRH, being the
controlling shareholder of the Company with 62.94% equity
interests, is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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Framework agreement with CRH in relation to certain
continuing connected transactions

On 9 December 2022, the Company and CRH entered into a
framework agreement (the “CRH Group Framework Agreement”) in
relation to Gas Products, Labor Outsourcing and IT Services for a
term from 9 December 2022 to 31 December 2024. Pursuant to the
CRH Group Framework Agreement, (i) the Company will purchase
natural gas (“Gas Products”) from CRH Group; (ii) CRH Group will
provide outsourcing labor services including drivers, cleaning, chefs,
front desk and security to the Company (“Labor Outsourcing”); (iii)
CRH Group will provide information products and services to the
Company, including information system operation and maintenance,
network and hardware services, information optimization services
and security software products (“IT Services”). The pricing policy of
the CRH Group Framework Agreement will be based on the market
prices determined by ascertaining the prevailing prices at which the
same or similar types of products or services are provided by or to or
between independent third parties under normal commercial terms
in the ordinary course of business, in each case taking into account
the applicable circumstances, including but not limited to the
relevant policies and regulations of the PRC and the quality of
services or products of relevant parties. The prices for Gas Products
are determined with reference to the regulations pursuant to the
documents in effect published by the National Development and
Reform Commission, the local Development and Reform Commission
where the Gas Products are used and upstream gas suppliers from
time to time subject to adjustments according to the gas source
structure, current market price, transportation costs, production
costs, operation costs, and various coefficients related to the
generation of Gas Products. Subject to any guidance price which
may be imposed by the governmental authorities, the prices for
Labor Outsourcing shall be determined after arm’s length
negotiations with reference to (i) the anticipated operational cost
(including, among others, labor costs and administrative costs) for
providing such services, and (ii) the prevailing market rates for similar
services in the open market and the historical charging rates. The
prices of the IT Services shall be determined on arm'’s length basis
with reference to the open market prices or quotes from other
independent suppliers of similar services and taking into account the
service level, quality of services as well as other terms such as
payment terms and time required for the provision of services. Such
prices shall not be higher than those offered by other independent
third-party suppliers. CRH Group and the Group will review and
ensure that the terms and pricing of the transactions to be
conducted under the Framework Agreement are consistent with
those involving other independent third parties.
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As at the date of such agreement, CRH, being the controlling
shareholder of the Company with 62.94% equity interests, is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The respective annual caps for the Gas Products, Labor Outsourcing
and IT Services under the CRH Framework Agreement for the two
financial years ending 2023 and 2024 are set out as follows:

Transaction year

RAFE
Purchase projects
®EEIEE
Gas Products WARUEE &R
Labor Outsourcing EHINE
IT Services BRI RS

During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, the
Company purchased gas from CR Gas with a transaction amount of
approximately RMB89.0 million (equivalent to HK$99.0 million);
accepted Labor Outsourcing services from CR Mixc with a transaction
amount of approximately RMB193.4 million (equivalent to HK$215.1
million); accepted the IT Services provided by CR Digital with a
transaction amount of approximately RMB40.8 million (equivalent to
HK$45.4 million). Details of such continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcement issued by the Company on 9
December 2022.
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New Energy Projects Cooperation Agreement with CR
Sanjiu

On 28 April 2023, China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“CR Sanjiu”) and the Company entered into the
cooperation agreement in relation to the cooperation on New Energy
Projects for a term from 28 April 2023 to 31 December 2023 (“New
Energy Projects Cooperation Agreement”). The parties accordingly
have agreed to cooperate with each other for new energy power
generation projects in the following manner (“New Energy Projects”):
the parties intend to cooperate on new energy projects, with a focus
on the herb-light complementary photovoltaic power projects for
which development rights are obtained, and other new energy
projects, while the Group shall engage CR Sanjiu and its subsidiaries
(“CR Sanjiu Group”) to plan and provide land abandonment
management services. CR Sanjiu Group shall solve the problem of
land abandonment of new energy generation projects by planting
Chinese medicinal herbs (including but not limited to land
preparation, seedling breeding, seedling transplanting, field
management, pest control, technical support, harvesting and
processing the herbs) and provide land management services to meet
the land requirements of new energy generation projects. The pricing
policy of the New Energy Projects Cooperation Agreement will be
based on the market prices and take into account factors including
but not limited to the climatic conditions, soil conditions, labour
costs, market conditions and the configuration, costs, profits,
resources, experience, quality assurance requirements and technical
solutions of the relevant parties. The payment method will be
determined in separate documents according to the situation and
arrangement of specific projects. When determining whether the
transaction price for any transaction under the New Energy Projects
Cooperation Agreement represents market prices, to the extent
reasonably practicable, the business team of the Group would (i)
compare the price of similar services supplied by other independent
third party suppliers, (ii) keep regular contact with other established
suppliers to better understand the market price trends (as
appropriate) and (iii) obtain market and industry data on such price
of similar services from time to time through publicly available
information.

As at the date of such agreement, CR Sanjiu is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRCL which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company with approximately 62.94% equity interests. As such, CR
Sanjiu is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the transactions under the New Energy Projects
Cooperation Agreement for the financial year ended 31 December
2023 is RMB300 million, and the corresponding transaction amount
is approximately RMB63.2 million (equivalent to HK$70.3 million).
Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out in the
announcement issued by the Company on 28 April 2023.
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Framework agreement in relation to the provision of
financial assistance to New Energy (Liangshan)

On 11 December 2023, New Energy Group, being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the framework agreement
in relation to financial assistance with New Energy (Liangshan)
(“Financial Assistance Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which,
NE Group shall provide financial assistance to New Energy
(Liangshan) Group with total amount not exceeding the applicable
annual cap from time to time during the term of such agreement (i.e.
from 11 December 2023 to 31 December 2025). Separate
agreements in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
Financial Assistance Framework Agreement will be entered into
between NE Group and New Energy (Liangshan) Group. Such
agreements will follow the principles, terms and conditions set out in
the Financial Assistance Framework Agreement in all material
aspects. Pursuant to the Financial Assistance Framework Agreement,
the NE Group has agreed to provide financial assistance (in addition
to the financial assistance made as of 11 December 2023) to New
Energy (Liangshan) Group, including: (i) payment by NE Group on
behalf of New Energy (Liangshan) Group, where the NE Group has
agreed to provide support in respect of the payment to be made in
the latter’'s new energy tendering processes, the payment for service
fee for land comprehensive management of projects to the service
provider(s), tender deposit and performance deposit to relevant
government authority on behalf of New Energy (Liangshan) Group;
and (ii) shareholder loan, where NE Group has agreed to provide
loan to New Energy (Liangshan) Group as working capital for the
purpose of developing new energy and other projects. NE Group
shall receive interests for the provision of financial assistance by NE
Group to New Energy (Liangshan) Group. The interest rates will be
determined after negotiation between the parties and based on the
one-year loan prime rate latest published by the China Interbank
Funding Center preceding the date of withdrawal. The parties must
also review and ensure that the relevant interest rates and related
terms are no less favorable to NE Group than the terms and pricing
of similar transactions with other independent third parties.

As at the date of such agreement, CR Sanjiu is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRC which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company with approximately 62.94% equity interests; in addition,
New Energy (Liangshan) is held indirectly by New Energy Group
(being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) with 51% equity
interests and by CR Sanjiu with 49% equity interests, respectively.
Accordingly, New Energy (Liangshan) is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules and the provision of financial
assistance by NE Group to New Energy (Liangshan) Group pursuant
to the Framework Agreement constitutes continuing connected
transactions of the Company.
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The annual caps for the transactions under the Financial Assistance
Framework Agreement for the three financial years ending 31
December 2025 are RMB900 million, RMB1,900 million and
RMB2,560 million, respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the transaction amount is approximately RMB95.3 million
(equivalent to HK$106.0 million). Details of the continuing connected
transactions are set out in the announcement issued by the Company
on 11 December 2023.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that save for these
transactions, other continuing connected transactions of the
Company conducted during the year ended 31 December 2023,
were exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
that the continuing connected transactions conducted during the
year ended 31 December 2023:

(i) have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
Company'’s business;

(i)  have been entered into on normal commercial terms or better;
and

(iii) have been entered into on terms that are fair and reasonable
for and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole, and in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The board of Directors confirm that the auditors have
confirmed the matters set out in rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules by
issuing its unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on pages 52 to 63 of the Annual Report in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Save for the following transactions, none of the related party
transactions contained in Note 53 to the financial statements falls
under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” within the meaning of the Listing Rules:

(1)  The two trademark licence agreements dated 17 October 2003
entered into between the Company and CRCL and CRH
respectively, under which the Company was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to use
certain trademarks and the rights to sub-license the same to
any member of the Group in consideration of nominal amount
of HK$1 each.
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EERHE
(2) Significant transactions with related parties during the year: () FHNHERMANEARS !
2023
“ECCE
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000
REAR S fES REUE TET
CRH Intermediate holding Interest expense paid 285,521
company ENFEER
] R ERAE
Certain subsidiaries of CRH Fellow subsidiaries Supply of direct power 392
ERERNETHERR EEAIEVNG ERHE
Providing retail power agency services 2,989
RUTSEENAERS
Providing integrated energy services 14,583

R SRR
Providing agency service fee =

RUERER%EE
Software maintenance expense paid 43,698
BARA4EENS
Trademark usage fee 8,786
HRERE
Purchase of consumables 29,063
BEHER
Professional fee 848
EXEA
Purchase of fuel 99,005
FEEME
Purchase of materials 15,439
EEME
Rental expense 126
%
Management fee 169
BEE
Insurance expense 258
Rk
Heat supply income 3,841
MR
Heat purchase expense =
B
Land abandonment management services 70,257
THETURIERE
Other income 3,869
HAA
Other expense 1,625
Hitfsz
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2023

TR

Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000

HEATRME B RZUE TET

Certain subsidiaries and joint ventures Fellow subsidiaries Providing retail power agency services 7,964
of China Resources Building Materials & HiIB/A S RUSEENRERS

Technology Holdings Limited (formerly
known as China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited)
ERRMRRERERAT
(RIEERIEERBRAT)
NWETHEARMSEEE

Sales of by-product -
HERIER

Purchase of material 333
BEME

Providing integrated energy services 24,703

RIBEEERRE

Other income =
HEAA

Other expense 223

Hthfx

Certain subsidiaries of China Fellow subsidiaries Rental expense 991
Resources Land Limited HEER

EPEHERARNETHEAS RAKEAT Management fee Bl
EEE
Renovation fee 6,851
KEE
Providing integrated energy services 3,642
R R
Providing retail power agency services 4,000
RETEEHAERS
Purchase of PPE 5270
BENE  BRERRE
Professional fee 902
HXER
Heat supply income 7,006
HEKA
Other income 343
At A
Other expense 4,054
Hitp%
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2023
“EC-F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000
REAR SR REUE TET
China Resources Energy Service Fellow subsidiary Contract environment management fee, 3,838
Co., Ltd. contract energy management fee and
exclusive operation fee
EHERREBRAR EE | YN= BNREEERER  cNERER
ERRISTREER
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Fellow subsidiary Interest expense paid —
Company Limited BAFMEER
KEEBRITRNBRAR EENNE
Interest income 7,150
HMEKA
Certain Subsidiaries of China Fellow subsidiaries Management Fee 2,976
Resources Longdation Company Limited EHER
EBEMBERARNETHERR EENNE
Rental expense 8,764
HeEA
(3) Compensation to the Company’s key management forms part (3) (Y ¥ AATETEESIE A SRS
of the “Key Management Compensation” described in note REHMIEHRERMES30)PFMAE
53(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These are EIEFTESEABSHFII BN—3D e
continuing connected transactions exempted from the hEXS A EHmEBIFE14A.76 5]
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.76 or 14A 95 R EIR R IBTREER S IRT
14A.95 of the Listing Rules. RIS BRI S o

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements #HZE_ZE-_=+_"_F=+—HILFE >
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the AKAB T AEREZT I WIFEBERSIE
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group during =7 FtHiREISE 4AEZERIEEIRT
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers together accounted
for 18.32% of the Group’s total purchases during the year. The five
largest suppliers are FEIEREBBR AT KRIHE 2 F (Jinneng
Holding Group Co., Ltd Coal Sales Company) (4.60%), @&, &[5 5E
(BIE) BRAE (Tongwei Solar Energy (Hefei) Co., Ltd.) (3.95%),
f@(‘@i@qﬂﬁl—fh’iﬁﬁﬁ &) (Shaanxi Coal Huazhong Coal Sales
Co., Ltd.) 3.47%), BISEHEEEAINFERE ZBRA 5 (National
Energy Sales Group Cangzhou Energy Trading Co., Ltd.) (3.43%) and
W PER ZIRIRAERFA D B R /A 8] (Shanxi Lu’an Environmental
Energy Development Co., Ltd.) (2.87%).

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for 45.37% of the Group's total turnover during the year. The five
largest customers are Bl #4871 & & & /1A R 2 5 (Jiangsu Electric
Power Co., Ltd.) (15.50%), BEI4E;51 152 B /1A FR/2 5] (Hubei Electric
Power Co., Ltd.) (11.68%), BIZX B4 B R A B ZE 1L 2 &F (North
China Branch of State Grid Corporation of China) (6.90%), B 4847
714 & 1B R/A B (Zhejiang Electric Power Co., Ltd.) (5.66%), and
[EPR B4 A R &S XA 8 (Guangxi Power Grid Co., Ltd.) (5.63%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied all of the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix C1 (formerly
Appendix 14) of the Listing Rules and complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Code during the year except for the
deviations of Code Provision C.2.1 and Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
The Company also adopted most of the recommended best practices
in the said Code.

The Corporate Governance Practices of the Company is set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 98 to 140 of this Annual
Report.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 64
EHBEHERARAT

FEFRRMLER

AEBRAAREHETHRBA MG
REBEXRFERBEEEMNI832% c AKX
HEBmSEEERERERABFERE

ERF(4.60%) ~ BEKIGEE (SE) AR
A E(3.95%) @é‘lﬁ%ﬂP‘ﬁf—Jﬁ’%ﬁBE

NTI(3.47%) ~ BEIBEIHE E BB INAEIRE
ZHERA 7(343%)&UJE/E§§:IET$EE/
FERMNARAE(2.87%) -

BAREENAATFLFHNIEE SN
REBAFEESERENAL37% AKX
EPRPABRPIHEENLERAE
(15.50%) - EABHIEEZENLER AT
(11.68%) ~ IR BEAHE R A B FE L9 26
(6.90%) BEH@EF IEENLERAFT
(5.66%) MEREMAEREEELE (5.63%) ©

REFERN > EF - EFNETHBEAR
AABRR GLESFINER A AT S H
TRMAS% U L) BEEE AER T KM
EEEE R ERELD o

fBE - HEEERIFAFE
EhEHF

KRB RERBABNREE S _=
+_B=+—HIEEEITEEE - HE%
BOARATMER LEHHES -

BTEEERTH

ARABEHRBETRAWERC (R
+m) PrE (e EE R (T5FR1) BIPR
BER > W EABRMITRNFEX S C.2.1
R EHRAIEI29MENRE - —HE
STTRIPTE 2 TR o AT TR T
FRHTFRIRES D EZRIEER

ARBNEEE RSB HENAFRE S
BEVM0EMIEEERARS) °



MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix C3
(formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit and Risk
Committee. In 2023, four of the six Audit and Risk Committee
members are Independent Non-executive Directors, with the
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee having appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. The Company will submit a resolution at the
forthcoming AGM to recommend the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the independent auditor of the Company.

According to the relevant regulation issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of State Council regarding the audit
work on financial statements of state-owned enterprises, there are
restrictions in the number of years of audit services that an
accounting firm can continuously provide to a state-owned enterprise
and its subsidiaries. As the Company is a subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise, and had continuously engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") since 2012. As the number of years that PwC can provide
audit services had reached the abovementioned time limit, PwC
retired and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as an
independent auditor of the Company at the 2020 annual general
meeting.
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PUBLIC FLOAT ARERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company 1REAXRAT T ARESHNER » RES
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this  Ff&l > MARERTIZEHHY > a0 LT iREY
Annual Report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of FiRE » ZATEREARITRE » %%

the Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules. FRADRAAB B ETRIN 25% °©
On behalf of the Board HKESEA

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited EHENERBRATE

Shi Baofeng SFEIE

Chairman of the Board EFEFE

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024 58 “E2MWFE=A=+H
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2023
Generation capacity

As at the end of 2023, the Group had operational generation
capacity of 77,324MW and attributable operational generation
capacity of 59,764MW, out of which, the attributable operational
generation capacity of the thermal power plants amounted to
37,167MW or 62.2%. The total attributable operational generation
capacity of wind, photovoltaic and hydro power projects amounted
to 22,597MW or 37.8%, representing an increase of 5.5 percentage
points from the end of 2022.

As at the end of 2023, the Group’s attributable operational
generation capacity of wind power amounted to 18,618MW, with
7,304MW under construction. Attributable operational generation
capacity of photovoltaic power amounted to 3,442MW, with
6,056MW under construction. During 2023, the attributable
generation capacity of newly commissioned wind power and
photovoltaic power projects amounted to 3,106 MW and 2,230MW,
respectively.

In 2023, new grid-connected generation capacity of wind and
photovoltaic power of the Group was 6,458MW, and acquired
attributable generation capacity of renewable energy projects of the
Group amounted to approximately 1,220MW, adding up to
7,678MW. During the year, the Group acquired the following
renewable energy projects: (1) 100% equity interest in six centralized
wind power projects, 95% equity interest in one centralized wind
power project and 94% equity interest in one centralized wind
power project in Guangdong Runneng New Energy Company
Limited (/&5 BEFTSE R B BR/A B]) with a generation capacity of
approximately 440.3MW and an attributable generation capacity of
approximately 434.9MW in consideration of RMB1.44 billion for
such equity transaction through an acquisition agreement; (2) 100%
equity interest in the 400MW wind power project in Gansu of
Zhangye Lilong New Energy Development Company Limited (H & &
sSRIET LB AERFAZE B RAF]), a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric
Wind Power Group Company Limited ( L8R B BEBERMND AR
‘AF)), in consideration of RMB944 million through a public bidding
process; (3) 100% equity interest in the T00MW wind power project
in Gansu of Jinchang Yongneng New Energy Company Limited (H
MELEKERBERAMRAT), a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric
Wind Power Group Company Limited ( L8 B R B BEBE RN AR
‘AF)), in consideration of RMB204 million through a public bidding
process; and (4) 38.25% equity interest in a total of 744.4MW
renewable energy projects, which comprise of 673MW hydroelectric
power plants, 67.8MW wind power projects and 3.6MW
photovoltaic power projects, through the reorganization with
Chongging Energy Investment Group (B SEJR & E). Currently,
these projects have been put into operation.
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In 2023, the Group obtained 19,500MW of renewable energy
development and construction permits, including 9,740MW of wind
power and 9,760MW of photovoltaic power.

During the year, the attributable operational generation capacity of
the newly commissioned thermal power projects of the Group
amounted to 967MW, including a 350MW unit in Ningwu Power
Plant, Shanxi, 50% owned by the Group; a 660MW unit in Yunfu
Power Plant, Guangdong, 80% owned by the Group; and a 660MW
unit in Fuyang Power Plant (Phase Il), Anhui, 40% owned by the
Group.

Net generation volume

In 2023, there was a year-on-year increase in the power demand in
the PRC. During the year, the total net generation volume of the
Group’s consolidated power plants amounted to 193,265GWh, up
by 4.7% from 2022. Net generation volume of wind farms and
photovoltaic power stations increased by 12.4% and 111.8%,
respectively, while net generation volume of consolidated thermal
power plants increased by 2.3% year-on-year.

The average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of the operational
wind farms throughout the year were 2,451 hours, increase by 53
hours or 2.2% as compared to 2022, exceeding the national average
utilisation hours of wind power generation units by 226 hours. The
average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of photovoltaic power
stations were 1,480 hours, decreased by 30 hours or 2.0% as
compared to 2022, exceeding the national average utilisation hours
for photovoltaic power generation units by 194 hours. On a same
plant basis, the average full-load equivalent utilization hours of the
consolidated coal-fired power plants was 4,688 hours, remained
basically the same as 2022, exceeding the national average utilisation
hours of thermal power units by 222 hours.

In 2023, the net generation volume of the consolidated power plants
that followed market-based pricing accounted for 85%. The average
market tariff was 18% higher than that of the benchmark on-grid
tariff.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fuel costs

In 2023, the average unit fuel cost of consolidated coal-fired power
plants was RMB296.3 per MWh, representing a decrease of 12.6%
as compared to 2022. Average unit cost of standard coal was
RMB987.5 per tonne, representing a decrease of 12.6% as
compared to 2022.

Average net generation standard coal consumption rate of
consolidated coal-fired power plants was 297.17g per kWh,
representing a decrease of 0.08g or 0.03% as compared to 2022.

Capital expenditure

In 2023, cash capital expenditure of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$44,734 million, of which approximately
HK$31,934 million was used in the construction of wind and
photovoltaic power plants, approximately HK$7,474 million was
used in the construction of thermal power units, approximately
HK$1,248 million was used in the technological upgrades of
operational power generation units, approximately HK$610 million
was used in the construction of coal mines, and approximately
HK$3,468 million was used in the construction of integrated energy
and other projects.

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Development of renewable energy

The Group will continue to make every effort to accelerate the
development and construction of wind and photovoltaic power
projects. In the “14th Five-year Plan” period, the Group aims to
increase its installed capacity of renewable energy by 40GW. It is
expected that the mix of installed capacity of renewable energy will
exceed 50% by the end of the “14th Five-year Plan” period (i.e. the
end of 2025). To this end, the Group has further optimised the
organisational structure, mobilising employees and managers to
develop new wind and photovoltaic power projects in our domestic
target markets.

The generation capacity target for new wind and photovoltaic power
projects of the Group for 2024 is expected to be 10,000MW.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEAwmRAIA

Carbon emission reduction

The Group has formulated the carbon peak and carbon neutrality
action plans to provide guidance for the path to achieve the targets
of carbon peak and carbon neutrality. The path for the Group to
lower its carbon emissions includes, among others, proactive
development of renewable energy; strict control over new
construction of coal-fired power generation units; reduction of coal
consumption through increasing heat supply, biomass coupling and
technological transformations; and active piloting of carbon capture,
utilisation and storage (“CCUS") technologies.

The Group will actively assist industrial and commercial end-users
and government units to improve energy consumption efficiency,
accelerate the construction of roof-top photovoltaic power projects,
help end-users and the whole society to utilise renewable energy,
reduce carbon emissions and collaborate with end-users to pilot the
construction of low carbon and zero emission projects.

To facilitate the achievement of the carbon emission reduction
targets, the Group explicitly includes carbon emission reduction and
renewable energy development in the performance contracts of the
senior management, and the key performance indicators include,
among others, capacity mix of renewable energy, new grid-
connected capacity of renewable energy, and carbon emission
intensity in power generation, and evaluates actual performance.

Capital expenditure

The cash capital expenditure in 2024 is expected to be approximately
HK$59,900 million, including approximately HK$44,600 million for
the construction of wind and photovoltaic power plants,
approximately HK$7,900 million for the construction of thermal
power units, approximately HK$1,500 million for the technological
upgrades of operational power generation units, approximately
HK$700 million for the construction of coal mines, and
approximately HK$5,200 million for the construction of integrated
energy and other projects.

In 2024, the Group expects to commission an attributable capacity
of approximately 927.2MW of thermal power generation units,
including one unit at Guangdong Yunfu Power Plant, one unit at
Shenyang Power Plant and a gas-fired distributed project.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAN AR

OPERATING RESULTS BEXRE
Consolidated statement of profit or loss aHEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F12831HILEE

2023 2022
o= =T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Turnover =3 [ EFXY%YY M 103,305,097
Operating expenses ESI RPN
Fuels R (CIRNEREY)]  (64,283,171)
Depreciation and amortisation I EE B EY ((CWPIWIYAY  (14,429,592)
Employee benefit expenses BEENEZ (VAERID] (6,631,593)
Repairs and maintenance M MERE (PEPANLLY]  (2,471,245)
Consumables e} (CRLEDY]  (1,300,504)
Impairment charges VERIEE=PS (P ZERTTN]  (1,045,216)
Tax and surcharges <& K BN (864,572) (760,607)
Others HAth (EFEPREh) (2,997,806)
Total operating expenses HE IR B AN Cyierln D) (93,919,734)
Other income Hlk A 2,029,731 1,981,567
Other gains and losses Hthi8 s 214,499 2,184,149
Operating profit SR (AL 13,551,079
Finance costs MBER (CWZLEEY)]  (3,890,192)
Share of results of associates FE(LE S XA 1,183,055 (112,676)
Share of results of joint ventures FEhEaEhEES 358,283 (86,737)
Profit before income tax FRPT1S5 A1) 15,499,097 9,461,474
Income tax expense Fri8MEHR (€LY  (1,905,574)
Profit for the year FRHHE 12,110,495 7,555,900
Profit for the year attributable to: FAFBEEBN .
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE TS DN 11,003,283 7,042,478
Perpetual capital securities holders KABRFHFFHHA 329,260 420,295
Other non-controlling interests HAIR4E S M 777,952 93,127
12,110,495 7,555,900
Basic earnings per share SREXRN HK$2.29 HK$1.46
71 Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEANm R

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Profit for the year

BHEmkEMEEERAR

HE2023F12B31HILEE

F A

Other comprehensive income (expense):
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences
Share of other comprehensive expense of
investments accounted for using the
equity method
Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of subsidiaries
Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of a joint venture
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Fair value changes on equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), net of tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit
pension plan

Hh2EWEA (18 :
B fEBR DR ERm I EH

b 2 A= 2B
BRI EZERENE
fthir 5 Es18
REMNBARERED
BREGEMEEMEEG
TEEEM TR EBmAIRE
DARBESEBEHF AR
thir e REN RS RE R

BEZF RE)
EMstEREERR msE

Other comprehensive expense for the year,
net of tax

FRHEMEEER (%)

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year, net of tax

FR2EWA (B18) 1828 (R1E)

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Perpetual capital securities holders
Other non-controlling interests

BER
TABHEA A
KABAEFFAA
HMIFES S

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year, net of tax

FREEWA (518) B2 fRE)
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2023

==

— e —

HK$’000
FET

12,110,495

(2,154,503)

(10,818)
(26,336)

37,809

72,289

19,410

(2,062,149)

10,048,346

9,006,927
329,260
712,159

10,048,346

2022

— = — —

HK$'000
TETT

7,555,900

(13,116,546)

(555,911)

(2,862)

45,581

21,624

(13,608,114)

(6,052,214)

(5,895,145)
420,295
(577,364)

(6,052,214)



Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2023

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill
Mining rights
Contractual rights
Deferred tax assets
Other receivables and prepayments
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Financial assets at FVOCI

Loans to a FVOCI investee company

Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

BE
FRBEE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAN AR

BHEAERRR
#2023F12H31H

ME ~ BERRRE

ERARAE
L
PRl
&Rk
R A E

H A& W R TR 7RI

R hE
REERE

Ayt m
Ay m

NrnEBEstEEEEHt AR

iz s

mERMEE

BUARBESEBEEEA
Hr 5B E A E

o
=E

a0 B A B JE et B B B

Current assets MBIEE
Inventories =8
Trade receivables, other receivables and FEWER R ~ H A FEWFRIE K
prepayments FETRRIE
Loans to joint ventures maEEEEM
Loans to a FVOCI investee company mURAREBEFTEBESFTA
HMR & W m IR E AT
B
Amounts due from associates FE W B & 1 FE TRIE
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & ERIE
Amounts due from other related FEWE thEAE A B IB
companies
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BRI Z RHIER1TER
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY
Assets classified as held for sale FEGEEE
Total assets B E
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2023

==

—_—

HK$'000
FiE

215,752,142
9,357,173
1,158,587
3,764,928

994,500
1,083,928
17,539,436
16,671,370
5,456,247

986,479

13,794

272,778,584

4,016,944

40,467,098
211,977

332,324
61,146

26,407
418,538
4,082,972

49,617,406

322,395,990

HK$'000
THET

191,355,953
6,635,994
621,904
3,836,360
1,075,072
12,533,739
9,050,331
5,997,336

1,118,396

466,255

13,994

232,705,334

4,581,614
35,616,097
189,121

84,102
241,196
47,395
33,533

116,466
7,721,275

48,630,799

2,051,513

283,387,646
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB w RS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EwmkEE
Capital and reserves BARKREE
Share capital [
Other reserves HihfEE
Retained earnings REB A
Equity attributable to owners of RREIER NS
the Company
Perpetual capital securities holders KABRFSFFHAA
Other non-controlling interests HhIEZEs e
Total equity g
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities JEREHEadE
Borrowings (==
Contract liabilities EEENE
Lease liabilities HESR
Deferred tax liabilities EIERAE
Deferred income PEIEWTA
Retirement and other long-term FEST RN R EMEEA
employee benefits obligations B S @ A
Other long-term payables HihREAFET
Current liabilities mEAaRE
Trade payables, other payables and FEATBRAR « MR TRRIE &
accruals FESTE R
Contract liabilities EIEIENE
Lease liabilities MHESE
Amounts due to associates FET B (b FETRIE
Amounts due to joint ventures N EEERIE
Amounts due to other related companies — FE{S E{thREE A B RIE
Tax liabilities MIBEBEE
Borrowings 88
Liabilities associated with assets classified as B IEAFEHEEBE
held for sale BRENEaE
Total liabilities waE
. _Total equity and liabilities wEERERE
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 74
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2023
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HK$°000
THET

22,316,710
9,361,021
53,295,958

84,973,689

10,664,271
8,909,181

104,547,141

125,827,123
997,247
2,020,456
431,461
785,953

779,045
2,945,310

133,786,595

36,424,348
1,351,403
307,352
91,664
646,811
10,868,925
1,007,069
33,364,682

84,062,254

217,848,849

322,395,990

2022

HK$'000
TETT

22,316,710
10,138,976
49,782,916

82,238,602

10,664,271
7,650,675

100,553,548

93,322,133
873,021
1,048,403
288,864
808,519

807,751
2,802,332

99,951,023

30,247,926
1,233,004
217,924
627,790
576,082
10,840,890
543,720
38,383,441

82,670,777

212,298

182,834,098

283,387,646



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAN AR

GHEZRE

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F128318LEE

2023 2022
= - S ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REES
Profit before income tax FRPTSH AT A 15,499,097 9,461,474
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation and amortisation T EE BB 14,720,207 14,429,592
Impairment losses VEAEEEES 2,748,698 1,045,216
Exchange gains PE £ U 2 (GF0ER) (1,993,762)
Interest expense FMEMZ 4,240,637 3,890,192
Interest income F B WA (125,119) (192,451)
Share of results of associates FE(L S (R (1,183,055) 112,676
Share of results of joint ventures EhEaEhEEE (358,283) 86,737
Dividends income from FVOCI investee UrnBEFEEE8EA
companies Hir e WamsMEE
NRIRE AT R EWA (59,690) (57,727)
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BERRENRE
plant and equipment (124,537) (33,366)
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFTRAEEEN KRG (31,469) (90,987)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR W (47,029) (32,137)
Losses on disposal of a joint venture HESSREELX 55,806 —
Changes in working capital: EEEEEY .
Decrease in inventories FERD 510,337 1,742,320
Increase in trade receivables, other FEUAR TR ~ EAAEINRIE &
receivables and prepayments TEIRRISIE AN (CAIEAYY)  (2,557,534)
Increase in trade payables, other FEfTERFN ~ BRI &
payables and accruals FEStE FIE M 721,769 335,197
Decrease in retirement and other st RA R EMEIRESEN
long-term employee benefits % 2SR
obligations (19,854) (115,424)
Income tax paid ETFTER (PXLEXEN] (1,863,277)
Net cash inflows generated from KEEFHMEENRERA
operating activities — FEE pERILWYEN 24,166,739
75 Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEANm R

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from associates and
joint ventures

Dividends received from FVOCI investee
companies

Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment, mining rights
and right-of-use assets
Cash outflow on acquisition of interest in
associates
Capital contributions into associates
Capital contributions into joint ventures
Loans to joint ventures
Loans repayments from joint ventures
Net cash outflow on acquisition of
interest in subsidiaries
Cash prepayment on acquisition of equity
investments
Government grants related to assets
Repurchase of Asset-Backed Notes

2023

==

—_—

HK$"000
THET

2022

HK$°000
THET

REES

916,532 659,759
B A ABEFEEEETA

HtiraWaN e EEN

WREAFNRE 59,690 93,766
BUWF 2 - 9,065
HEYE - REKREMER

HEENFREHRIE

177,192 103,994

& MY B A B PR 1S "8
BEYE  ME K& RiEE
MEREEEF X BIRIEA

127,139 =

(CE WY  (32,579,796)
REHEAREmMRE MR

(3,106,885) =

EEErETE (492,360) (586,550)
MEe=EtETE (258,197) (880,968)
maEtEER ((EREY)) -
BELEEEENR - 140,533
WEEHI B A B m BV IR S M H
HRE (1,909,421) (1,101)
REERKREMENHNIRE
— (723,698)
1 EE B R BV BT fE - 20,825
CEEESIFERE (703,406) (102,916)

Net cash outflows generated
from investing activities

REZPEENRT AL — B

(CERERR)N  (33,847,087)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of perpetual
capital securities

Redemption of corporate bonds

Redemption of perpetual capital securities

Capital contribution by non-controlling
interests

Capital reduction by non-controlling
interests

Cash prepayments on acquisition of
a non-controlling interest

(Repayment of advances from) advances
from an intermediate holding company

Repayment of advances from associates

(Repayment of advances from) advances
from joint ventures

Repayment of advances from other
related companies

(Repayment of advances from) advances
from non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries

Interest on bank loans and advances from
associates and joint ventures paid

Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

Repayment of lease liabilities

Interest paid to perpetual capital
securities holders

Underwriting fees for issuance of
perpetual capital securities

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAN AR

BLEEE
&8 AR
R EERE

BITKABRE TSR

B ATES
] CIE /=P )
FEER S HE

FREER IR E
AW B IR EREm IR

(BERBZERABEEN)
TR A B 2R
BEHE XN
(BESERERR)
BEEEIM

BEEHMBEAR AT M

(BIENE R R IFER IR R ER)

B AR IFER IR IR

ENRITERNEMRBEERT

BRF S
BN EABERE ARS

BB AR IFERERAIKRE

BEHEARE
ENKABXRBSFFE

SN XABEARESFHITHRBEE

Net cash inflows generated from
financing activities

RMEZHELENRERA— B8

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

REKRRTEEY L) 110

FER
FNRERFEEEY

EERHNYE

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the
year, represented by:

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents included in
assets classified as held for sale

FRBE R[S EFEBYERDN

FRRERFEEEY

DEARAGERENRER

REFEY
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HK$°000
THET

93,903,965
(68,587,455)

(2,179,680)

681,399
(57,893)
(75,609)

(1,303,536)
(528,310)

(40,068)

(263,020)

(73,853)

(4,893,060)
(3,385,718)

(A EX-YE))
(425,530)

(329,185)

11,828,974

(3,287,348)

7,721,275
(350,955)

4,082,972

4,082,972

HK$'000
TR
62,229,310
(43,383,069)
10,664,624
(5,776,692)
(10,558,855)
509,297
(14,707)

3,571,843
(76,001)

73,807

(112,736)

15,814

(4,387,972)
(1,226,311)

(235,267)
(713,919)

(420,295)

(353)

10,158,518

478,170

7,934,211
(690,764)

7,721,275

342
7,721,617
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEAwmRAIA

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values.

Other than additional accounting policies as resulting from
application of amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”), the accounting policies and methods of
computation used in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are the same as those presented in
the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Application of amendments to HKFRSs

In 2023, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2023
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS  Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Except as described below, the application of the new and amended
HKFRSs in 2023 has no material impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance for the year 2023 and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impacts of application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption of
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and
24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Pursuant to the transition provisions:

(i) The Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to lease transactions that occurred on or after 1
January 2022;

(i)  The Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a deferred tax
asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary difference associated with right-of-use-assets
and lease liabilities and decommissioning and restoration and
the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of
the related asset.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group's financial position and performance.

Impacts of application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace
all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with
“material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However,
not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEANm R

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has no material impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

The Group has not early adopted new and amended
standards that have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning after 1 January 2023

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published during the year that are not mandatory for the period
ended 31 December 2023 (“reporting period”) and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue received and receivable arising from
sales of electricity and heat, net of value-added tax, during the year.

HK$'000
TET

2023
“EBCZ=E

BHE
B AEREEHE

Sales of electricity
Including: Sales of power generated
from thermal power plants

Sales of power generated from OEEEREE
renewable energy HE 23,281,087
Heat supply A 7,826,987

103,334,322

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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RMB'000
AREFT
2023
—EC=E

2022
S —

— e ——

2022
S —

— = ——

95,287,340 85,904,594 81,708,937
73,953,560 64,989,795 62,766,313
21,333,780 20,914,799 18,942,624

8,017,757

103,305,097

6,999,107 6,842,884

92,903,701 88,551,821



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's turnover for 2023 was HK$103,334 million,
representing an increase of HK$29 million or 0.03% from
HK$103,305 million in 2022. In RMB terms, the turnover for 2023
was RMB92,904 million, representing an increase of RMB4,352
million or 4.9% from RMB88,552 million in 2022. The increase is
mainly attributable to (1) a year-on-year increase of 4.7% in net
generation volume of consolidated power plants; and (2) a year-on-
year increase of 2.1% in the average price of heat sales from
consolidated power plants; however, the increase was partially offset
by (1) a year-on-year decrease of 3.4% in the average on-grid tariff
of consolidated wind power projects; and (2) a year-on-year decrease
in the amount presented in HKD arising from the depreciation of
RMB against HKD.

At present, the Group is engaged in two business segments —
thermal power (including coal-fired power and gas-fired power) and
renewable energy (including wind, photovoltaic and hydro power).

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
business segments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Segment revenue pan=i N
External sales SMNER BH &
Segment profit pan=(ZIpE
Exchange gains, net PE & W a5 7 F KB
Profit before income tax BRPTASIRAIF
Profit attributable to owners of the ~ ANATI#ER AFE(LF)HE

Company (before non-cash GEREERIERA)

exchange gains and losses)

Asset impairment losses BERBEBX
Core business profit attributable to ~ ZNA B #HEA AEIEZD
owners of the Company E I
81

80,053,235

EEEw RN

2023 & EEEA1,033.34EEB T |
20225 1,033.05E BTt EF 029 B T
30.03% c EUAN RT3 » 2023 F &
H2EA ANRIEE920.04E T > 82022F A
Ri&885.52f=8t LA AR 4352 T
49% c FERMF(MWBEREEERLE
2iN47% ; Q)M BBERFIIEREBR
EEIZIN2.1% ; BB ER()KNEBREER
T EBPEEEBRILETE3.4% ; QAR
HEKEXRDETEUBKEINNEE
[B)EE TP EB D308 ©

E EI‘JZ!K%""EEWE%?‘%T‘B — kA

B (BEMEES REE) MoUBE
REIR (@%Hjﬁéaﬁ ﬁ‘éﬁt’é’ffﬁ)ﬂzﬂdﬂ*
aa) o

UTAEE2023FK%2022F12831H
IFFERERDIE DI ANER WG K
HEEDT

BHE2023F12831HILEEE

Renewable
energy
BB ERER
HK$'000
TFET

Thermal
power

XE

Total
st
HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
THET

23,281,087 103,334,322

5,472,131 9,960,885 15,433,016

66,081

15,499,097

2,854,877 8,082,325 10,937,202

756,622 1,643,186 2,399,808

3,611,499

9,725,511 13,337,010
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREAR KRS
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE2022F12831HILFE
Thermal Renewable
power energy Total
KE  AIBEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET TF#ET
Segment revenue 2 EPUTA
External sales AN BB 81,971,317 21,333,780 103,305,097
Segment (loss) profit o (B518) 78 (2,540,676) 10,008,388 7,467,712
Exchange gains, net PR U /28R 1,993,762
Profit before income tax BR PSR A 7 9,461,474

(Loss) profit attributable to owners <A BEA AL
of the Company (before non-cash (B518) FH

exchange gains and losses) GEREERIEDRAD (3,430,412) 8,479,128 5,048,716
Asset impairment losses BERBEEBX 848,464 165,834 1,014,298

Core business (loss) profit attributable Z</A & # A AL 1Z 0

to owners of the Company 7% (B518) 78 (2,581,948) 8,644,962 6,063,014
Geographical information Hh s B k)
Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets are located in the ZAEEBALHIERABEEMPHE > &
PRC, and operations are also substantially carried out in the PRC. BN EERREETT
Operating expenses KE A

Operating expenses mainly comprise fuel costs, depreciation and 48 % Y Zx 3= 6 & AR} B Z< ~ 7 85 E2 4
amortisation, employee benefit expenses, repairs and maintenance, - lEE @G ~ #EEM4EE ~ Mk~
consumables, impairment losses, tax and surcharges and other R{EE4%k ~ BB R M0 » LAR H A= BY
operating expenses. Other operating expenses include office rent, s o & & i A B IEW AEH L ~ K
water charges, utility expenses, production safety expenses and other E & H& - L2+ EBUKREMEEE
management expenses. Total operating expenses for 2023 amounted 355 o 2023 F A2 48 & g 45 %4 873.80 12 78
to HK$87,380 million, representing a decrease of HK$6,540 million 7T » #2022 £ 939.20 &8 TR/ 65.40 =
or 7.0% from HK$93,920 million for 2022. BITE7.0% °
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fuel costs decreased by HK$9,774 million or 15.2% from HK$64,283
million for 2022 to HK$54,509 million for 2023, mainly due to (1) a
decrease in the unit price of standard coal of consolidated coal-fired
power plants by 12.6% year-on-year; (2) a year-on-year decrease in
the figures presented in HKD arising from the depreciation of RMB
against HKD, however, the decrease was partially offset by the
increase in the power sales volume of consolidated coal-fired power
plants by 2.1% year-on-year.

Depreciation and amortisation increased by HK$290 million or 2.0%
from HK$14,430 million for 2022 to HK$14,720 million for 2023,
mainly due to the increase in depreciation cost arising from the
commencement of new projects, however, the increase declined due
to (1) the decrease in the depreciation cost resulted from the
expiration of depreciation of part of thermal power units; and (2) a
year-on-year decrease of the figures presented in HKD arising from
the depreciation of RMB against HKD.

Employee benefit expenses increased by HK$555 million or 8.4%
from HK$6,632 million for 2022 to HK$7,187 million for 2023,
mainly due to the dual impact of the commissioning of new projects
and a year-on-year decrease in the figures presented in HKD arising
from the depreciation of RMB against HKD.

Repairs and maintenance decreased by HK$150 million or 6.1%
from HK$2,471 million for 2022 to HK$2,321 million for 2023,
mainly due to (1) repairs and maintenance expenses related to
production safety being expensed through production safety
expenses during the reporting period; and (2) a year-on-year
decrease in the figures presented in HKD arising from the
depreciation of RMB against HKD, however, the decrease was partly
offset by an increase in the workload of repair and maintenance.

Consumables decreased by HK$134 million or 10.3% from
HK$1,301 million for 2022 to HK$1,167 million for 2023, mainly due
to (1) the decrease in unit consumption of materials brought by the
implementation of technology transformation and optimization of
the operation methods by the Company; (2) material cost related to
production safety being expensed through production safety
expenses during the reporting period; and (3) a year-on-year
decrease in the figures presented in HKD arising from the
depreciation of RMB against HKD.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEAwmRAIA

Impairment charges increased by HK$1,704 million or 163.1% from
HK$1,045 million for 2022 to HK$2,749 million in 2023, mainly due
to (1) an impairment provision of HK$564 million was made for
entrusted loan of Yunnan Nujiang Hydropower (Z£F%5IKE); (2)
an impairment provision of long term asset HK$1,654 million was
made for the Guizhou Coal-fired Power Integration Project (& M &
B—# 1B H), Zhuhai Gas-fired Power (%8R E) and
Xishuangbanna Project (FE & kR 448 B ); and (3) an impairment
provision of HK$197 million was made for trade receivables in
respect of renewable energy subsidies based on the assessment of
expected credit loss.

Tax and surcharges increased by HK$104 million or 13.7% from
HK$761 million for 2022 to HK$865 million for 2023, mainly due to
(1) an increase in value-added tax and an increase in the amount of
urban maintenance and construction tax and education surcharge
payables; and (2) a year-on-year increase of resource tax arising from
joint trial operation for Wujianfang Xiyi Coal Mine, however, the
increase was partly offset by a reduction in environment tax paid.

Other operating expenses amounted to HK$3,863 million,
representing an increase of HK$865 million or 28.9% from
HK$2,998 million for 2022. Other operating expenses mainly
included (1) expenses related to production safety of HK$852 million
expensed during the year, which is specially aggregated and
accounted by the Company as safety production expenses pursuant
to the Administrative Measures for the Withdrawal and Use of
Production Safety Expenses ({({tF¥Z 24 EERIFFERABIENZ))
issued and implemented by the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry
of Emergency Management on 21 November 2022; (2) other
production costs such as water charges, utility expenses and
electricity transaction fees amounting to a total of HK$2,131 million;
and (3) other administrative expenses such as office rents, building
management fees, professional fees and administrative charges and
other administrative costs amounting to a total of HK$880 million.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income

Other income amounted to HK$2,030 million, representing an
increase of HK$48 million or 2.4% from HK$1,982 million for 2022,
which was mainly attributable to the increase of government grant.
Other income for 2023 mainly included, among others, government
grant of HK$800 million, sales of by-products of HK$535 million,
income from service fees of HK$229 million and interest income of
HK$125 million.

Other gains and losses

Other gains amounted to HK$214 million, representing a decrease of
HK$1,970 million or 90.2% from HK$2,184 million in 2022, mainly
due to a decrease in exchange gains. Other gains and losses for 2023
mainly comprised of exchange gains of HK$66 million and gains on
disposal of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment of
HK$156 million. Exchange gains mainly arise from RMB loans
obtained by the Company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Hong Kong") market. Although cash flows are
in line with the income from the business of the Group, however the
depreciation of RMB against HKD has resulted in book gains in the
financial statements denominated in HKD.

Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from subsidiaries before deduction
of finance costs, income tax expenses and non-controlling interests.
Operating profit for 2023 amounted to HK$18,198 million,
representing an increase of HK$4,647 million or 34.3% from
HK$13,551 million for 2022. The increase in operating profit was
mainly due to (1) a year-on-year decrease in the unit price of
standard coal of consolidated coal-fired power plants; and (2) profit
contribution from newly commissioned projects; which was offset by
the effects of (1) a year-on-year decrease in the average on-grid tariff
of consolidated wind energy projects and (2) a year-on-year decrease
in the figures presented in HKD arising from the depreciation of RMB
against HKD.

85

EEEw RS

HAh A

HMW A 220308 EFBiT > 820224F
19.82 (AT IN0.48E B TE2.4% » =
2B BE 1S AN PR Y - 2023 F H fth ik
AFEEIEBF#HBES.00EB T 8l E
mIHES3SEAB T IRFEEWA2.291E
BT FMEWA125EBTE

Hthiim

HMET A WE2.14EB T 82022 4F
21.84 8B THE 19.70 228 755(90.2% *
FTEBERWEBPIR 2023FHM
EaTECZERWNER066EET H
ETRAEEE YE  BERRENFREF
156 BB T ERWETEZHNAAT
REPEAREMEEEFNTEHE (&
B MHEERAREERAME  BEIR
R EEAREBERHIARTE > B
EUBEIHRPOTHERR AR ARE
HETEXTEMEBIRE WS °

REEFHE

KEFNBIERNRYEER - MERER
RIEERKRE#ERA BENBRABMEN
A 0 2023 ST A 181.98(2 87T »
#2022 FE /13551 BB T8 IN46.47 1=
BITE34.3% © KEFE EAFTEEZHN
(MM BIRIEERIZEE BRI TE ; & (2)
MEBEERANERIETOHRBRE
BHEFEEPEEBLE TR, QAR
MHBEEXRZBFEFSUBEEZTMH
BRI THRINEE-

Annual Report 2023
FR



3

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance costs

Finance costs for 2023 amounted to HK$4,241 million, representing
an increase of HK$351 million or 9.0% from HK$3,890 million in
2022, mainly due to (1) an increase in amount of borrowings; and (2)
commissioning of power generation units, resulting in an increase in
finance costs; which was offset by the effects of (1) the decline in
the average interest rate on borrowings; and (2) a year-on year
decrease in the figures presented in HKD arising from the
depreciation of RMB against HKD.

Interest on borrowings BEEFR
Interest on corporate bonds NEMEFFIE
Interest on loans from related parties A B 5 BRA R
Interest on lease liabilities HESEMNE
Others Hith

MEBER

2023 EMFHFERA42.41EHBTT > 82022
£ 38.90 8B TIE NN 3.51 EATE9.0% »
FEHR)EBERBEIEM ; RQ) AR
ESRMBEERIE M ; HE 7 (1) F9E
EBRNETER, RQARBHBEKERE
BFEELUEE 2 INEMERILE TREIFE o

2023 2022

—_——.— — — = — —

— e —

HK$'000
TETT

—_—<——

HK$"000
THET

4,570,204 4,357,490
91,482 190,109
285,521 132,545
19,342 25,298

74,494 92,370

Less: Interest capitalised in construction in
progress

W RERIREENENFE

5,041,043 4,797,812

(907,620)

(800,406)

4,240,637 3,890,192

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates for 2023 was a profit of HK$1,183
million, mainly due to profit of coal-fired power associates resulting
from a decrease in fuel cost, and share of results of associates for
2022 was a loss of HK$113 million.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures for 2023 was a profit of HK$358
million, mainly due to profit of the joint venture power enterprises
resulting from a decrease in fuel cost, and share of results of joint
ventures for 2022 was a loss of HK$87 million.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for 2023 amounted to HK$3,389 million,
representing an increase of HK$1,483 million or 77.8% from
HK$1,906 million for 2022, mainly due to (1) an increase in the
profit from consolidated coal-fired power plants resulting in an
increase in income tax expenses; and (2) an increase in income tax
expenses for renewable energy projects not entitled to tax
exemption.

Details of the income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out below:

Current income tax — PRC Enterprise
Income Tax
Deferred taxation credit

PSR
IRIERM IR B

ERIFFSMIE — PEIEE

EEEAN AR

FrItiE A

2023 FFTBMEBAA33.89EBT ' &
2022 % 19.06 2B TIE N 14.83 B BT
77.8% o EE AR (1)K B IR IE BB i )
EHEEFRERERIEM; Q) H
SREFBEBEERWESIAHRMERE
FBigm -

B E2023F F2022F12B31HIEEE
PSR EREBEHIIWNT

2023 2022

== =
— =

HK$'000
THET

—_——

HK$°000
THET

3,435,078
(46,476)

2,076,220
(170,646)

3,388,602 1,905,574

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
had no taxable profit or incurred tax losses in Hong Kong for both
years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax rates
applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC under the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEANm R

Operating profit for the year FALEFH
2023
HK$'000
FHET
Operating profit for the year has been arrived R EE R
after deducting the following items: TH&RIRE :
Directors’ remuneration EE=ME
— Fees — & 1,880
— Salaries and bonus — e kiEE 12,562
— Pension costs — R A 436
14,878
Wages, salaries and bonus ITE Frekiis 6,055,367
Pension costs — retirement benefit schemes  BIRA A — BIREF] 518 1,101,023
Termination benefit costs wrIEZEENERA 15,627
Total staff costs BT A 4838 7,186,895
Auditor's remuneration % B AN = 14,595
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses FEERAER AT H 55,675,789
Depreciation and amortisation e B Y 14,720,207
Impairment charges VEAEEES 2,748,698
And after adding the following items: KRB ATIIRIE
Dividend income from FVOCI investee RKEURAEEFEBEEE
companies AHMGERENE/MEE
R E AT REWA 59,690
Government grants BT fE B 800,443
Interest income FEUA 125,119
Sales of by-products H & 8 ZE m 535,125
Exchange gains, net HMEE UL R B RE 66,081
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HENEA B 47,029
Losses on disposal of a joint venture HESERFEIEX (55,806)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BEMERBHNWE
equipment (included in other gains (BEEREMBG
and losses) 124,537
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAESENKEG
(included in other gains and losses) (BEEREMEBER 31,469

Expenses capitalised in construction in
progress:

RERIERNESCHER !

Other staff costs HB8 TR 482,295

Pension costs RIRAAS 74,335

Depreciation and amortisation e B Y 165,139
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 88
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2022
TECCHF
HK$'000
T8t

2,038
10,168
454

12,660

5,586,739
1,031,001
1,193

6,631,593

13,875
65,583,675
14,429,592

1,045,216

57,727
716,602
192,451
663,687

1,993,762

32,137

33,366

90,987

282,829
43,630
122,596



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEAN AR

Profit attributable to owners of the Company KRB HEE NEEFHE

As a result of the above, profit attributable to owners of the MR EMEIE » R AT HEB AE(EFEH
Company increased from approximately HK$7,042 million in 2022 to 2022 & #7042 E B tiE £ 2023 £ 4
approximately HK$11,003 million in 2023, representing a year-on  110.03 &8t > [EILLIEI056.2% °

year increase of 56.2%.

Basic earnings per share SREXRERT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the ZAATEAE AEENESRERZEFNIRE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: UTEREE:

2023 2022
—_EC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET TET

Profit attributable to owners of the Company ~ ASA B A AFE(LFTE 11,003,283

Weighted average number of ordinary BE1TEBRAINE T8
shares in issue LRVl A 810,443,740

Basic earnings per share SREXRET
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Final dividend and closure of register of members

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.587
per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (“2023 Final

Dividend”) (2022: HK$0.376 per share).

Dividends distributed during the year:
2023 Interim, paid — HK$0.328 per share
(2022: HK$0.21 per share)

2022 Final, paid — HK$0.376 per share
(2021: HK$0.045 per share)

Special, approved — HK$0.5 per share
(2022: nil)

KPR EREFEERNDELRFE

EEOHRAEEREE2023F1283181E
FERBBE (M2023FFKARE)) A5
f%0.587 &7 (2022 & : GHZ0.376 B 7T) ©

2023
—E-=

HK$°000
THET

2022

HK$'000
THET

EREDIRMIKRE :
BIR{T 2023 £ AR B —

F20.32878 7T

(20225 : f%0.21 B 7T)
BEIR{T 2022 EREAR B —

Fh0.37678 7T

(20214 : ©h%0.045787T)
EZESRIRE —

S8 0.5787T (2022 F © )

1,577,826 1,010,193

1,808,727 216,470

2,405,222

5,791,775 1,226,663

Dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting year:

Proposed final dividend for 2023 of
HK$0.587 per share (2022: HK$0.376)

BEFERBRERNRS

K 2023 FERHIRG B
FP%0.587 87T
(2022 % : 0.376387T)

2,823,730 1,808,727

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 5 June
2024 ("2024 AGM"), the proposed 2023 Final Dividend will be
distributed on Monday, 22 July 2024 to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 12 June 2024.

The 2023 Final Dividend will be paid in HKD to each shareholder.
However, shareholders may elect to receive the 2023 Final Dividend

in RMB in cash.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EBHENEZERBRAT

FIRER 20246 B5H (BH=) £17M
FEERERFEAG20AERERERS
FHOER > BRI 2023 FE R BB
20247822 H (2H—) Ik T 522024
F6H12H (B 2XFHERBFR
HIARABI IR R MBIARER ©
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Shareholders may elect to receive the entire 2023 Final Dividend at
the average benchmark rate of HKD against RMB as published by the
People’s Bank of China for the five business days preceding the date
of the 2024 AGM (i.e. 5 June 2024) (including the date of the 2024
AGM), but not a part thereof, except that HKSCC Nominees Limited
may elect to receive part of its final dividend in RMB. Details of the
dividend currency election will be included in a circular to be sent to
shareholders by the Company in May 2024 and the dividend
currency election form will be sent to shareholders as soon as
possible after the 2024 AGM.

For determining the entitlement to attend, speak and vote at the
2024 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 31 May 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June 2024 (both days
inclusive), during which no share transfer will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the 2024 AGM, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30 May 2024.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed 2023 Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed on
Wednesday, 12 June 2024 and no share transfer will be registered
on that day. To qualify for the proposed 2023 Final Dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 11 June
2024.

Capital structure management

The Group and the Company manage capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimization of
the debt and equity structures. The Group’s and the Company’s
overall strategy remain consistent as in prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (including
long-term and short-term bank borrowings, corporate bonds and
loans from related parties), cash and cash equivalents, pledged and
restricted bank deposits and equity attributable to owners of the
Company (comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
earnings).

921

EEEw RS

fRER O] IR BB 2024 FE S R IBF A (BD
2024F 6 A5H) BITHEMAMEEXH
(BiE2024FREBFAFRFGER) FEA
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The Board reviews the capital structure on a periodic basis. As part of
the review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the resolution of the
Board, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as by issuance of new debts or repayment of existing debts.

Liquidity and financial resources, borrowings and charge
of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$34,445 million. The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into
account the current operating and business plan of the Group as
well as the banking facilities available to the Group, the Group has
sufficient working capital to enable it to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due at least for the coming twelve
months from the balance sheet date. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2023 denominated
in local currency and foreign currencies amounted to HK$32 million,
RMB3,666 million and US$0.4952 million and a small amount of
Great Britain Pounds (“GBP").

Bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

EFXT TR ERER - (FRRTH—
B EFEERBERNEREG L)
EXERNAR AEERBEEFER
FBBIKMRE S BT R R EER
7 UWBHTHENEEREERTEHE
RRE A o

;ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂa‘%ﬁiﬁ BEREER
B

REBER2023F12B31BEERHER
FEEZAAASEB T EEBRA KEE
AEBBRFMNKE RERFERAER
AEFANIRITHER  AEEE BHEE
E:XHETHPHEEQESZEL X
R+ _(ER BB EE - At » %F
BHVBERRORFESEEERR -

7R2023F 12831 H » LUASH G #E K7 S
FIENREAIREEBYEERS0.32
287t 36.66[ET AR ~ 49528 ET
B L B8HE o

REBEMP2023FK2022F12831HB
BRI REMEENT

2023 2022

== S
e —

HK$'000
TETT

—_—<——

HK$"000
THET

Secured bank loans BERBIRITER 2,026,006 2,150,977
Unsecured bank loans EIRFIRITTER YRR 126,196,157
Corporate bonds NEMES 1,103,480 3,358,440
Loans from related parties R Bk 75 fE =X 5,340,000 6,613,825
164,531,805 138,319,399
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The bank borrowings were repayable as follows: IRITEEW THBERES !

2023

— = — =

—_—

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Within 1 year —FRN EE RTINSV 36,144,481

More than 1 year and within 2 years BiE—F BB EME yyXyyR1: '8 18,570,717
More than 2 years and within 5 years BiAMFEErBERE LYRVWALEN 26,531,050

Over 5 years 818 f 54,195,350 VRT3

(Crerl 128,347,134

The corporate bonds were repayable as follows: NEMESFUN T HREERER

2023 2022
TEBT=HF B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Within 1 year —FR - 2,238,960

More than 1 year and within 2 years B —FERBEME - =

More than 2 years and within 5 years BiAMEEBAIBBAE 1,103,480 1,119,480

1,103,480 3,358,440

The above bank and other borrowings BT REMEEU TS
are secured by: 5B EIER -

Pledge of assets BEER 2,319,159 2,574,925
Note: Certain bank loans were secured by the Group’s buildings, power generating plants and  [fisf : BT RITERUSERRE B 51,877,991 T8
equipment with carrying value of HK$1,877,991,000 (2022: HK$2,155,051,000) and 55 (20224 © 2,155,051 F B 7T) & 441,168 F # 7T
HK$441,168,000 (2022: HK$419,874,000) respectively. (2022 1 419,874 F & T) NBF - EEME KH

IR o

Bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 denominated in 722023 F 12 831 H » LIARM &8 K NS
local currency and foreign currencies amounted to HK$10,301 FI{EMIETREMMEE D5 4103.01E
million, RMB139,758 million and EUR1.20 million respectively. BIT > 1,397.58 BT ARIE R 120 BEUT ©

As at 31 December 2023, bank and other borrowings amounted to 7202312831 H » iRTAREMEEE
HK$10,301 million (2022: HK$24,471 million, GBP129 million) bore  #&103.01{2 & 7t (20224 : 244.71 @74
interest at a range from HIBOR plus 0.55% to HIBOR plus 0.9% per 7T~ 1.2918 %) UN N EHBETEEN
annum, the remaining bank and other borrowings carried interest B IN0.55EZ09EMEF K5 > MER
rates at a range from 1.5% to 4.45% (2022: 0.1% to 4.55%) per TFiRITKREMEEZNF1.5EE 445
annum. (20224 : 0.1 EE 455 ) WEFNKEE o
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As at 31 December 2023, the ratio of the Group’s net debt to
shareholders’ equity was 188.3%, and the ratio of total debt to total
capitalisation was 61.1%. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has a stable capital structure, which can support its future
development plans and operations.

In 2023, the Group's primary sources of funding included proceeds
from borrowings, dividend income, capital contribution by non-
controlling interests, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets and net cash inflows generated
from operating activities, which amounted to HK$93,904 million,
HK$976 million, HK$681 million, HK$177 million and HK$28,869
million, respectively. The Group's funds were primarily used for the
amounts paid for the repayment of borrowings, payments for
purchase of property, plant and equipment, mining rights and right-
of-use assets, as well as interest payment, dividend payment, cash
outflow on acquisition of interest in associates, redemption of
corporate bonds and net cash outflow on acquisition of interest in
subsidiaries, which amounted to HK$68,587 million, HK$38,777
million, HK$5,222 million, HK$3,999 million, HK$3,107 million,
HK$2,180 million, and HK$1,909 million, respectively.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables from contracts
with customers

Accounts receivable FE U BR =R
Notes receivable RN E R

ﬁ/j\'%ﬁl = /\ﬁ%H&EETA

R2023F 128310 AEEFEEHR
HE LR A1883% BABEBEHEEBAX
EERA61.1% c EEA z&%lﬁﬁéle:
EEETE I HRRERITEINEE

2023F > AEBNFEEERKREIEE
BFTEAIE s REWA ~ JEZHI M=
E-HEVE BEAREBNERAREE
FIERERKRETHEENRERAF
%8 DA 939.04E 87T~ 9.76 88T
6.81EBIT 1.77E BT &288.69E &
T AEENESEFTFEAFEEEREN
5 BEYE REKRE  XEZENE
ﬂ%%éiéﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’ﬁxlﬁ S EAFE N Y
RENESHEADIHaNIRERE B
IEI’&TTE%&W%W)%/AW%& Spizks
R EEE > D RIA685.878 BT~ 387.77
BBt ~52.22E %87t ~39.99E BT~
31.071& 87T~ 21.808 B 7T K 19.09(5 &
5T o

FE U AR R
2023

== — S

2022

— e —

e —

HK$'000
TETT

HK$"000
THET

33,024,477
129,005

27,908,433
443,265

Less: loss allowance for trade receivables

B BRI EEE

33,153,482
(327,478)

28,351,698
(140,399)

32,826,004 28,211,299

Trade receivables are generally due within 60 days from the billing
date, except for the portion of wind or photovoltaic power electricity
tariff beyond the local thermal power benchmark tariff. The
settlement of the portion of wind or photovoltaic power electricity
tariff beyond the local thermal power benchmark tariff is subject to
approval by the government and being included in the renewable
energy tariff subsidy directory. Thereafter, funds to the local grid
companies are disbursed by the government, resulting in a relatively
longer time for settlement.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice LU & %R & B ok €0 45 7 FE W R EL fth FE
date included in trade and other receivables at the end of the UWFIIBRAIFEURBERIZEZE QAR RE
reporting period: D

2023 2022
—F-=f C—T--

— =

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET THET

0-30 days 0&30H 10,808,248 13,925,127
31-60 days 31E60H 3,747,475 1,009,613
Over 60 days 60 B 18,597,759 13,416,958

33,153,482 28,351,698

Trade payables FE{TERFR

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date I N AR IR SHIR BIEE B R EMFE
included in trade and other payables at the end of the reporting 1< X I8 A9 AU FE (T BR T 3% 35 2= H HA BV BR &%
period: wakiige

2023 2022

—s-= —s=— =
T = =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT

0-30days 0F30H 4,042,101 5,654,223
31-90 days 31F290H 1,024,761 941,476
Over 90 days 90HM £ 950,111 1,609,684

6,016,973 8,205,383

Average credit term for purchase of goods is 90 days. BETEEA90H -
Key financial ratios of the Group REBNFETFFELEE

Current ratio (times) TENEEER (1)
Quick ratio (times) RENEEE (18)
Net debt to shareholders’ equity ratio (%) FEEHKEED (%)
EBITDA interest coverage (times) Mot EBITDA R SARFEZEL (fF) @
A
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balance of current assets at the end of the
year/balance of current liabilities at the
end of the year

Current ratio =

Quick ratio = (balance of current assets at the end of
the year - balance of inventories at the
end of the year)/balance of current
liabilities at the end of the year

Net debt to = (balance of borrowings at the end of the

shareholders’ year — balance of cash and cash
equity ratio equivalents at the end of the year -

balance of pledged cash at the end of the
year)/balance of equity attributable to
owners of the Company at the end of the
year

EBITDA interest =
coverage

(profit before taxation + interest expenses
+ depreciation and amortisation)/interest
expenses (including capitalized interest)

Note: Excluding non-cash income and expenses, being loss on disposal of assets, impairment

losses and exchange gains and losses.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group collects substantially all of its revenue in RMB and most of
the Group’s expenses, including expenses incurred in its operations
and capital expenditure, are also denominated in RMB. Dividends
receivable from subsidiaries and associates are collected in RMB, HKD
and GBP.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates of
RMB could vary significantly from the current or historical exchange
rates as a result of controls that could be imposed by the Chinese
government. The exchange rates may also be affected by economic
developments, political changes and supply and demand. The
appreciation or devaluation of RMB against HKD and United States
Dollar (“USD") may have positive or negative impact on the results
of operations of the Group.

The functional currency of major project companies of the Group is
RMB, the revenue and expenses are mainly denominated in RMB,
foreign exchange risk mainly arises from borrowings denominated in
HKD. However, certain entities are located in Hong Kong and their
functional currencies are HKD, their foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from balances denominated in RMB and borrowings
denominated in RMB and GBP.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, given there are different functional currencies within the
Group, there is still foreign exchange risk which arises from the
transactions and balances within the Group even after intragroup
eliminations. The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in foreign currency before elimination as at
31 December 2023 are as follows:

Assets

EEEAN AR

5 BRAEBANFEANBENNES
BoWAEAERRNR S RERRIE
o DFEEHEEEINE B - 122023
F12RA318  \HERILUNSEIENER
EENERERNREEDT !

2023
—m——

— e

2022
—

— = ==

HK$'000
THET

HK$°000
TET

UsD x5 (:] 3,533
RMB ARE 17,826,658 16,621,769
HKD BT 1,075 136
GBP B§E 147,849 23
Liabilities afE

RMB AR (LR Rl 33,864,270
HKD BT 14,440 -
GBP gE 100 1,207,797
EUR BlT 10,387 10,505

The Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to
hedge its exposure against changes in exchange rates of the RMB
against HKD and USD.

Events after the balance sheet date

The Group had no significant subsequent event since the end of the
financial period.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, there were certain pending litigations and
claims against the Group. After consulting the legal counsels, the
Directors are of the view that the likelihood of any material adverse
financial impact on the Group is remote, and it is not necessary to
make further provisions for such litigations and claims.

Employees

The Group had 22,203 employees as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
22,340 employees).

The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into employment

contracts with all of their employees. The compensation of
employees mainly includes salaries and performance-based bonuses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERERS

A. CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY
AND GOVERNANCE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) strives to
ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) meet
high standards of safety, performance and corporate governance.

The Board has the ultimate authority over, and oversight of, the
Group’s operations and regards good corporate governance as a
critical element in the drive to improve the Group's performance and
achieve the Group's vision of being a world class energy provider and
one of the most admired employers in China.

In 2023, CR Power has adopted all of the principles and complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code") as contained in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix
14) to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the
deviations set act as follows:

Following the retirement of Ms. Wang Xiao Bin as the Company
Secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with effect
from 8 February 2023, the Company had no Company Secretary for
the period from 8 February 2023 to 23 April 2023, and was not able
to meet the requirements under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. With
effect from 24 April 2023, Mr. So Yiu Fung has been appointed as
the Company Secretary and the Company has re-complied with the
relevant requirements under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules.

Since the re-designation of Mr. Shi Baofeng from the position of the
President of the Company (the “President”) to the Chairman of the
Board with effect from 24 April 2023, the position of the President
has become vacant. Mr. Shi, the Chairman of the Board, assumes
the interim duties and responsibilities of the President and therefore,
the Company did not comply with Code Provision C.2.1. The
Company is endeavouring to identify suitable candidate(s) with
appropriate professional qualifications or relevant expertise to be
appointed as the President as soon as practicable. The Company will
make further announcement(s) in relation to the above matters as
and when appropriate.

The following summarizes the Company’s corporate governance
practices and explains the implementation of recommended best
practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A.1 Corporate Strategy, Business Model and Culture

The Board is responsible for the optimization of the Company’s
corporate governance, and is ultimately accountable for the
Company’s strategic planning, operating activities and
operating results.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the oversight and review
of management, administration and the overall governance of
CR Power and its strategic direction. The Board plays a central
supporting and supervisory role in CR Power’s corporate
governance structure, provides leadership and guidance to the
Group's activities, and oversees the execution of the Group’s
business strategies.

This includes:

»  protecting shareholders’ interests by seeking to ensure
that CR Power’s strategic direction provides and creates
value for its shareholders;

»  establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of those goals;

> authorising policies and overseeing the implementation of
these policies; and

»  seeking to ensure that CR Power’s internal control and
reporting procedures are complete, effective and abide by
laws and regulations as well as business ethics.

The Board should ensure that management can effectively
perform its duties. The Board’s policy is to regularly monitor the
effectiveness of management policies and decisions, including
the implementation of strategies.

The Board oversees the implementation and operation of a risk
management system. In addition to fulfilling its obligations to
generate rewards for shareholders who invest in CR Power, the
Board recognises that CR Power has responsibilities to its
customers, employees and suppliers and to the communities in
which CR Power operates.
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In carrying out its responsibilities and powers as set out in the
Board charter, the Board will at all times recognise its ultimate
responsibility to:

»  maintain good corporate governance standards;
>  perform duties honestly, fairly and diligently;

» supervise safety, health and environmental issues
associated with the Company’s operations;

>  establish and reinforce a “zero-tolerance” culture against
corruption;

»  comply with laws and regulations;
> avoid conflicts of interest;

» enable the Company to become an excellent corporate
citizen; and

»  gain and maintain the social community’s respect for the
Company.

Non-executive Directors should use all reasonable endeavours
to ensure that CR Power’s operations, business and transactions
are conducted in accordance with the law and the highest
standards of propriety.

The Company has set forth matters that require the Board’s
approval in its Board charter.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the above principles and the Code provisions A.1.1 and
A.1.2 as described below.

A.1.1 The Board has established the Company’s purpose, values
and strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the
Company’s culture are aligned. All directors act with
integrity, lead by example, and promote the desired
culture. Such culture instils and continually reinforces
across the organization values of acting lawfully, ethically
and responsibly.

A12 The "Chairman’s Statement” on pages 13 to 19 of the
Annual Report provides a summary of the Group’s
performance and future prospects on how the Group will
preserve value over the longer term and our strategies for
delivering the Group’s objectives.
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A.2 Corporate Governance Functions

B.1

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the Board charter including
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company, and duties performed by the Board under Code
provision A.2.1.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code provision A.2.1 as described below:

A2.1 The Board charter includes the duties specified in the code
provision. The Board performed the corporate governance
duties set out in the Board charter including determining
corporate governance policy (if any), etc.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND
NOMINATION

Board Composition, Succession and Evaluation

The Board’s composition is determined in accordance with the
following principles, the Articles and relevant governance
requirements:

»  the Company should appoint at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors and maintain Independent Non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board,;

>  the role of Chairman and President should be held by
separate persons;

> the Board should comprise of Directors with an
appropriate range and mix of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity;

>  the performance of the Board and its members should be
reviewed regularly and objectively; and

> all Directors must submit themselves for re-election at
regular intervals and at least in every three years.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 10 Directors,
3 of whom are Executive Directors, 3 are Non-executive
Directors and 4 are Independent Non-executive Directors. The
number of Independent Non-executive Directors complied with
the requirements of Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The list of Directors as at the date of this report and their
biographies are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” Section on page 20 to page 41 of this Annual
Report, and are available on the Company’s website
(Www.cr-power.com).
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Set out below are details of the composition of the Board and
its committees as at the date of this report:

RAEABREAH EFERETEE

Committee Membership
ZEEME
Audit

Board  Sustainability

Designation Committee
AREER
Director ERERT £Eg
Shi Baofeng FPEIE ED, C M
Zhang Junzheng REH ED, VC
Song Kui R ED, VIC
Zhou Bo B NED
Zhang Yingzhong SRAEH NED
Chen Guoyong Pl NED
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF INED
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung $2R 2 INED M
Jack So Chak Kwong BEN INED C
Yang Yuchuan BE INED
Notes:
C: Chairman

ED: Executive Director

NED:  Non-executive Director

INED: Independent Non-executive Director
M: Member

VC:  Vice Chairman

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principles and Code provisions B.1.1 and B.1.4 and
the recommended best practice B.1.5 and B.1.6 as described as
follows:

B.1.1 The Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for
more than one-third of the members of the Board and
were expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclosed the names of the Directors.

B.1.2 The Company posts the names and biographical details of
the Board members on its website (www.cr-power.com),
with their designations in the Board clearly stated. The
Company also posts on the website of the HKEx an
updated list of its Directors identifying their roles and
functions and whether they are Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and took
into account the objectives set out in the policy in
reviewing its Board composition to ensure that it has a
balanced composition of skills and experience in line with
the requirements of the Company’s businesses.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board
and has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism. Taking into account the following
channels, the Board considered that the Company had in
place mechanisms which remain effective to ensure strong
independence of the Board:

» A sufficient number of four Independent Non-
executive Directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and all of them continue to devote
adequate time contribution to the Company;

»  All Independent Non-executive Directors share their
views and opinions through Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings with heads of core
departments and particular business units would be
invited to join such meetings on Independent Non-
executive Directors’ requests;

»  Site visits are arranged for Independent Non-
executive Directors from time to time to enhance
their understanding of the Company’s operations
and development;

During the year, the Independent Non-executive
Directors visited the Group’s certain projects in
Zhejiang Province including a coal-fired power plant,
an offshore wind farm and a fishery complementary
photovoltaic projects. The site visit enable the
Independent Non-executive Directors to meet with
the Company’s front-line staff and local management
team and also gained first-hand information of the
power industry in China.

»  Annual meeting between the Chairman and all
Independent Non-executive Directors without
presence of other Directors providing effective
platform for the Chairman to listen independent
views on various issues concerning the Group; and
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B.2

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

B.1.5

B.1.6

» Independent professional advice would be provided
to Directors upon reasonable request to assist them
to perform their duties to the Company.

Board evaluation is conducted on a regular basis. This
evaluation could be conducted by consulting each Director
regarding the attendance of the Board and Committee
meetings, the director training, Board diversity and
improvements.

In the year under review, none of the Independent Non-
executive Directors held cross-directorships or had
significant links with other Directors through involvements
in other companies. Please refer to page 26 to page 31 of
this Annual Report for each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors’ biographies.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board’s Nomination Committee sets and reviews the
criteria for new Director appointments having regard to the
overall composition of the Board.

The Board seeks to ensure that each Director:

>

>

is a person of integrity;

has sufficient time available and abilities to perform his or
her role effectively;

brings an independent and questioning mind to his or her
role which enables him or her to exercise sound judgment;

enhances the breadth and depth of skills and knowledge
of the Board as a whole; and

enhances the experience and diversity of the Board as a
whole.
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During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the above principles and Code provisions B.2.1 to B.2.4 as
described as follows:

B.2.1

B.2.2

B.2.3

B.2.4

Directors’ attendance of Board meetings and Committee
meetings is set out on pages 118, 106, 117, 129 and 131
of this Annual Report. Each of the Executive Directors and
Non- executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) ensured that he/she gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

There is no fixed service term of each Non-executive
Director. All Directors are subject to regular retirement (at
least once in every three years) and retiring Directors are
eligible for re-election. The staggered structure enables
the Board to change its composition in an orderly manner
over time while maintaining leadership, stability and
continuity, and allows for regular evaluation of the mix of
skills and experience, as required.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent
Non- executive Directors, Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, Dr.
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung and Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong,
have served more than 9 years. The three Directors have
not engaged in any executive management of the Group.
As Independent Non-executive Directors with in-depth
understanding of the Company’s operations and business,
they have expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the years,
and they continue demonstrating firm commitment to the
roles. The Directors noted their positive contributions to
the development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed
contributions supported by their skill, expertise and
gualification and from their active participation at
meetings. The Board considers that the long services of
them would not affect their exercise of independent
judgment and is satisfied that they have the required
character, integrity and experience to continue fulfilling
the role of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Board considers these three Directors to be independent
and believes that the continued tenure of these three
Directors brings considerable stability to the Board.

As abovementioned, as at the date of this report, three
out of the four Independent Non-executive Directors have
served more than 9 years; and Mr. Yang Yuchuan has
been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
since September 2021.
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B3 RRZEET

B.3 Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee which
comprises of 5 members, including 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors, 1 Non-executive Director and Chairman of
the Board. In 2023, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting during which it performed its duties and
responsibilities, including inter alia, the review of composition
and performance of the Board and the policy for nomination of
Directors and the assessment of independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. The attendance record of the members
of the Nomination Committee during the year under review is
set out as follows:

Nomination Committee Members

Shi Baofeng (Chairman) SPHEIE (F/F)
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung BRI

Jack So Chak Kwong BRE

Zhang Yingzhong (Note 1) SRAER (FIEE1)

KNBRBIRBREZES /BB
B BiE3IBRBIULIIFNTEST 18
EHTTESEHNEETZTEFE - E"ZOZB
FOoRZREESHAHTINEZ
SELrETTERERET ,HJ:F"j
ERTEEgMNEMRRERURE
ERBEBRRBIUIFERITESNSE
UL RBEE G EN(CIE
FEEMNHFELESIWMT

Number of
meetings
attended/
number of Attendance
meetings held rate
HE BT
BERE HEE
11 100%
1/1 100%
11 100%
11 100%

Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yingzhong was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 18 October 2023.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principles and Code provisions B.3.1 to B.3.4 as described
as follows:

B.3.1 The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to formulate and implement the policy for nominating
candidates for appointment of new directors or for re-
election by shareholders of the Company based on criteria
such as reputation for integrity, accomplishment and
experience, professional and educational background, and
potential time commitments, and to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
(which is reviewed regularly and updated where necessary)
have incorporated the specific duties set out in the Code
provision.
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B33

B.3.4
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In considering the new appointment of Directors, the
Nomination Committee follows the nomination
procedures and the process for nomination of directorship
under the nomination policy and assesses candidates on
criteria such as perspective, integrity, independent
thinking, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively
and makes recommendations to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com)
and the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk).

The Company ensures that the Nomination Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

Where necessary, the Nomination Committee may seek
independent professional advice at the Company's
expense, to perform its responsibilities.

If the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an Independent Non-executive Director at the general
meeting, it will set out in the circular to shareholders and/
or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting:

»  the process used for identifying the individual and
the reasons why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it considers
the individual to be independent;

»  if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, the reasons why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the board;

» the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

» how the individual contributes to diversity of the
Board.

The Company has established a nomination policy of
Board members in the Board Charter. Pursuant to the
nomination policy, the Company strives to assure that
nomination of candidates to stand for election as Board
members must go through formal, prudent and
transparent procedures. The Board is required to evaluate
the overall composition of the Board and the skills of
members on a regular basis, in order to prepare succession
plans, facilitate smooth handover and to maintain
efficiency at all times. Further details of the nomination
policy are available on the Company’s website
(Www.cr-power.com).
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The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members which is available on the Company’s website
(www.cr-power.com). The Company strives to achieve diversity
of the Board by endorsing the principle that the Board should
have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Company
welcomes a very diverse population of people that reflects the
range of cultures and background spanned by its operations.
These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination
Committee will consider, and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the policy and review such objectives
to ensure appropriateness of the objectives and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy and its
implementation to ensure its continued effectiveness.

When selecting the candidates for Directors, the Nomination
Committee considered the nomination policy and took into
account the diversity aspects (including without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational background) as set out
under the board diversity policy. As a result, the Nomination
Committee considered that the appointments of Directors were
appropriate and that there is sufficient diversity (including
gender diversity) at the Board level. Recognising the importance
and benefits of gender diversity, the Board will continue to take
proactive measures to identify suitable candidates to enhance
gender diversity among members of the Board.

Measurable objectives include (i) at least one third of the Board
shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at least one
Director is female and (iii) at least one Director shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications. For
the year of 2023, all the objectives are fulfilled.

The Group mainly invests, develops, operates and manages
power plants and coal mines. Due to the industrial business
nature, a majority of our workforce is male. Given the situation
of the Company, it may be challenging for the Company to set
a measurable objective for achieving gender diversity at
workforce level. Nevertheless, the Group is mindful to improve
gender diversity in the workforce when recruiting and selecting
key management and other personnel across the Group's
operations.
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As of 31 December 2023, the total number of senior
management of Group is 13, among which the number of
female senior management is 0 (0%), and the number of male
senior management is 13 (100%); and the total number of
employees of the Group is 22,203, among which the number
of female employees is 3,121(14.05%), and the number of
male employees is 19,082 (85.95%). Please also refer to the
Sustainable Development Report 2023 for details of the existing
gender ratios in the workforce of the Group (including senior
management).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES,
DELEGATION AND BOARD
PROCEEDINGS

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role in the
Company’s corporate governance structure, provides leadership
and guidance to the Group’s activities and development and
oversees the work of the management and its execution of the
Company’s business strategies. Given the essential unitary
nature of the Board, Non-executive Directors have the same
duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as Executive
Directors.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions C.1.1 to C.1.8 as
described as follows:

C.1.1 All newly appointed Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of their
appointment in order to ensure that they will have a
proper understanding of the operations and business of
the Company and that they will be fully aware of their
personal responsibilities under the statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory
requirements, and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

Mr. Song Kui, Mr. Zhou Bo and Mr. Zhang Yingzhong,
being the Directors appointed during 2023, obtained the
legal advice referred in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on
29 May 2023, 27 October 2023 and 24 October 2023
respectively and each of them has confirmed that he
understood his obligations as a Director.
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C.1.2 Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-

executive Directors) actively participated in Board meetings
of the Company. The Company’s Audit and Risk
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Sustainability Committee comprise a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Directors were encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development programs at the
Company’s expense to remain abreast of changes and
developments impacting the business of the Company.

The roles of Independent Non-executive Directors also
include providing their independent views to the Board
and management on business proposals and strategies
and supporting the implementation of these strategies.
Independent Non-executive Directors shall take lead in
Board meetings in the event of any conflicts of interest.
They also scrutinise and monitor senior management'’s
performance in meeting goals and objectives. During the
year, the Independent Non-executive Directors also
examined the Group’s operations to broaden their
knowledge of the Group’s business.

C.1.3 The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in

Appendix C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10) to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with their obligations regarding
dealings in securities of the Company under the Model
Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines for
senior management and employees in certain functions in
respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company
for their strict compliance. The Company issued notices to
all Directors, senior management and relevant employees
reminding them to comply with the restriction on dealing
of securities of the Company under the above code and
guidelines 60 days prior to the publication of the annual
results and 30 days prior to the publication of the interim
results.

C.1.4 The Company's Executive and Non-executive Directors

(including Independent Non-executive Directors)
participated in various continuous professional
development programs to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to help ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors are
encouraged to participate in professional training
programs and the Company also organizes and funds
such training programs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
participated in training programs regarding Directors '
responsibilities and duties and examined the Company’s
operations. The Company has received the Directors’ training
records, which are summarised as follows:

EEERES

HE2023F12B31HILEFE &5
2ETHBESEHENEIIEEL
ERTRABNEE LS o AT
BWREEERAMEIEE HFER
BRI

Training

on recent
development of
the Listing Rules,
corporate

Site visits to
thermal

power plants,
renewable
power projects or
other operations

governance
and Directors’
responsibilities

BERLHRA - BHERANNEESH
rESARESFER B4 ERER
RSN | HHEMER
Shi Baofeng (Note 1) Big (fisx1) v v
Zhang Junzheng RER v4 v
Song Kui (Note 2) R (Fi5E2) Y4 v
Zhou Bo (Note 3) B8 (BiEE3) v v
Zhang Yingzhong (Note 4) sRAEH (FiisE4) v v
Chen Guoyong PRE = v v
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF v v
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung BRE Vv v
Jack So Chak Kwong BREN v v
Yang Yuchuan (Note 5) BE (FEEES) v v
Wang Xiao Bin (Note 6) ERNV A EL) v —
Wang Chuandong (Note 7) T (EE7) " —
Liu Guixin (Note 8) 2 &% (isks) v v
Notes: 5T
1. Mr. Shi Baofeng resigned as the President of the Company and was appointed as 1. B ERIAARER N EZTAE

the Chairman of the Board with effect from 24 April 2023.

2. Mr. Song Kui was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 23 May 2023.

3. Mr. Zhou Bo was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 18 October 2023.

4. Mr. Zhang Yingzhong was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 18 October 2023.

5. Mr. Yang Yuchuan was appointed as an Authorized Representative with effect
from 8 February 2023.

6. Ms. Wang Xiao Bin retired on an Executive Director, the Senior Vice President, an
Authorized Representative and the Company Secretary of the Company with
effect from 8 February 2023.

7. Mr. Wang Chuandong resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 24 April 2023.

8. Mr. Liu Guixin resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 18 October 2023.
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C15

C.1.6

C17

C.1.8

Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of
their appointments, and on a periodic basis, the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments, with the
identity of the public companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved. Such disclosures was made
annually, and one may refer to pages 20 to 31 to this
annual report for further details.

Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors actively participated in Board meetings
and Committee meetings on which they serve. In order to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of
Shareholders, the Executive Directors participated in
roadshows and investor meetings to meet with
institutional investors during the year. As laid out in the
attendance table in C.5.1 on page 118 of this Annual
Report, majority of the Directors attended the 2023 AGM.
The Company sets the date of the AGM at the beginning
of a year so all Directors are encouraged to attend the
AGM to enhance communication with Shareholders. For
the Company’s report on communication with
Shareholders, please refer to page 134 to 140 of the
Annual Report.

Independent Non-executive Directors and other Non-
executive Directors actively participated in Board meetings
and Committee meetings and made a positive
contribution to the development of the Company’s
strategy and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments.

The Company has arranged corporate liability insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against its Directors.
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C.2 The Chairman and the President

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code Principle and Code provisions C.2.2 to C.2.9 except
for the deviation from Code provision C.2.1 as described below:

c.2.1

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the President has been clearly established and set
out in writing. Under Code provision C.2.1, the role of
the Chairman and the President should be separate to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The
Chairman'’s primary responsibilities include deciding on
the meeting schedule and agenda, formulating Board
policies, ensuring Board effectiveness, promoting the
Company and maintaining the Company’s corporate
governance. Whereas the President is delegated
authority from, and is responsible to, the Board for
managing the Group's business, including the
implementation of the strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board.

Mr. Wang Chuandong resigned as the Chairman of the
Board and a Non-executive Director on 24 April 2023
and Mr. Shi Baofeng was re-designated as the
Chairman of the Board on the even date. Following
such re-designation, the position of the President has
become vacant. Mr. Shi, being an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Board, will assume the interim
duties and responsibilities of the President. In order to
comply with Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
Company is endeavouring to identify suitable
candidate(s) with appropriate professional qualifications
or relevant expertise to be appointed as the President
of the Company as soon as practicable. The Company
will make further announcement(s) in relation to the
above matters as and when appropriate.

During the period under review and up to the date of
this annual report, none of the members of the Board
has any connections (including financial, business,
family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other (including between the
Chairman and the President).
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C22

C23

All Directors were properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings. Any enquiries and requests from the
Directors were followed up and responded to by the
management of the Company in a timely manner.

The Board papers contained sufficient details and Directors
were given reasonable time to review the contents before
the meetings. All Directors who were present at the Board
meetings received adequate information, which must be
accurate, clear, complete and reliable, in a timely manner,
prior to the meetings.

C.2.4 One of the Chairman’s responsibilities is to provide

C25

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

leadership for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman, with the
help of other Executive Directors and Company Secretary,
is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each Board meeting taking into account,
where appropriate, any matters proposed by other
Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman
should delegate this responsibility to a designated Director
or the Company Secretary in the event of his absence at a
Board meeting.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established. The Chairman meets regularly with
Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss, among
others, suggestions and feedback with regard to Board
and corporate governance practices and procedures and
areas for improvement.
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C.2.6 The Chairman encourages all Directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and takes the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of
the Company. The Chairman also encourages Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allows
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensures that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus.

C.2.7 The Chairman, Mr. Shi Baofeng, held a meeting with the
Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors or
management in December 2023.

C.2.8 The Chairman ensures that appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with shareholders and
that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole.

C.2.9 The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors and ensures constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors.
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C.3 Management Functions

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions C.3.1 to C.3.3 as
described below:

C.3.1 The Board is mainly responsible for formulating and
approving the business strategies, objectives, policies and
plans of the Group, and monitoring the execution of the
Group’s strategies. It is also responsible for overseeing the
operational and financial performance of the Group and
establishing appropriate risk control policies and
procedures in order to ensure that the strategic objectives
of the Group are achieved. In addition, the Board is also
responsible for improving the corporate governance
structure and enhancing communications with
shareholders.

The Board delegates its management and administration
functions to management and gives clear directions as to
the powers of management at the same time, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on the Company’s behalf.

C.3.2 The Board charter has laid out clearly the role of the
Board, including matters which are reserved for Board
approval and the functions delegated to management.
The Board charter is reviewed regularly and amended
where necessary to take into account of any changes in
law and governance practices as well as any changes in
business operations.

C.3.3 The Company has formal letter of appointment for all
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.
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C.4 Board committees

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code principle and Code provisions C.4.1 and C.4.2 as
described below:

C.4.1 The Company has established written terms of reference
for the Committees (namely, Audit and Risk, Nomination,
Remuneration and Sustainability Committees) of the
Board. Details on the duties and terms of reference of the
Board Committees are available on the Company's
website (www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx website
(www.hkexnews.hk).

C.4.2 The terms of reference of each Board Committee require
it to report back to the Board on its decisions and
recommendations.

In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings held
as mentioned on pages 106, 131 and 129 of this Annual
Report, the Sustainability Committee also held one
meeting in 2023. The attendance record of the members
of the Sustainability Committee during the year under
review is set out as follows:

EEERES

C4 EFTRTHNEZET

REBEFE > KRB REESFTH
RAVESTAESC C.4.1 & C.4.2 > HEut
(I

C41 ARBIUEBFANBIIEEGE
THZES BIEZERR 18
BT AIHEEREELZES)
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NS R ESEE N AR B
4 (www.cr-power.com) K B3 PRy
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MERAANEFGERRERE
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i ©

PRARFEREI106EF131ER
129BRENIEREZES H
MEEeMEZERBEED
RN AFEEREEZES
R2023F M BH—RFE A
FEZEZEENENEESF
ErHEaEaEsmT

Number of
meetings
attended/number
of meetings held Attendance rate
HE/
Sustainability Committee Members BITEERY HER
Jack So Chak Kwong (Chairman) FEL (ER) 11 100%
Shi Baofeng (Note 1) SPE I (FHEE1) 0/ 0%
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung wREE 1/1 100%
Wang Chuandong (Note 2) IER(HE2) - -
Liu Guixin (Note 3) 25 (H5E3) - -
Notes: B EE -
1. Mr. Shi Baofeng was appointed a member of the Sustainability Committee 1. HEREEZOAAFALES
with effect from 24 April 2023. BE®%8 > B2023F4824 B4 °
2. Mr. Wang Chuandong resigned as a member of the Sustainability 2. IERAERETAREZREAY
Committee with effect from 24 April 2023. £8 > B2023F 482485 -
3. Mr. Liu Guixin resigned as a member of the Sustainability Committee 3. HEREEREIIREEREZES

with effect from 18 October 2023.

The major responsibilities of the Sustainability Committee
include reviewing, and making recommendations to the
Board on, the Company’s policy and performance in
relation to the environmental protection, health, safety,
community relations and sustainability issues.
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TtEE/RS
C.5 Conduct of Board Proceedings and Supply of and C5 EFEREEFRENRERE
Access to Information A
In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with REEFE > XATEIEETTHI
the Code principle and Code provisions C.5.1 to C.5.10, as JR A EASFRME X C5.1EC5.10 » 1
described as follows: T
C5.1 Pursuant to code provision C.5.1, meetings of the Board CoIMRBBECSMETAIGRY » EF
should be held at least four times a year at approximately ggReFRVEASZTHER
quarterly intervals. During the year of 2023, the Board HNEFRIT—RN2023FE
held a total of nine Board meetings. Each meeting N EEFEHBBTNARESSE
involved the active participation in person of a majority of R BRNEREEARBLE
Directors entitled to be present online or offline. The BEEEENESHESIAFE L
former and current Directors’ attendance at the meetings HE - AERREESHELR
of the Board, the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM") FEEFEZEE REEAFKX
and extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") during BREREFRARENERILT

the year is as follows:

Attendance
rate of board
Number meetings
of board during the
meetings office of Attendance of Attendance of
attended directorship the AGM the EGM
HE (EHRESHRE
EXggE EXgEd HE HE
RE HEX KEBFAT BREREHIAE
Executive Directors RTER
Shi Baofeng (Note 1) SPEIE (1) 7/9 78% v v
Zhang Junzheng REL 9/9 100% v v
Song Kui (Note 2) RE (fiFE2) 4/6 67% v -
Wang Xiao Bin (Note 3) EVALEE) 17 100% - -
Non-executive Directors ERITER
Zhou Bo (Note 4) AR (KizE4) 22 100% - -
Zhang Yingzhong (Note 5) RAEF (FiEEs) 22 100% - -
Chen Guoyong PREIS 99 100% v v
Wang Chuandong (Note 6)  EfE## (fftsE6) 2/4 50% - -
Liu Guixin (Note 7) HEENEY) 5/7 71% v v
Independent Non-executive BIIFRITESR
Directors
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF 79 78% v -
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung wEIS 5/9 56% v -
Jack So Chak Kwong BRES 5/9 56% v v
Yang Yuchuan (Note 8) BEN (fiEE8) 9/9 100% v v
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Notes:

1. Mr. Shi Baofeng resigned as the President of the Company and was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 24 April 2023.

2. Mr. Song Kui was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 23 May 2023.

3. Ms. Wang Xiao Bin retired as an Executive Director, the Senior Vice
President, an Authorized Representative and the Company Secretary of
the Company with effect from 8 February 2023.

4. Mr. Zhou Bo was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 18 October 2023.

5. Mr. Zhang Yingzhong was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 18 October 2023.

6. Mr. Wang Chuandong resigned as the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 24 April 2023.

7. Mr. Liu Guixin resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 18 October 2023.

8. Mr. Yang Yuchuan was appointed as an Authorized Representative with

effect from 8 February 2023.

In 2023, arrangements were in place to ensure that all
Directors were given an opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board is
supported by four committees, namely the Audit and Risk
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability
Committee to ensure that it is well equipped to discharge
its responsibilities. The terms of reference of each
committee are updated regularly to take account of
changes in the rules and regulations and governance
practices. The chairperson of respective committees report
to the Board regularly and make recommendations on
matters discussed when appropriate. Senior management
of the Company may attend committee meetings upon
invitation by the chairpersons of the committees.

In the year under review, notice of at least 14 days was
given for regular Board meeting, giving all Directors an
opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. The Board aims to set dates
of regular meetings, AGM and site visits at the start of
each year, so that all Directors can make proper
arrangements to ensure attendance of the meetings and
visits.

C.5.4 Duly appointed meeting secretaries attended all the Board

meetings and Board Committee meetings in 2023.
Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees were kept by the Company Secretary or duly
appointed personnel and were arranged to be reviewed
by the Directors present at the meetings before they were
signed by the chairperson of the respective meetings.
Such minutes will be made available by the Company for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director when he/she deems necessary.
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C55

C5.6

C5.7

5.8

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees recorded in detail the matters considered by
the Board or Board Committees and decisions reached at
meeting, including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of
minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees were sent to all Directors for their comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after
the Board or Board Committees meetings were held.

The Board charter sets out the policy that Directors,
especially Non-executive Directors should be provided with
sufficient resources in the furtherance of their duties as
Board/Committees members, including access to
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company'’s expense.

Physical board meetings, as opposed to written
resolutions, were held to consider matters in which a
substantial shareholder or Director had a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material. At these physical
board meetings, Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, had no material interest
in the transaction were present. Directors who had a
conflict of interest were abstained from voting.

In respect of regular Board meetings and Committees
meetings, the Company’s policy is to provide at least a 14-
day notice prior to the meeting setting out the intended
agenda. An agenda and the related Board and
Committees papers are delivered in full to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting or Committee meeting.

C.5.9 To enable Directors to make decisions based upon the

related data on hand, management is required to provide
adequate, complete and reliable information and provide
a briefing to the Board in respect of the matters and issues
under consideration. The Company supplied Directors
with monthly management reports to keep Board
members informed of the latest development and
performance of the Company. The Board and Directors
also have separate and independent access to the
Company’ s senior management.

C5.10 All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers

and related materials. Queries from Directors were also
promptly and fully responded.
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C.6 COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year under review, the role of Company Secretary
was taken by Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, who was also the former
Executive Director and Senior Vice President of the Company
until 8 February 2023, and she then ceased to be the Company
Secretary due to retirement. Following the retirement of Ms.
Wang as the Company Secretary, the Company had no
Company Secretary until 23 April 2023 and was not be able to
meet Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and the above Code
Provisions C.6.1 to C.6.4 during the period. In view of this, the
Company has identified the suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy of the Company Secretary as soon as practicable and
the Board accordingly appointed Mr. So Yiu Fung as the
Company Secretary on 24 April 2023 in order to fulfil the
requirements of the Listing Rules to ensure compliance by the
Company with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and the above
Code provisions C.6.1 to C.6.4. Mr. So’s duties as Company
Secretary include ensuring good information flow among the
Directors and that board policy, procedures and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations were followed.

The primary contact person of the Company with Mr. So is Mr.
Gao Li, the Chief Financial Officer.

Mr. So currently serves as the principal company secretarial
director of CR Corporate Affairs Limited. He is currently also the
company secretary of certain listed companies including China
Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
1515), China Resources Building Materials Technology Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1313) , China Resources Land Limited
(Stock Code: 1109), China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services
Limited (Stock Code: 1209) and CR Pharmaceutical (Stock
Code: 3320). Prior to that, Mr. So served as the deputy finance
director of the capital markets team of China Resources Land
Limited (Stock Code: 1109), the senior company secretarial
officer of the legal department of CRH, and had also worked
for corporate finance advisory firms. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in civil engineering from The University of Hong Kong,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. So has over 17 years of experience in
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, company secretary
and accounting.

In 2023, Mr. So attended at least 15 hours of relevant

professional training which complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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D. AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL ANDRISK D. EZ - AEZEREAKRE

D.1

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

MANAGEMENT
Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects. It is also the Board's responsibility to
oversee the preparation of the annual accounts which give a
true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and
cash flows for the year.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions D.1.1 to D.1.4 as
described as follows:

D.1.1 Directors were provided with financial information and the
related information of the Group enabling them to make
an informed assessment before the publication of the
interim results and the annual results, respectively.

D.1.2 To enable Directors to discharge their duties under Rule
3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, senior
management is required to provide adequate, complete
and reliable information and provide briefing to the Board
in respect of the matters and issues under consideration.
The Company supplied the Board with monthly
management reports to keep Board members informed of
the latest development and performance of the Group.
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D.1.3 The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
overseeing the preparation of financial statements of each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the
operating results and financial conditions of the Group
during such period. More information about the external
auditor’s responsibilities is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 141 to 148 of this Annual
Report. In preparing the financial reports for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and prepared accounts on a
going concern basis. The Company does not foresee any
uncertainties in its ability to continue as a going concern.

D.1.4 The Directors have acknowledged that it is their
responsibilities to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual report,
interim reports and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, reports to regulators as well as
other information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The Company has not resolved to announce and publish
financial results on a quarterly basis and has not adopted
recommended best practices D.1.5 and D.1.6.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems for
the Group and to review their effectiveness to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets. To this end,
risk management and internal control systems have been
established to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage or mitigate risks of failure
to achieve business and ESG objectives. The Board oversees the
senior management in design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems and the
senior management have provided a confirmation to the Board
on the effectiveness of these systems for 2023.
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In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions D.2.1 to D.2.7 and has
taken into consideration recommended best practices D.2.8 to
D.2.9 as described as follows:

D.2.1 The Company’s target is to establish an efficient and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Company emphasizes on professional integrity and
high business ethics. 22,203 managerial officers and staff
signed a declaration on compliance with the code of
ethics.

The Company and its subsidiaries provide regular training
to its management and staff. The training sessions do not
only cover the technical and operational aspects of our
businesses, but also on business ethics, Listing Rules,
corporate laws and regulations and internal controls.

The Group has an internal audit department which is
responsible for the monitoring of the Group’s internal
control. The internal audit department has unrestricted
access and authority to review the information on the
business and internal control matters of the Group. The
Chief Audit Officer reports to the Audit and Risk
Committee, and may directly report to the chairman of
the Audit and Risk Committee when necessary (where
sensitive content is involved). Also, he administratively
reports to the President. The internal auditors can employ
external resources when necessary. In 2023, the internal
audit department completed internal audits and follow-up
audits on a number of subsidiaries and branches of the
Group, and presented their findings and recommendations
to the Audit and Risk Committee and senior management
of the Company.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions) of the Group. The Board
believes that in order to manage the risk of failure to
achieve the Group’s goals and objectives to the maximum
extent, the Group should improve continuously its risk
management and internal control systems.
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D.2.2 In March 2023, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed

the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s internal audit function, accounting and
financial reporting function and believes that the Group
should monitor on an ongoing basis its total resources in
the accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting, and continue to increase its
investment and budgets for staff recruitment, training
programmes and information technology system.

D.2.3 The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee,

reviews annually the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company and its
subsidiaries, such review considers:

»  the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks (including ESG risks) since the last review, and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment;

» the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks) and the internal control system,
and the work of the internal audit function;

»  the report of the monitoring results to the Board
semi-annually that enables it to assess control of the
Company and the effectiveness of the risk
management;

»  any possible significant control failings or weaknesses
that have been identified and the extent to which
they have caused unforeseeable outcomes or
contingencies that had or might have, or may in the
future have, a material impact on the Company’s
financial performance or condition; and

» the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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D.2.4 In the year under review, the Company complied with the
risk management and internal control Code Provisions
D.2.4(a) to D.2.4(e) as described as follows:

(a

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

EHBNHERERAR

The Board has delegated to senior management of
the Company the responsibility to design, operate
and monitor its risk management and internal
control systems for identifying and evaluating the
risks and probable exposures faced by the Group.
Key risks, control measures and management actions
are continually identified, reviewed and monitored
by the management. The internal auditor assists and
guides the management in the formulation of risk
policies and processes to effectively identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks. The management has
established a risk identification and management
process.

The senior management is accountable to the Board
for providing assurance on managing and monitoring
the risk management and internal control.

The Group's risk management and internal control
systems provide a systematic and disciplined
approach to risk management process, which are
embedded as an integral part of corporate
governance. The systems help sustain business
success, create value for stakeholders and support
the Board in discharging its corporate governance
responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing
and managing key risks within the Group.

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and
for reviewing its effectiveness, while the
management and other personnel are responsible for
implementing and maintaining a robust system of
internal controls that covers governance, compliance,
risk management, financial as well as operational
controls to safequard the Group’s assets and
stakeholders’ interests. The systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or loss.
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(d)
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All findings and recommendations on internal control
deficiencies for each audit engagement are
communicated to senior management who are
required to establish remedial plans to correct those
internal control deficiencies within a reasonable time
period. Post-audit reviews are performed regularly to
monitor those agreed action plans and to ensure
that corrective measures of previously identified
internal control deficiencies have been implemented
as intended and on a timely basis. Significant
deficiencies of individual audit engagement are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit and Risk
Committee.

The Company has adopted a policy for certain
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its shares, for instance financial results
of the Company. Relevant employees are required to
acknowledge their understanding of this policy and
the list of relevant employees is updated at regular
intervals. The Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated for
the attention of the Board to decide the need for
disclosure. Furthermore, the Company ensures that
dissemination of inside information strictly complies
with the standards and disclosure requirements of
the Listing Rules.
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D.2.5 The Company has an internal audit function in place

which is functioning efficiently.

D.2.6 The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and
system by which employees and others who deal with the
Group can raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Group. The
contents of the whistleblowing policy are available on the

Company's website (www.cr-power.com).
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D.3

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

D.2.7 The Company has established policies and compliance
management system that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations.

In the annual assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy of
the risk management and internal control systems, the
Company has taken into consideration the recommended best
practices contained in D.2.8 and D.2.9.

The Company considers the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.

Audit and Risk Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions D.3.1 to D.3.7 as
described as follows:

D.3.1 Full minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings
were kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting.
Draft and final version of minutes of the Audit and Risk
Committee meetings were sent to all committee members
for their comments and records within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

D.3.2 The Company’s Audit and Risk Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors and two Non-
executive Directors, with the Chairman of the Committee,
being an Independent Non-executive Director, and having
the requisite qualification, knowledge and experience. A
former partner of the Company’s existing auditor shall be
prohibited from acting as a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee for a period of two years from the date of the
person ceasing to be a partner of the firm; or to have any
financial interest in the firm, whichever is later.
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D.3.3 The main duties of the Audit and Risk Committee include
the following:

>

to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference with full access to all books, records,
facilities and personnel. It is authorised to seek
information it requires from any employee and all
employees are required to co-operate with any
request made by the Audit and Risk Committee;

to secure the attendance of external advisor(s) with
relevant experience and expertise and to obtain
independent legal or other professional advice if it
considers necessary to carry out its duties; and

to be primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and to raise any
questions of its resignation or dismissal.

The attendance record of the members of the Audit and
Risk Committee during the year under review is set out as

EEERES

D33 ERHERAMREEENEIERE
BHE TR

>

RS E A R AP
ERE - -REKRE
T UREEEEZH A
ERErEEFREEHN
EmEK  2fRESAMR
BEZRARBREZEGHENX
meaZ&1E;

MRSFE JEERBHE
B RERNINRAL
HE o BEEIARNAE
MEXER > UETHHE
B,/

FEEEUNEZE -ENMS
R ERINEZEETRE
EEREER A
ZEBENEZREME &k F
Hi > BEmtH B ES R B IR
HAE A RE o

BEZHEREE G/ S0
FEAEECEREHIIMT

follows:

Number of

meetings

attended/number
of meetings held  Attendance rate

HE/
Audit and Risk Committee Members RITERERH HE=R
Yang Yuchuan (Chairman) BEN(FE) 2/2 100%
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REBH 212 100%
Jack So Chak Kwong FrEN 172 50%
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung mEE 172 50%
Chen Guoyong PRED 2 212 100%
Zhou Bo (Note 1) B (HEE1) — —

Note 1:
Committee with effect from 18 October 2023.
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For the period from 1 January 2023 to the date of this report,
the Audit and Risk Committee has performed its duties,
including reviewing the Group's interim and annual results, risk
management and internal control systems, the internal control
report prepared by the Company’s internal audit department
and the statement relating to risk management and internal
control systems as set out in this report. The Audit and Risk
Committee also met with the external auditor without the
presence of Executive Directors and senior management. In
March 2024, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023, including the major accounting issues raised
by the external auditor.

D.3.4 The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com)
and the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk).

D.3.5 In 2023, there was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit and Risk Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit and Risk
Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of
the external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the
financial statements. Prior to the commencement of the
audit of the Group’s 2023 accounts, the Audit and Risk
Committee received written confirmation from the
external auditor on its independence and objectivity. The
external auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit
services except for limited tax- related services or specific
approved items. The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed
the external auditor’s statutory audit scope and non-audit
services and approved its fees.
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BRI BEMB T o 202438 > &/
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2023F12B31HIEFENHHE R
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BEHEE o
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2023 2022
TE=F

— = — —
=

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Audit services ZERTS
Non-audit services JERZBIAR TS
Total 4Bt
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D.3.6 The Audit and Risk Committee was provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties in 2023.

D.3.7 The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee
have incorporated all the duties contained in the Code
provision and are reviewed regularly and enhanced where
necessary.

REMUNERATION

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and
Disclosure

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions E.1.1 to E.1.5 and the
recommended best practices E.1.6 to E.1.9 except for E.1.8 as
described as follows:

The Board has established Remuneration Committee and its
primary functions are to evaluate the performance of the
Directors and senior management, approve the terms of
Executive Directors’ service contracts and make
recommendations on the remuneration packages, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements. All three members of the Remuneration
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to,
among other things, review and determine the policy for the
remuneration of the Executive Directors, assess the performance
of the Executive Directors, and make recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and senior management. The attendance record of the
members of the Remuneration Committee during the year
under review is set out as follows:

Remuneration Committee Members

Elsie Leung Oi-sie (Chairman) REF(FE)
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung jEES

Yang Yuchuan (Note 1) BE)(EEE1)

El
E.1

D36 fR2023F » EZHREMEE D
ExEERUBITHES -

D37 BRI EEGHI R ELE

B A A ST RIMER P B9 P A B

%E‘%EHH%E%IT_M\E‘IE/R'F
DU o

o B
KT RAR B R L

REIEFEE > KA B&ISESTTH
FREBESFREXET.1EE 1.5/
E18UIINNEEREEREI16E
E.1.9 BEatinT :

EFgTRFMZEG - FHHZE
ENETERER/TEESFTHSRE

EE)\EE’J%EEE Ttt/&ﬁt"%%ﬂlﬁk
BHRMF A]ﬁ}?ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ?@k{#%‘% ’
st EE RN LR MR
HMEES 3%}5}Zﬁi’3%3%43|5$ﬂﬁ
%o

2023%F > HFMNEZEESTEHR TMAE
0 (Hhgl) B kblIENTE
EMEFMER TR RITESMR
B URMABRTESASRE
BAENHFMAZEDESSIRME
EBEER -FMEZEEmENEBE

B S EMEI T :
Number of
meetings
attended/number

of meetings held  Attendance rate
g/

RITERRY HEZX

2/2 100%

1/2 50%

11 100%

Note 1: Mr. Yang Yuchuan was appointed as a member of Remuneration Committee

with effect from 22 August 2023.
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The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman,
the President or any independent third party about the
remuneration level of other Executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which is reviewed and updated regularly) have
incorporated the specific duties set out in the Code
provision. Code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) was adopted by the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
set out on the Company’s website (Www.cr-power.com) and
the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk).

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties. The Remuneration
Committee may seek professional advice from
independent third parties if it thinks necessary at the
expense of the Company in order to enable it to properly
discharge its duties and responsibilities.

The Directors’ remuneration policy is set out in the “Report
of the Directors” on page 42 to 66 of this Annual Report.
The emoluments per year of the members of the senior
management team (excluding Executive Directors) are
within the following bands:

E.1.1

E12

E14

E15

Emolument bands

HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to above HK$5,000,000

HrE e E

0 #7T% 1,000,000 BT
1,500,001 %75 % 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 7T E 2,500,000 E 7T
2,500,001 #7TE 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 %7t E 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 %75 % 4,000,000 E 7T
4,000,001 7T % 4,500,000 E 7T

4,500,001 %702 5,000,000 BT £

FMEEEREMATES
BYRTEM K P 55~ MR
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Number of individuals
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2023
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The Board has no disagreement with the Remuneration
Committee on the remuneration or compensation
arrangements with regards to Executive Directors and
senior management.

A significant proportion of Executive Directors’
remuneration is structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance. The Company sets
its strategic and performance targets on an annual and
three-year rolling forward basis. Based on the Company’s
overall performance targets, the Company assigns
responsibilities and sets performance benchmarks and
evaluation methods for each Executive Director, members
of the senior management team and other managerial
staff. The total remuneration of Executive Directors and
senior management comprises three key components,
namely basic salary, annual bonus and the Tenure
Incentive Plan. The actual performance of the Company
and each Executive Director and senior management team
members’ own performance against performance targets
determine the component paid under the annual bonus
and the Tenure Incentive Plan. Please refer to Note 12
under the section “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” in this Annual Report on page 235 to 238 for
details on Directors’ remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Company aims to attract,
motivate and retain talents in order to stimulate the
organic growth for the Company’s continuous
development. The salary levels are regularly reviewed and
determined with reference to those in similar industries
and regional markets. The Company will determine the
annual bonus based on the Company’s results and the
assessment of individual performance. A Tenure Incentive
Plan has also been introduced for key positions of the
Company, which promotes long-term value creation
through the mingled annual evaluation and 3-year
performance assessment. The Company provides benefit
packages and defined contributions to its employees in
accordance with the laws and regulations of the relevant
country and region.

133

E16

EEERERS

EFEEERATES SR
EEAENFMIHEZIES
HEHFHNEZETTEERFAZER
D e

MITEENFHFMEET > BE
A EB D B ER BN B2 A B) R 8 A\ 3=
B#H - KRB —FR=F
TENRERTERIERENEIE -
KRNBERBEREEVNEERR
HITEE " SREEAERH
HMEBAEDEEHR > WRTE
BV EEE KT E o #H
TEEhaHMEEAENBEH
MEEZER=—ZDHENK > DHI=Z
EARHM - FETCLA RTHR
Bt & c IRIBEFEECAL TR
BENET B S I E B E R AR
BEREMAZNTESEES
MEEBAERBEARREENE
EWNLEHERRTE - EEHB
BB REAFERFE 2355238
B HHBRRMEE — 80K
5120

AT R F R § EIRS] B
BAMRE AT BB ARG
BERANEE - #FHBNKFR
BHRRTERMETIZETE
I TEHRETTIREY ; FRETEALK
BRBEEKREEBAGEYE
WILTE ; BN AR AEELRE
B> RETEHAEE - &
BEEEFR=-_FEZFEES
WA B RABERE,
A B) ¥ BR AR R B 2K R 3 75 VA AR
~EERMTEZRENMEEMH

=+
o

Annual Report 2023
FR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

F.
F.1

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

E.1.8 The Company has not adopted the recommended best
practice to disclose details of any remuneration paid to
members of senior management (other than Executive
Directors) on an individual and named basis in the Annual
Report. Having disclosed Directors’ remuneration,
remuneration of the five highest paid individuals and
emoluments of senior management team by bands, the
Company believes that disclosure of individual senior
management’s remuneration does not benefit
shareholders. The majority of shareholders are concerned
with the total amount of remuneration, rather than on an
individual basis.

No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or
grants) with performance-related elements was granted to
the Independent Non-executive Directors by the Company
so as to maintain their objectivity and independence when
making decisions.

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
Effective Communication

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy
which is available on the Company’'s website
(www.cr-power.com). In accordance with the policy, the Board
shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and the
investment community. Information shall be communicated to
shareholders and the investment community mainly through
the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
AGMs and other general meetings that may be convened, as
well as by making available all the disclosures submitted to
HKEx and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website. The Company strives
to ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company. Having
considered the multiple channels of communication in place,
the Board is satisfied that the shareholders communication
policy has been properly implemented during 2023 and is
effective. The Company has reviewed the abovementioned
shareholders communication policy in combination with actual
implementation and the shareholders’ feedback during the
year, and considered it has been properly implemented and is
effective.
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An investor relations team has been designated to maintain
purposeful dialogue and ongoing relationships with investors
and analysts. We strive to provide quality information to
shareholders as well as our many stakeholders regarding the
latest developments of the Company, whilst ensuring that
material information is equally and simultaneously provided and
accessible to all interested parties.

The Company consistently pays close attention to investor
relations activities and always believes that maintaining effective
communications with shareholders and provision of timely and
accurate information are critical in creating shareholder value.

The Company enhances communication with shareholders
through various investor relations activities. Details of major
investor relations activities in 2023 are set out below.

In 2023, there were over 120 requests for company visits and
teleconferences from different investors. Together with investor
conferences and roadshows through virtual or audio meetings,
we communicated with approximately more than 1,200 fund
managers and analysts. During the meetings with investors, we
explained the development and trend of the power industry
and updated investors on our operational conditions, strategic
planning and future outlook. We also placed great emphasis on
listening to investors’ feedback, concerns and expectations so
that we can relay the messages from investors to our
management team.

Through emails or designated telephone lines, we also provide
shareholders and potential investors with a channel to obtain
the latest information of the Company and have their queries
answered in a timely manner. We announce our net generation
volume figures on a monthly basis on our Company’s website
(www.cr-power.com) as well as through announcements on
the HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk).

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email.
Details of the contact information can be found on page 356 of
this Annual Report.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with

the Code Principle and Code provision F.1.1 as described below
but did not adopt recommended best practice F.1.2:
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F.1.1 The Company adopts a general dividend policy that aims

to provide shareholders out of the Group’s profit
attributable to shareholders in any financial year, subject
to the criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to
be determined at the discretion of the Board and subject
to all applicable requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Articles.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also
take into account, inter alia:

» the Group actual and expected financial
performance;

>  shareholders’ interests;

»  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

>  the capital structure of the Company;

» the Company’s capital expenditure and future
expansion plans;

»  statutory and regulatory restrictions;
»  general business conditions and strategies;

»  general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

»  other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any,
with respect to the Company’s shares on a per share basis.
In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the

form of shares subject to and in accordance with the
procedures set out in the Articles.
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Final dividend declared by the Company must be approved
by an ordinary resolution of shareholders at the general
meeting.

The Company will continually review its dividend policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, improve and/or modify its dividend policy at any

EEERERS
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ARKRERE EUHBRER
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time.

F.2 Shareholders Meetings

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code Principle and Code provisions F.2.1 to F.2.3 as

described below:

F.2.11n respect of each substantial issue at a general meeting, a

EER ©

F2 REKRE

REBEEE > KATRISESTTH
[REBEASFRMESXF2.1EF2.3 5 #iE
mnr:

F2ITREIFEEERRAG EAME

separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the
meeting, including the re-election of individual Directors.
The poll voting results of the meetings are available on the
Company’s website (www.cr-power.com) and the HKEx
website (www.hkexnews.hk).

Matters resolved at the 2023 AGM

»  Received the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Independent
Auditor

»  Approved payment of the final dividend of HK$0.376
per share for the year ended 31 December 2022

» Authorised the Board of Directors to fix the
remuneration of all Directors

»  Re-appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and authorised the Board to fix the
auditor’s remuneration

» Granted a general mandate to the Board for the
share repurchase of a number not exceeding 10% of
the total number of the Company’s issued shares as
at the date of 2023 AGM
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»  Granted a general mandate to the Directors to issue
new shares of the Company not exceeding 20% of
the total number of the Company’s issued shares as
at the date of 2023 AGM

»  Approved to extend the general mandate granted to
the Directors to issue new shares of the Company by
addition thereto of the shares repurchased by the
Company

>  Re-elected Mr. SONG Kui as Director

Apart from the 2023 AGM, one EGM was held by the
Company on 7 July 2023 for approving the spin-off of
Spinco and a separate listing of the shares of Spinco on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

F.2.2The general meeting provides an ideal venue for the

interchange of ideas between the Board, the management
and shareholders. We therefore encourage shareholders
to attend our AGM to discuss matters of business
substance with the Board and management and to give us
valuable advice and feedback on both operational and
governance matters. At the 2023 AGM, there were a total
of 211 individual shareholders, authorised representatives
of corporate shareholders as well as proxies (including the
chairman of meeting) participated and the number of
shares voted represented 72.14% of the total number of
the Company’s issued shares. At the EGM held on 7 July
2023, there were a total of 327 individual shareholders,
authorised representatives of corporate shareholders as
well as proxies (including the chairman of meeting)
participated and the number of shares voted represented
73.04% of the total number of the Company’s issued
shares.

As laid out in the attendance table in C.5.1 on page 118
of this Annual Report, a majority of Directors attended the
2023 AGM. The Directors and senior management of the
Company took the opportunity to communicate with the
shareholders present, and answered their queries with
respect to the Company’s operations and industries. A
representative of the external auditor attended the 2023
AGM to answer shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report (if any).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company, the Board and management highly value
the opinions and requirements of our shareholders. The
Company communicates with shareholders through
various channels including publication of Interim and
Annual Reports, Sustainable Development Reports,
circulars, press releases and announcements of the latest
business developments, operational results, major
financing plans and other developments of the Company
on its corporate website (www.cr-power.com) and the
HKEx website (www.hkexnews.hk) (where applicable) in a
timely manner.

F.2.3The chairman of the meeting explained the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the 2023 AGM and
answered questions arising therefrom (if any).

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), members of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
members having a right to vote at general meetings may
request the Directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
The request may consist of several documents in like form and
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic
form and must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the members of the Company
may request the Company to give to members of the Company
who are entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting, a notice of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by email: crp-ir@crc.com.hk) and must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given,
authenticated by the person or persons making it and received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has received
the requests from (a) members representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all the members who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a
relevant right to vote.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as Director

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director are available on the website of the
Company (www.cr-power.com).

The Memorandum and Articles

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents. The latest
version of the Articles is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA RESOURCES POWER HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 149 to 158, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\ S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BT EER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment with material impairment
indicators

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill
and property, plant and equipment with material
impairment indicators as a key audit matter because of
the significant degree of judgment made by
management of the Group in determining the value in
use (“VIU") of these assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of
goodwill, net of accumulated impairment losses,
amounted to HK$1,158,587,000. Goodwill is subject
to an annual impairment assessment and as explained
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units
("CGUs") of the Company’s subsidiaries within two
segments, thermal power and renewable energy, in
the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment with
material impairment indicators included:

e Understanding and evaluating the Group’s
methodology and assumptions used in
determination of VIU of the CGUs;

e  Evaluating the reliability of the cash flow
projections prepared by management in prior
year, on a sample basis, by comparing them to
the actual results in the current year and
understanding the causes of any significant
variances;
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Key audit matter

B EER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment with material impairment
indicators (Continued)

Besides, as disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, out of the total property, plant
and equipment amounted to HK$215,752,142,000 as
at 31 December 2023, management of the Group
identified assets with a net book value of
HK$14,204,582,000 of certain thermal power
generating plants and renewable power generating
plants with material impairment indicators.
Management of the Group performed impairment
assessment in relation to such thermal power
generating plant or renewable power generating plant
which is determined as a CGU.

e Assessing the reasonableness of the
management’s key assumptions used in the
impairment assessments with supporting
documents on a sample basis as follows:

Assessing the generation volumes of power
plants by comparing them with the
generation capacity approved by the
government and historical generation
volume;

Comparing the electricity prices to the latest
selling price and industry forecast;

Comparing the fuel prices to the industry
forecast of the fuel market; and

Comparing the expected operation period
of power plants to the forecast period of
each CGU;
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Key audit matter

BT EE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment with material impairment
indicators (Continued)

The impairment assessment was performed by
management of the Group involving the use of VIU
model that estimates the recoverable amount of each
CGU. The VIU model involves significant judgement in
determining the assumptions used in the calculations
as further detailed in notes 4(b), 4(c), 16 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements. The VIU is
determined based on the cash flow projection for the
corresponding CGUs discounted to its present value
and requires the use of key assumptions include:

e generation volumes of the power plants;
e electricity prices;

e  forecast periods;

e  fuel prices; and

e discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks
specific to the CGUs.

e Involving our internal valuation experts to
evaluate the appropriateness of the methodology
and reasonableness of discount rates by
benchmarking the discount rate against
comparable entities on a sample basis; and

e Performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs,
including generation volume of power plants,
electricity prices, fuel prices and discount rates, to
evaluate if any further impairment charges of
goodwill and property, plant and equipment with
material impairment indicators is required to be
made by the management.
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Key audit matter

B EER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment with material impairment
indicators (Continued)

The VIU was less than the carrying value for certain
CGU resulted in impairment charges of
HK$1,153,479,000 for property, plant and equipment
with material impairment indicators during the year
ended 31 December 2023, details of which is set out

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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in note 16. No impairment charge was recognised for
goodwill for the year.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Zhu Chen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AHEER

= H fm

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HZE2023F12HB31BLEFEE

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
b= FAET FET
Turnover EES 5 LOERE”RYPN 103,305,097
Operating expenses KENA
Fuels BR KL (CERLERTPI]  (64,283,171)
Depreciation and amortisation HrEE Bl iH SPLPLEAL (14,429,592)
Employee benefit expenses EERFMAX 6 (VALTR:ED]  (6,631,593)
Repairs and maintenance HEIEN4EE (PRYANLLY]  (2,471,245)
Consumables ks [(RIIXLY)]  (1,300,504)
Impairment charges AEEK (PZEETY)  (1,045,216)
Tax and surcharges & K ffd 0 (864,572) (760,607)
Others Hith (EX:TPXN)]  (2,997,806)
Total operating expenses MRS RS el ) (93,919,734)
Other income Hh A 7 2,029,731 1,981,567
Other gains and losses Hihi8z 8 214,499 2,184,149
Operating profit K& 18,198,396 13,551,079
Finance costs TR ER 9 (4,240,637) (3,890,192)
Share of results of associates FEAL B (b 2E AR 23 1,183,055 (112,676)
Share of results of joint ventures FEhEaEhEESR 24 358,283 (86,737)
Profit before income tax BRERIS TR AIFH 10 15,499,097 9,461,474
Income tax expense PSR EHR 11 (ERLEXLY]  (1,905,574)
Profit for the year FAFHE 12,110,495 7,555,900
Profit for the year attributable to: FRFEEBN
Owners of the Company KATEB A 11,003,283 7,042,478
Perpetual capital securities holders KABRFESHFHEA 45 329,260 420,295
Other non-controlling interests HnIEZESI M m 777,952 93,127
12,110,495 7,555,900
Basic earnings per share SRELRRT 15 HK$2.29 HK$1.46
149 Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SHEmREMEEIIAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HE2023F 12831 HILEEE

Profit for the year

FRFHE

2023
Note HK$"000
P &£ FTET

12,110,495

Other comprehensive income

(expense)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences
Share of other comprehensive expense
of investments accounted for using
the equity method

Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of subsidiaries

Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of a joint venture

Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss:

Fair value changes on equity investments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"),

HthZEUWA (518)
HREREEMTEE

Ea AYEHE :
bES = 2R
PRIV AR E

RENHEMESER
RENBARERED

REGETXEMRED

TEEEM A B ERm Y

BE
NA R R
BB AR

FERmERRE

(2,154,503)

(10,818)
(26,336)

37,809

(2,062,149)

10,048,346

9,006,927
329,260
712,159

10,048,346

net of tax RREBEEEH RE) 25
Remeasurement of defined benefit BMEtERERNK
pension plan Xt E
Other comprehensive expense FREMEERIE
for the year, net of tax (%)
Total comprehensive income (expense) ERZEUWA (B518)
for the year, net of tax “EE (&)
Attributable to: B
Owners of the Company KRBIHEB A
Perpetual capital securities holders KABRFHFAA
Other non-controlling interests HMIEZ S
Total comprehensive income (expense) FRZEEUA (F518)
for the year, net of tax #ezE (R’
China R P Holdi C Limited
g%\%ﬁisgc%;geﬂéﬁo%ver oldings Company Limite 150

2022

HK$°000
THETT

7,555,900

(13,116,546)

(555,911)

(2,862)

45,581

21,624

(13,608,114)

(6,052,214)

(5,895,145)
420,295
(577,364)

(6,052,214)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
G HBFIRRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
K2023%F12831H

2023 2022
—E-= ===
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b= FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB REE 16 PALWLYRUYE 191,355,953
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 9,357,173 6,635,994
Goodwill S 18 1,158,587 621,904
Mining rights RS 19 3,764,928 3,836,360
Contractual rights SRR 20 994,500 -
Deferred tax assets EEREE 22 1,083,928 1,075,072
Other receivables and prepayments Hh e W IB K T T
RIE 26 WPAELRE[N 12,533,739
Interests in associates REEhENER 23 16,671,370 9,050,331
Interests in joint ventures REeshtENER 24 5,456,247 5,997,336
Financial assets at FVOC| LAREBEFEA2E)
STAEMGRERERN
THEE 25 986,479 1,118,396
Loans to a FVOCI investee company B A REEE BE
Bt AREMGE W m
N E AT EN 25 466,255
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder (&Kt /& A 5] JE#E 4
of a subsidiary REREMR 31 13,794 13,994
YL 232,705,334
Current assets MBEE
Inventories =8 27 4,016,944 4,581,614
Trade receivables, other receivables FEUTER R ~ EfhFEUL
and prepayments B KRB IE 28 IV LYMCEN 35,616,097
Loans to joint ventures mEEREEM 24 211,977 189,121
Loans to a FVOCI investee company mMUAREBESFERE
st AHMAR S W E
NI BE R ER 25 - 84,102
Amounts due from associates FEUWL B = (b TRIB 29 332,324 241,196
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW &S hERIE 30 61,146 47,395
Amounts due from other related FE W ELfth BE i A B 7R I8
companies 31 26,407 33,533
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BRI R 2 IREIERTT
2N 32 418,538 116,466
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 33 4,082,972 7,721,275
LSRN 48,630,799
Assets classified as held for sale HEREEE 13 - 2,051,513
Total assets REE 322,395,990 QPEEREYEIT

Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BHMBRRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
R2023%F12831H

2023 2022
—E-= —Eo

HK$"000 HK$'000
FTET THET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EankaE
Capital and reserves BARKH#E
Share capital @i 43 PPEICWALDN 22,316,710
Other reserves HM R 44 9,361,021 10,138,976
Retained earnings REFHE e WKL 49,782,916
Equity attributable to owners of NN ER AL R
the Company 84,973,689 82,238,602
Perpetual capital securities holders KABAXRESFHBA 45 10,664,271 10,664,271
Other non-controlling interests HAFEES M S 8,909,181 7,650,675
Total equity R IRV VAVIE 100,553,548
LIABILITIES &afa
Non-current liabilities JEREIEE
Borrowings 88 39 (PLEYYRVEN 93,322,133
Contract liabilities aREA&E 35 997,247 873,021
Lease liabilities HE&E 40 2,020,456 1,048,403
Deferred tax liabilities EEREE 22 431,461 288,864
Deferred income EIEW A 41 785,953 808,519
Retirement and other long-term fEsH R R EMEHAE
employee benefits obligations Bfaf A 42 779,045 807,751
Other long-term payables HM-RHAEA SR 28(a) 2,945,310 2,802,332
133,786,595 99,951,023
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 152
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BHMBRRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
K2023%F12831H

2023 2022
—=— =

—_—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET

Current liabilities mENaE

Trade payables, other payables and FE(TBRFR ~ HAEIR
accruals B FESTE R 34 [ YLRVE W 30,247,926
Contract liabilities sREAE 35 1,351,403 1,233,004
Lease liabilities HEsdE 40 307,352 217,924
Amounts due to associates PRI > X RRIE 36 91,664 627,790
Amounts due to joint ventures BN aEhERIE 37 646,811 576,082

Amounts due to other related FE ELfth R E A B 08
companies 38 10,868,925 10,840,890
Tax liabilities MIBEE 1,007,069 543,720
Borrowings == 39 CERI NIV 38,383,441
84,062,254 82,670,777

Liabilities associated with assets DEAFFESFEEERR
classified as held for sale =R 13 212,298
Total liabilities waB 217,848,849 W Fy¥:EV ¥t
Total equity and liabilities WEDREE Yy RN 283,387,646

The consolidated financial statements on pages 149 to 354 were Z=FEER_ZT_MWFE=AF_+HBIB
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 IXHETIZEEHNE149EEF34EN S

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: HEERE > TH T EEAEEEZE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE P
1 53 Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AHERZEZHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

B E2023F12A31BLLFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

Operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses
Exchange gains
Interest expense
Interest income
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures
Dividends income from FVOCI investee
companies

Gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries
Losses on disposal of a joint venture

REEE

BREFISTRRIAE

HEE

IrEE B Y
VERI=EEES
BE S
B
F B A

(GRS
i (k=g

TEEE
TEXR

NARBESEEEZS

StAH
EHE
KRB

fthiz & U B9
ERNHKEAT
A

HEDE - BE kR

YU
HE A
5 B B

HESE

A A IR
NCIe
%985

Operating cash flows before movement in

working capital REM
Decrease in inventories FaRD
Increase in trade receivables, FEWLER R ~ HhFEUWGRIE K
other receivables and prepayments TE{IFRIBE N
Increase in trade payables, other payables FETERER ~ BT IIER
and accruals FESTE A g
Decrease in retirement and other long-term fEsHRARREMEIES
employee benefits obligations &7 FE St Al ARk 2>
Cash generated from operations KEEEFEENRE
Income tax paid BEIPEIR

Net cash inflows generated from

RERHEENRERA

operating activities — B
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 1 56
EHBEHERARAT

2023

==

—_—

HK$"000
THET

15,499,097

14,720,207

2,748,698
(66,081)

4,240,637
(GPLARL))
(1,183,055)
(358,283)

(59,690)

(124,537)
(31,469)
(47,029)

55,806

35,269,182
510,337

(4,614,076)

721,769

(19,854)

31,867,358
(2,998,080)

28,869,278

2022

HK$°000
THET

9,461,474

14,429,592
1,045,216
(1,993,762)
3,890,192
(192,451)
112,676

86,737

(57.727)
(33,366)
(90,987)
(32,137)

26,625,457
1,742,320

(2,557,534)
335,197

(115,424)

26,030,016
(1,863,277)

24,166,739



Investing activities
Dividends received from associates and
joint ventures
Dividends received from FVOCI investee
companies

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REZH
BlEREREE
TERE

BRA L REESEBZF
stAH MRS W m BT Rl
BENRREATNKRE
BEFH 2
HENE -~ BB R&FHM
ERREEENFSMIA
i E B A B PR 1SIR

AHAERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

2023

==

—_—

HK$'000
TET

2022

HK$°000
THETT

916,532 659,759
59,690 93,766
= 9,065
177,192 103,994

127,139 =

Payments for purchase of property, BEYE  MEREE
plant and equipment, mining rights RIEERERAEEE
and right-of-use assets P 2 (3 BYRRIE (EE WM WIV] (32,579,796)
Cash outflow on acquisition of interest IREHE AR #mNIRE
in associates Mijides (3,106,885) =
Capital contributions into associates M EREETE (492,360) (586,550)
Capital contributions into joint ventures MaErELIE (258,197) (880,968)
Loans to joint ventures MEErEEMN (EREY)) =
Loans repayments from joint ventures BETXEEEEWN = 140,533
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WHEN B A B mrVIRE
interest in subsidiaries TR R EE (1,909,421) (1,101)
Cash prepayment on acquisition of SR EPITAEN Y
equity investments HE = (723,698)
Government grants related to assets ERE FE A R BY BT A L - 20,825
Repurchase of Asset-Backed Notes CIREEESFER (703,406) (102,916)
Net cash outflows generated from KERSHEENRESREH
investing activities — B8R [CEXELN)]  (33,847,087)
1 57 Annual Report 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAET FHET
Financing activities REEH
Proceeds from borrowings HEPMMEHIE CEXVERTIN 62,229,310
Repayment of borrowings Bi2EEmIE (LR YR (43,383,069)
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual BITKABRE S
capital securities PS8 — 10,664,624
Redemption of corporate bonds BBllARES (VRVLEL)]  (5,776,692)
Redemption of perpetual capital securities BBk A BAGE — | (10,558,855)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ FEIZ= I 14 i i H & 681,399 509,297
Capital reduction by non-controlling interests  FE4% il 14 e 2 g 5 (57,893) (14,707)
Cash prepayments on acquisition of a non- AR IR IR T R IE
controlling interest (75,609) -
(Repayment of advances from) advances (BEFEEZERA BN
from an intermediate holding company RREZER A BB (1,303,536) 3,571,843
Repayment of advances from associates BIEHE PR TR (528,310) (76,001)
(Repayment of advances from) advances (BESSTERN A
from joint ventures SRR (40,068) 73,807
Repayment of advances from other related BIEHMEAB A BM
companies (263,020) (112,736)
(Repayment of advances from) advances from  (EiE B A B IEIELIRER
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries B M@ A B FEIZERR
B B ER (73,853) 15,814
Interest on bank loans and advances from BENRITERMERBEE
associates and joint ventures paid REBRF B [CRLENENY (4,387,972)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BRI A AT ERS AR E (EELLWAEY]  (1,226,311)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BB AR IFERE DD
of subsidiaries [3S) (R EXYE)) (235,267)
Repayment of lease liabilities Bi2HEaE (425,530) (713,919)
Interest paid to perpetual capital securities B KABERFZSFFE
holders (329,185) (420,295)
Underwriting fees for issuance of perpetual ZKABARGE
capital securities BITHRIHE - (353)
Net cash inflows generated from MEEFELENIRE
financing activities WA — B8 (REPEXYZE 10,158,518
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash RERIREEEY CRL)
equivalents 18 0% ER (3,287,348) 478,170
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ~ E#IR& KIREEEY
of the year 7,721,275 7,934,211
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes PER BB R (350,955) (690,764)
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash FEXBEERREZHEY
equivalents at the end of the year, KEER M ¢
represented by:
— cash and cash equivalents at the end of — FRBERREEFEY
the year 4,082,972 7,721,275
— cash and cash equivalents included in — DEARAEREERERN
assets classified as held for sale RERBEEEY - 342

4,082,972 7,721,617

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Limited (the “Company”)
is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). The intermediate holding company of the
Company is China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
("CRH"), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors
regard the ultimate holding company of the Company to be
China Resources Company Limited (“CRCL"), a company
registered in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the construction and operation of power stations.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Rooms
2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. The directors of the Company consider that HK$
is the appropriate presentation currency since the Company is a
public company with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange
where most of its investors are located.

159

BHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
HE2023F 12831 HIEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments To
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two
model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group'’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendment to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes
so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred
on or after 1 January 2022;

the Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with right-of-use-
assets and lease liabilities and decommissioning and
restoration and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related asset.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial position and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended
to replace all instances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to
illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is
material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FEH
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (r&HR TR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ¥
(“"HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet EEMERKRERNEBMER
effective FEANEETA
The Group has not early applied the following new and KEBBKRIEREHRMTIEEZEME
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet B AREM ] BT E B E
effective: WREZER
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEEMBRS KEEHERE X
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and ZRIE 105K FEEPEZEN
its Associate or Joint Venture' BEGHER BEHERIE
5285 (3T %)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BEMBRGEN  EREHERHN
Leaseback? F165% (BFTX) HEaR?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as HEG L BENEANRTYIFE
Current or Non-current and EAEAGCEEY) REREBRES
related amendments to Hong SRR &
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2 (ZZ-EfF)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BHE G EL Wi 2samIEmE
Covenants? F15% (BETA) =g
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements? BERGHENFETS HEDRERH
and HKFRS 7 REBHBRE
ERIF 75 (BF]A)
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? EEGHER Bz ARl
F215% (B3 x)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. ! REEBRASZ BRRMNEERRBERL -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 2 Hé:fﬁ:llflﬁ—ﬁ— Bz BEENEER
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 3 }EES;:%:EE—H— Bz BEENEER
Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the PR NPt BB IR S HERMEST
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all Ko KABIELTEM  EAMA
other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on HMEBMBREEET AR
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. BENRBRIAZHAHPTBERRE
REARFTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not
affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together
with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early
application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
Amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the 2022
Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the related terms and conditions stipulated in the
agreements between the Group and the relevant lenders, the
application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not result
in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments add a disclosure objective to HKAS 7 Cash
flow statements stating that an entity is required to disclose
information about its supplier finance arrangements that
enables users of financial statements to assess the effects of
those arrangements on the entity’s liabilities and cash flows. In
addition, HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was
amended to add supplier finance arrangements as an example
within the requirements to disclose information about an

entity’s exposure to concentration of liquidity risk.

The term ‘supplier finance arrangements’ is not defined.
Instead, the amendments describe the characteristics of an
arrangement for which an entity would be required to provide

the information.

To meet the disclosure objective, an entity will be required to

disclose in aggregate for its supplier finance arrangements:

e The terms and conditions of the arrangements;

e The carrying amount and associated line items presented
in the entity’'s statement of financial position, of the
liabilities that are part of the arrangements, and the non-
cash changes in the carrying amounts of these financial

liabilities;

e The carrying amount, and associated line items for which
the suppliers have already received payment from the

finance providers;

e  Ranges of payment due dates for both those financial
liabilities that are part of a supplier finance arrangement
and comparable trade payables that are not part of a
supplier finance arrangement; and liquidity risk

information.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSS") (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements (Continued)

The amendments, which contain specific transition reliefs for
the first annual reporting period in which an entity applies the
amendments, are applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Earlier application is
permitted.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group
but may affect the disclosures of liabilities, cash flows and the
Group's exposure to liquidity risk related to the supplier finance
arrangements entered into by the Group. The impacts of
application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$34,444,848,000. In
addition, there were outstanding capital commitments
amounting to HK$27,169,232,000 (note 51). The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the current operation of the Group as well as the
banking facilities (note 39) available to the Group, the
Group has sufficient working capital to enable it to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the coming twelve months from the date of statement of
financial position. Therefore, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 168
EHBEHERARAT

3.1 RESHMBRENEE @

REBR_ZE_=F+_A4
—t+—HEERHEEFEDN
34,444,848,0008 77 © LI » 1A
XEEBEBHNE X KE A
27,169,232,000 % 7t (Mff =%
51) c RABEERA » BEE
AREBBAPIKE RAER
FAENIRTTHE (M5E39) % »
AEBEECHEEETTEE
TEFRBEMBR R B RS
EORR+ZEBEHBHEE
B oAt ZEEHEBR
RERFERKSEERR o

RREETmMIAERSREHR
NRARBESEN  GHUT
BREEEAASERER
BN TXFEE st BRI M
B-BEELlrs—RIREEER
mRRBEFGZREZAR
BEFE-

ARBERNRSAEBRETEHEZ
REBRARFRXZTPLESR
EFTWREREEREEE A2
B MAmZBERSER
BRISHAEREMEED
EEE e RNEFEENER/Z
ARBER > AEETEEZ
EmH2HEENGAEHNEE
ENEREERMEBEZEE
HEBEZRE - NEESHY
BRI E R NIKER
W2 RAMBETIRILEEETE
ML T RIERI  BREBY
B S ERE 258 TUURMD A E
B R SEEI P 2 AR 1D S B
IR RIEEBMHRS
ZRHE 165 HEI ARZHEE
R URHESERANEE
2 EFEREERMZEEL
FERREE HlUEREE
IS 252 A B FERNE B
GEEREI6EEERE 2
fEFREIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. MESHMBHRNEBE
REXGHEERER @

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

3.2 EXGHBERER

3.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group'’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute to the
ability to continue producing outputs and are considered
unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant
cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 Levies, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.

173

BHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

3. MESHMBBRNEBE
REXGHERER @

3.2 EXEEHHKREER @

EBGH
EBE—EEIINREEH
PEE-BHERRAKR—EE

B2 MMENREELZ
FENBEBEERER - HIXER
RHEFEELZENERER
BEHAGNTHERBIBIEMS
RKEE s MBS AR B

D HEFBEHZENEE
RERR > BRSBTS ER -
WEEBRMAE - ZHNFE
EHENHREEZ TR T
BIERAY

WEEEB T XA EARK -
REFEHPEZENNERR
AEEFE MAERE/T
SEAMBENEE - FEBY
REBEBSRFBEANEENER
e 7 B2 [ 75 S HA AR WIS 75 RO 4
fhll 48 P 35 17 BO AR A S URLEE B B
NRRBENEN - BNES
RN A—RNELEREET
hiEsR o

FiT UWx B8 2 BI 8 Bl B 2 e P A #E
ZEENANEHMBREMS
ER (SER) FEEKRE
B BB ERSE
VRHEE BEERREFE
ENEBERVHZREEREE
EEREF2IRAMNBLENZ
R REMFI  RZIBERT
AEERBEBGERNFIT
RRNERBRMBREZREE
EEREBE21RMIFHSER
DUGBRI EL RS 3R 75 5 P P R 9
ZEBfE - HARBEEN T °

Annual Report 2023
FR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below);

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

e lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except for
leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable
or unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to
fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in “other
gains or losses” line item.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period, and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit
within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates or
joint ventures

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, goodwill is recognised at
acquisition date if there is excess of the consideration paid
over the share of carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the additional interests in associates or joint
ventures acquired. Any excess of share of carrying amount
of net assets attributable to the additional interests in
associates or joint ventures acquired over the
consideration paid are recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the additional interest are acquired.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress as described below). Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction work in progress comprises infrastructure
construction of new power plants, technical improvement
projects of existing power plants and coal mines being
constructed, is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items that are
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management (such as samples produced when testing
whether the asset is functioning properly), and the related
costs of producing those items are recognised in the profit
or loss. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the
entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, and are amortised
using the unit of production method based on the proved
and probable mineral reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and
resources rights

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and
resources rights to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and
resources rights are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash- generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and
resources rights (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, mining rights and exploration and
resources rights (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date which
is regarded as their cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. Intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@

cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to
third party contractual restrictions are included as part of
cash unless the restrictions result in a bank balance no
longer meeting the definition of cash. Contractual
restrictions affecting use of bank balances are disclosed in
note 32.

189

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

3. MNSHMBIMRHNELE
REXGFHRER @

3.2 EXEEHHKREER @

HERBEEFEY

REHMBIKREPIIREIE
ERFEEEEYEE

(@) BT SEFHEEZRE
HER TEEREER
FIERIEHFREBEIBNS
REERRIRITEREE , &

(b) REZFEY) > THiEEH (R
EHR—RA=EAAN)
MEMER ZREBRAE
MRS BHEEED
EERANKRE - FHER
EEEYT 2w R e R
TAGE MIFRREIH
fthERY -

AEEEAZE =GRS
BUIRTTAE RS A IRE M —TED
FRIFZIRHI ERIBITHEER B
NERTNERE - FEIRITER
BEANSAMRSINRMH 325
EE -

Annual Report 2023
FR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories include fuel oil for power generation, coal,
materials for repairs and maintenance and spare parts,
and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all costs
necessary to make sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-
lease building components, unless such allocation cannot
be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings and
photovoltaic facilities that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

191

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

WUSHBBRRNEE
REXGHERER @

3.2 EXEHBERER @

HE &)
AEBEREBEA
DEAIEE SR E D

R REDEE G KA ﬁ“ﬁﬁ
Hres—EEEHEMRED
—IANZIEEINEE Iﬂﬁﬂ
BB DGR AEER
B EMEME D AN BEIBE
B IR E B D R BE IR B
BEMNKENNENEERE
HEMERD  BEWEYE
PRERE (BEEE It RIF
BEBFED) NEL » FRIFR
RO BCHEIARI FREH o

FETH & #H i B o B2 1H 5 AH Bl &P
Do WEBEMERER
N

EHHERBEEEEMEE

HREHAEMRBBRESA12
BAKMURNBETEESEEE
EREN LM REFURIARE
WHE  AEERBERES
REBR HTHREBEE
HERRERAR - NHHEE
REEBEEEHENHEEMR
REHREEREZREMAR
HEWD AR o

Annual Report 2023
FR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets of the Group includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments of the Group include:
e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group

is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are not retranslated. When a fair
value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period. In determining
the present value of the Group’s defined benefit
obligations and the related current service cost and, where
applicable, past service cost, the Group attributes benefit
to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula.
However, if an employee’s service in later years will lead
to a materially higher level of benefit than earlier years,
the Group attributes the benefit on a straight-line basis
from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits
are conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will
lead to no material amount of further benefits under
the plan, other than from further salary increases.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses,
the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement occurs. When
determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, an entity shall remeasure the net defined
benefit liability or asset using the current fair value of plan
assets and current actuarial assumptions, reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets before
and after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement,
without considering the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the
present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the
net defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, the Group
determines net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement and the discount rate used to remeasure
such net defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability or
asset during the period resulting from contributions or
benefit payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

e  service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and
e remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third
parties reduce service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will
be contributions from employees or third parties, the
accounting depends on whether the contributions are
linked to service, as follows:

° If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example contributions are required to reduce a
deficit arising from losses on plan assets or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability or
asset.

e If contributions are linked to services, they reduce
service costs. For the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years of service, the
Group reduces service cost by attributing the
contributions to periods of service using the
attribution method required by HKAS 19 paragraph
70 for the gross benefits. For the amount of
contribution that is independent of the number of
years of service, the Group reduces service cost in
the period in which the related service is rendered.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it
recognises any related restructuring costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right- of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities, and the related
assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax
asset related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Without group relief

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Without group relief (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the Group’s restoration, rehabilitation and
environmental expenses are based on estimates of
required expenditure at the mines in accordance with PRC
rules and regulations. Provisions are measured at the
present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets
including trade and other receivables, loans to/amounts
due from related parties (including associates, joint
ventures, a FVOCI investee company, non-controlling
shareholders and other related parties), pledged and
restricted bank deposits, and bank balances which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 208
EHBEHERARAT

RENSHMBEROEE
REXGHEERER @

3.2 EXESHKREER @

=T A ()
THEE @)

EHEERERREEBHME
& #E R F 95 B o B E AT
BYEMEH

AEBRERMEERIE (18
HEERR) BEXAHREEE
MRS EREIRAETA
TEE'JE%E’J:—:EE%TJX (BERE YR
R EANFEWGRIA « BT 1E
WRk S (BEMERE 58
tE-—BURAAEEFER
BEE AEMR S WS
BNE -~ IR R IR R e HL AR
Hé%fj') IR~ B R R RER
TR RITAEER) EITRIER
Ao FRHEEBRREZBANER
ttEIHHE% L,(&EMD = & &

THBEAEEEBIENAERT
BEEAFEANFEAEENSE
HREENTESREERBE -8
k128 BEBEEERE (12
BEEIHEERE)) BII5T8 57
REHEZ12E 8 AT e
HEHMERI D2 HATEH
EEBEB FEILRELAEER
BEEEEBEKSRET T
BEARCRE BELER
HURE R RS BN E /AR
It Bz R 2k e F8 R B9 54k E Y

FEE o

AEE-—ERBURTER 2
HTRHIEERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

e a3 breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

e  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period. Specifically:

e For financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line item (note 8) as
part of the net foreign exchange gains/(losses);

e  For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘Other gains and losses’ line item as part of the gain/
(loss) from changes in fair value of financial assets
(note 8);

° For equity instruments measured at FVOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the fair value through other
comprehensive income/revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

213

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

3.2 Ej( D-I-IE& {DII—:\ w )

EHITA @)
TREE @
SHEE W i R BT 1R

DN SHENEREERNIRE
BUZIEEE 3 &Qiﬁtt
HHEEE’JEEB%E?E&% o Afg

E

o HRAIBRLIETE BT RA &
BYLUEE H B A 5T B RV S Rl
iéé ’ Eﬁ%%ﬁfﬁ%@ﬁ

m/ (B51R) BEM —
E’\E g TE 48 5 | IE
B (M5E8) D ;

. ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ‘éﬁ%ﬁlﬂ%ﬁ%—
FABUARBESZER
“*%IJ AEENEME
E EREEFASRE
E’&ﬁf‘iﬁé&@ju& /Iéﬁ
B)BHN—BoNER EP
THMhi8zm ) BB NI
(FF5E8) ;

@J Jr)\HTW?éH& E’Jﬂx
KIE ’ E #%ELX/A%

=N /Efﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂt
P E MR & W et PSS o

RPN TR E

AEEERIEEERSREN
BRREMNEME > P »—8
REEEMEENZEEMA
T B 48 K B0 70 &L B e [O] R s 4%
IEFESR R E o

PR I FE SR IR B B A 5T 2 BY
TREER > EEREERD
W s FE W AU E AR A 2 B B9 = 2B
PR ST o

Annual Report 2023
FR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the capital reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal
amount indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.
The dividends for the perpetual capital securities are
accounted for as profit distribution.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates, amounts due to joint ventures,
amounts due to other related companies and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the 'Other gains and losses’ line item in
profit or loss (note 8) as part of net foreign exchange
gains/(losses) for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. For those which are
designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign
currency risk, foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in a separate component of equity.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumption about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTtinuED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Trade receivables in respect of tariff premium of
renewable energy plants

The Group recognised trade receivables arising from tariff
premium of renewable energy plants, pursuant to Cailian
[2020] No. 4 Notice AR iEIF KA B ERERE BREEE
HEFER and No. 5 Notice I EBEI R 2 R IXE D EZK A5
REBARNZE FIBLEREREEMMETEERME NIBEH
(collectively referred to “Measures”) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the National Energy Administration, a set of
new standardised procedures for the settlement of the
aforementioned renewable energy tariff premium has come
into force since then and approvals on a project by project basis
are required before the allocation of funds to local grid
companies.

Relevant tariff premium were recognised only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion would not result in a
significant revenue reversal in the future on the basis that the
relevant operating renewable energy plants of the Group had
been qualified for, and had met, all the requirements and
conditions as required based on the prevailing nationwide
government policies on renewable energy plants, and taking
into account renewable power plants currently in operation had
met the requirements and conditions as stipulated in the above
Measures for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy when the
electricity was delivered on grid, and also the requirements and
conditions for the entitlement of the tariff subsidy under the
Measures.

As at 31 December 2023, some of the Group's related projects
have been approved for the tariff premium of renewable energy
and certain projects are in the process of applying for the
approval. The tariff premium receivables are settled in
accordance with prevailing government policies and prevalent
payment trends of the Ministry of Finance. There is no due date
for settlement. The management is of the opinion that the
approvals will be obtained in due course and these trade
receivables from tariff premium are fully recoverable considering
there were no prior bad debt experiences with the grid
companies and such tariff premium is funded by the PRC
government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTinuED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimate of depreciable lives of property, plant and
equipment, especially power generating plant and
equipment, was made by the directors of the Company
with reference to the following: (1) the historical usage of
the assets; (2) their expected physical wear and tear; (3)
results of recent durability assessment performed; (4)
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production of similar fixed
assets; and (5) the changes in market demand for, or legal
or comparable limits imposed on, the use of such fixed
assets. When the useful lives differ from the original
estimated useful lives, management will adjust the
estimated useful lives accordingly.

The current estimated useful lives are stated in note 16. It
is possible that the estimates made based on existing
experience are different to the actual outcomes within
next financial period and could cause a material
adjustment to the depreciation and carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTtinuED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and

()

equipment

In determining whether a property, plant and equipment
is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment
no longer exists, management has to exercise judgement,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions,
including generation volumes of the power plants,
electricity prices, forecast periods, coal prices, and discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and risks specific to the CGUs, to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rate or the generation volume
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect net present value used in the impairment test.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units) and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows or
upward revision of discount rate, a material impairment
loss or further impairment loss may arise.

The details of the assumptions used by management and
the sensitivity analysis are disclosed in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (conTinueD)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Income taxation

As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax assets (2022:
nil) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax
losses of HK$11,263,812,000 (2022: HK$22,466,925,000)
either due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
or because it is not probable that unused tax losses will be
available for utilisation before their expiry. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future taxable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future.

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising from (i) sales of electricity,
and (ii) heat supply and related service by thermal power plants
during the year. The group is currently engaged in two business
areas — thermal power (inclusive of coal-fired and gas-fired
power plants) and renewable energy (inclusive of wind farms,
hydro-electric projects and photovoltaic power generation).

BIIEHE)

Sales of electricity (i)

— Sales of power generated from — NEBREEBHE
thermal power plants
— Sales of power generated from — O BEREREEHE

renewable energy
Heat supply related (by thermal power

plants) (ii)
— Heat supply — EAREfHIE
— Heat supply pipeline maintenance

service

4. EXG T FIENR (&5t FEA

ERBEMIE CABRREEED) (i)

— AR EEERERTS

BIEZEMNEERE@

st FEHBBREM E E KR (@)
(d) FEriE#

RE2_=%+"H=+—H"
BHARBBNIEEIEERIEIL
MEEE (CE-"F:8\) X
RARER ST ERRERPE
2 o AR KA EF R A TEA -
HARFBRIBEEEE M
FEENA M ERRIEE B
11,263,812,0008 5 (Z & - —
F 1 22,466,925,00078 7T) FER
FEERIBEE - RIEFTERE
EEGERTEEUANARKZ
DA ES BN EMRFTE
TR B ERMESR -

EXEERDEBER

EERRIENFAROHEEET > Kii)
N BB iR 35 A BE R AR B AR S T £
By o AEEIB LU S MEEE
DB — NN EEB (BEMRIEBEN
MRER RAIBEER (BERN
BB KNEBERKIGREES) o

2023
—E-=

HK$"000
THET

2022

HK$'000
THET

72,226,248 73,953,560
23,281,087 21,333,780
7,718,647 7,896,175

108,340 121,582

WeRcXZacrya 103,305,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (conTinuEeD)

For sales of electricity and heat supply, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when electricity and heat is generated and
transferred to the power grid owned by the respective regional
or provincial grid companies or the customers, respectively. For
heat supply pipeline maintenance service, revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers (“CODM"). The CODM mainly include executive
directors and members of senior management of the Company.
For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the CODM review operating results and financial
information on a group company by company basis. Each such
group company is identified as an operating segment. When
the group company operates in similar business model with
similar target group of customers, the group’s operating
segments are aggregated.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments” are as follows:

(i) Renewable energy represents sales of electricity,
development, construction, management and operation
of wind farms, hydro-electric projects and photovoltaic
power generation (“renewable energy”).

(i) Thermal power represents sales of electricity, provision of
related services, development, construction, management
and operation of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants
(“thermal power").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. EXREARTEBEN @
INFORMATION (continuED)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PREFELEANTGREANSE
performance obligation for contracts with customers N ZERE
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance N BT =ERE-__F+°H
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 —t+—HAERETRGREATENR
December 2023 and 2022, and the expected timing of B CREMNE D RER) MIE
recognising revenue are as follows: U A TEEART R T

2023 2022
= ETHF
Heat supply Heat supply
HAEIHAE AR

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET

Within one year —FRN 1,351,403 1,233,004
More than one year BiR—5 997,247 873,021

2,348,650 2,106,025

All sales of electricity are for periods of one year or less. As FTEBNHEE A —FHUT-
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to MIMB B BREERFE 155K R
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. o NERETFRZERENGONKS
BN TIRE -
China R P Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinuEeD)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

SEGMENT REVENUE 7B U

External sales AN ER G

Timing of revenue recognition S0 Ui 2 B9 Br
— at a point in time — MR —RFEIRS
— over time — PERF RS

Segment profit 7 BB

Exchange gains, net FE R U s F 58

Profit before income tax BRPTISR AT A
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5. SXHERDHER @

DB I R R A

UTRRAZERDMBE DA ER

Wk Ko SRR DA

BE
FE

Thermal
power

N

HK$'000
FETT

80,053,235

79,944,895

108,340

80,053,235

5,472,131

— = — =

RN S —

Renewable
energy
ABEER
HK$'000
FET

23,281,087

23,281,087

23,281,087

9,960,885

F+ZHA=+—HL

Total
“Est
HK$'000
FET

103,334,322

103,225,982
108,340

103,334,322

15,433,016

66,081

15,499,097
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continuED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

DEUN R R FEE )
BE_ZE__#+_B=+—HL

5. SXHERDHER @

FE
Thermal Renewable
power energy Total
NE  AB%ER wEst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT TFET T8
SEGMENT REVENUE o EBU R
External sales ANER G 81,971,317 21,333,780 103,305,097
Timing of revenue recognition S0 s A A B R
— at a point in time — RE—RE 2, 81,849,735 21,333,780 103,183,515
— over time — PERFRE ISR 121,582 — 121,582
81,971,317 21,333,780 103,305,097
Segment (losses) profit o EB (B518) FH (2,540,676) 10,008,388 7,467,712
Exchange gains, net PE U R 5B 1,993,762
Profit before income tax bR PT1S 3R B A T 9,461,474

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. EXERDEBEN @
INFORMATION (continueDp)
Segment assets and liabilities DEHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities UTAZUZRDIE DN AEE
by operating and reportable segment: BEKREBEDT:

2023

—_— s — —

—_———

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Segment assets DEEE
— Thermal power — W& PZN RN 121,678,713
— Renewable energy — AIBEER EEEAVATLE 161,708,933

Total segment assets and consolidated MAEEERGHEE

assets EyyRei LRl 283,387,646
Segment liabilities pan= =K

— Thermal power — K& 109,214,989 98,626,120

— Renewable energy — AIBAESEIR EXEERI N 84,207,978

Total segment liabilities and consolidated 42N ZEBEREHEE

liabilities PAVEZER.Z N 182,834,098
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MERDEBRBERN DB 2B D
allocating resources among segments, all assets and liabilities BRME MBEBEEREBENRAEASE
are allocated to operating segments in the current year. ERREEEDE
225 Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. EXERIPTEH @
INFORMATION (continuED)
Other segment information Hit &R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_Z”_-_F+“HA=+—HLt
FE

Thermal Renewable
power energy Total

KE  AIBEER w5t

HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET

Amounts included in the BIETE D BB A K

measure of segment profit DEPEESTER

and segment assets: R
Additions to non-current FERBEENREM

assets (i) KE() 15,691,071 45,593,122 61,284,193
Depreciation and amortisation 375 K i 5 7,476,778 7,243,429 14,720,207
Impairment charges EEK 1,061,097 1,687,601 2,748,698
Net gains on disposal of HEME - BER

property, plant and equipment R AU F 4B 119,867 4,670 124,537
Share of results of associates ELHE R REE 1,407,121 (224,066) 1,183,055
Share of results of joint ventures FE(LE & & (S 448,391 (90,108) 358,283
Finance costs M8 R 2,607,417 1,633,220 4,240,637
Interest income FE WA 52,561 72,558 125,119

Amounts reqularly provided to  TEHIR B EEREKE
CODM but not included in the  1Z2HEFRBIEE DB

measure of segment profit: FMHEFTENELR !
Income tax expense FriStR & A 1,712,423 1,676,179 3,388,602
4
i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

5. SXHERDHER @

INFORMATION (continueDp)
Other segment information (Continued) HhpEE R @)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_E-_—_#+-_A=+—H1t
FE
Thermal Renewable
power energy Total
XNE  AIBEER #aEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Amounts included in the BIEED I E R
measure of segment profit DEPEESTER
and segment assets: B
Additions to non-current ERBMEENRENE
assets (i) = (i) 6,826,228 28,665,813 35,492,041
Depreciation and amortisation 78 K # 84 7,925,147 6,504,445 14,429,592
Impairment charges EEK 871,718 173,498 1,045,216
Net gains (losses) on disposal HEME - BREK
of property, plant and REHWE (B518)
equipment FER 42,303 (8,937) 33,366
Share of results of associates FEILERE (R (181,500) 68,824 (112,676)
Share of results of joint ventures FE{E &2 (2 £4E (242,822) 156,085 (86,737)
Finance costs MHER 1,671,468 2,218,724 3,890,192
Interest income FE WA 115,545 76,906 192,451

Amounts regularly provided to  EHiBFEEEREKE
CODM but not included in the  1RHEFRBIEEDEB
measure of segment profit: FEFtENEEE -

Income tax expense PSR & A

620,022 1,285,552 1,905,574

U]

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continuED)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are principally located in the PRC. The
Group's revenue from external customers are mainly attributed
to customers located in the PRC. The Group’s non-current
assets excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments,
which amounted to HK$270,694,383,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$230,031,617,000)are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of each corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A (Note)
Customer B (Note)

=5 A (&)
=B (fizE)

BEBERIBEH @

g Bt
AEENEETBMUNRAPE KE
EFAERBEIINTELNREEER
BURFENER R_E_-=
+ZB=+—H > AEBENIERH
EE (FEBELEFREREERSRH
T H) 270,694,383,000/& 7T (=&
— T4 :230,031,617,000 % 7T) it
R o

EREXEERNER

REEREEEMRAEREBHER
B110% BYE PR RUEEII T ¢

2023 2022

TEBI=HF B

HK$"000
FTHET

HK$'000
TR

14,401,570
10,856,659

17,745,438
11,916,680

Note: Revenue from both the thermal power and renewable energy segments.

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Wages, salaries and bonus

Social insurance expenses and retirement
benefit schemes (note 42(i) & (ii))

Termination benefit costs (note 42(iii))

TE - e &IEA

2R E A SR KRBT
=& (FF5E 4203) R (i)

BRIt EEFNER (EE42(i)

M5t @ ZRENBRAIBAESERD BRI ©

6. ESEFRAX

2023 2022

== =

— — = —

HK$'000
THET

—_——

HK$°000
THET

6,069,809 5,598,945

1,101,459
15,627

1,031,455
1,193

7,186,895 6,631,593

482,295
74,335

282,829
43,630

Expenses capitalised in construction in REZRIRERERL
progress: HNER :
Other staff costs HMMB T A
Pension costs RIRAL A
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 6. EEEFHAZ®

(CONTINUED)

(i) Five highest paid individuals () EaEEFHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FROAEBRAZ RS FHA
in the Group for the year include two (2022: one) directors TEERE (T2 2F —8)
whose emoluments are disclosed in the analysis shown in £ 125D RHE
note 12. The emoluments paid to the remaining three BN c FREMNFEHR =8 (Z
(2022: four) individuals during the year are as follows. T8 ME) ALREBW

Ko

2023 2022

—_——.— — — s — —

— e — =

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

Salaries and other benefits EREMBEF 4,266
Bonus TE4T 7,435
Post-employment benefits BEZEEF 517
12,218
Emoluments of these three (2022: four) individuals other =% CE-_®#: @8 A
than directors are within the following bands: + (EBBFHERS BFMN T T 5
FE :

Number of individuals
ANEK
2023 2022
o= =T

Emolument bands ¥eMEE
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 BTE
4,000,000 77T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 Bt E
4,500,000 7T
229 Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

7. OTHER INCOME

Sales of by-products
Government grants (note)

Interest income

Service income

Dividend income from FVOCI investee

7. HfttlgA

2023 2022

== ==

— —

HK$°000
TET

—_—

HK$°000
THET

HEBIE & 535,125

AT #EE) (M5E) 800,443
F EUWA 125,119
AR 7 & WA 228,957

REUAREBEFEREY

companies SFARME S W ER
WEREATNREWA 59,690
Carbon emissions rights trading income  BxHERERZ Z UK A 245,801
Others Hih 34,596
2,029,731 1,981,567
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received grants from certain e HEZT_=F+"A=+—HIEFE &

PRC governmental departments to compensate high operating costs amounting to
HK$78,234,000 (2022: HK$90,399,000). Those conditions attached with these
grants have been met before receipt of the grants and, therefore, the Group

recognised the grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received grants of
HK$185,317,000 (2022: HK$135,100,000), from the PRC government, for
encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries to increase supply of electricity, and grants for
encouraging the development of environmental friendly electricity generation of
HK$473,503,000 (2022: HK$429,891,000). Those conditions attached to these
grants have been met before receipt of the grants and are not related to assets,
therefore, the Group recognised the grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, government grants relating to assets
that are credited to other income amounted to HK$63,389,000 (2022:

HK$61,212,000) (note 41).

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EBHENEZERBRAT

EEWIETPEBTEHMAHEESMA
& 0 2 A R RG> %8 4 78,234,000 8 7T

&= T4 190,399,000 7T) c 2 E B
BIM S I B R EBGRIBRT B ER, 0 FIL >
AEE R UGB RESRHBN A U ©

RBEE_B_=F+"B=+—RALFE"
7 52 [ Y B R BT B 25 AR ARG 185,317,000
#BIT (ZF Z 4 1 135,100,000 7T) T4 FB
REBETHENEBARNMHRESE IR
S EN B S IR MR 3 B 18 B # A8 473,503,000 7
TC(ZZ -4 : 429,891,000587T) © %7
BB I 5 164 B R W R 1B AT E R iE A B 52
BEER > AL > REBE P UREFRE 2B
AU o

REE_E_=Zf+_"_A=+—HILEE"
FAHMBANSEEEABBRNEE 2
63,389,000 70 (Z &= —4 : 61,212,000
7o) (FisE41)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hithiazs=

Exchange gains, net PE & /2 N
Gains on disposal of property, plantand ~HEY¥ « BERZHEHN

2023 2022
—=— =

—_—

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

66,081 1,993,762

124,537 33,366
31,469 90,987
47,029 32,137

(55,806) =

1,189 33,897

214,499 2,184,149

equipment Wz
Gains on disposal of right-of-use assets ~ H & AEEENW
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ER
Losses on disposal of a joint venture HESE L ENEIE
Others HAth
9. FINANCE COSTS 9.

Interest on borrowings BERNE
Interest on corporate bonds REMESFE
Interest on loans from related parties Ealiiyai=Es =\
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGMNE
Others HAth

MEER

2023 2022
—E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

4,570,204 4,357,490
91,482 190,109
285,521 132,545
19,342 25,298
74,494 92,370

Less: Interest capitalised in construction & : RERTIEEAREH
in progress (note 16) FE (Fizx16)

5,041,043 4,797,812

(800,406) (907,620)

4,240,637 3,890,192

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying
assets and on the general borrowing pool which are calculated
by applying an average capitalisation rate of 3.20% (2022:
3.91%) per annum to expenditures incurred on qualifying
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

10.PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10.FRFREFR A0 FUE
2023 2022

— 5= —

—_—

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET

Profit before income tax has been BRETSIR A A ENER

arrived at after charging: THIRIE :
Auditor’s remuneration %S EMEN = 14,595 13,875
Cost of inventories recognised as FEMAER AT H

expenses 55,675,789 65,583,675
Depreciation and amortisation ITEE Rt 14,720,207 14,429,592
Expenses capitalised in construction RERZIRERERL

in progress: &R :

Depreciation and amortisation IrEs R i85 165,139 122,596

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.FriSIREH

2023 2022
—EC=F =

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Current taxation: E2HIRIE !

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — FEBEMRER
(ThE B 2EPRSIR1) 3,435,078 2,076,220

Deferred taxation credit (note 22) EIEFRIEEE (M95E22) (46,476) (170,646)

Total #a%E 3,388,602 1,905,574
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the FAEBRRMEFEFEANREELET
Group had no taxable profit or incurred tax losses in Hong IR RMF N ELEIE > W&
Kong for both years. MBEBNSRIELBE -
PRC EIT has been calculated based on the estimated assessable FRE] B EPTSIR A PR E AR
profits in accordance with the relevant tax rates applicable to B(PREAREMBECEMERZE
the subsidiaries in the PRC under the Corporate Income Tax Ffr i FA AU AE BE AR 0 F2 (4 T B SRR
Law of the People’s Republic of China. AT o

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 232
EBHENEZERBRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuED)

Pursuant to CaiShui [2012] No. 10 Notice on the Execution of
the Catalogue of Public Infrastructure Projects Entitled for
Preferential Tax Treatment, certain wind power projects of the
Group, which were set up after 1 January 2008, are entitled to
a tax holiday of a three-year full exemption, followed by a
three-year 50% exemption of EIT, commencing from their first
turnover-making year.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2020] No. 23 Notice on Tax Policy Issues
concerning Further Implementing the Western China
Development Strategy, certain group companies located in the
western regions of the PRC, are entitled to a tax holiday of a
two-year full PRC EIT exemption, followed by a three-year 50%
exemption commencing from their first year of reporting
turnover and can enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
after the tax holiday.

In addition, certain of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
entitled to certain tax credit (“Tax Credit”) against their
assessable EIT, which is calculated as 10% of the current year’s
purchases and use of specific environmental friendly, water and
energy-saving, safety-enhanced equipment in the Group’s
electricity generation business. The portion of Tax Credit that
has not been utilised in the current period can be carried
forward for future tax credit over a period of not more than five
years.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

11.FriEiRER @

R 70 [2012]10 5% (B4 ECER ~ Bl
MBERBERATALERRER
BEEMIRESEREBABERN
B AEBR _ZEZNF—A—
ANERINETREREEEEE
ENFEEN=FERREMIT
Mo MBER=FERFRREFEM
S -

RIE I 12[2020]23 5% (RATS 2R A B I
75 80 K 5 35 B BR A R AR B SR S8
pyi@D) - AT UR PRSI ER
AP EEBEENFERENMERE
BB XEFRER 2R =F%
BMF¥FREEEMER > B %H
BEEA15%NEEFFNIRE -

HESh » AT E T B & A B 5t
ERNEEMSNEE—TENEE
BUREER) ZMNEEBEE
FEEREENEBEEBBERE
RIRR K ERZEIERR
#EY10% 5T 5 o A HARE I HEE A
MIBE BRI A ST ARRER >
WHIRA SN AE -

Annual Report 2023
FR



A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continuED)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss as follows:

Profit before income tax

BRPr1SIRRI A

11.FrEIRERA w

RAEFE FIERERASHEAR
RBBRFISIBI A SR ¢

2023 2022

—E== o
—g=-= —E-—

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET

15,499,097 9,461,474

Calculated at a tax rate of 25%
(2022: 25%)

Tax exemptions and concessions rates
granted to PRC subsidiaries

Other tax credit

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Unrecognised deductible temporary
differences

Unrecognised tax losses

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses and temporary differences

Withholding tax on the earnings remitted

Withholding tax on the earnings
anticipated to be remitted by
certain subsidiaries

Income tax expense for the year

I 25%
(ZBZZF :25%) 5t& 3,874,774 2,365,369
R Y B A B E R AR 18
R MER G2l (1,268,833)
HtiRBER (32,734) (253)
BEHRBWA (426,196) (209,665)
Tﬁmﬁmﬁi 172,482 131,126
RFE SR A0 8 B = 5
621,634 266,797
RIERRIBRE 8 502,667 887,623
FRBFRERNRIE
BB R R A= %8 (629,565) (536,636)
PE HBI B A TR 401,313 219,938
BETHB LA B
BE BB A AN AR
76,622 50,108
FAMERER 3,388,602 1,905,574

Tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) is adopted for the taxation
reconciliation as such tax rate is applicable to most of the

Group's operations in the PRC for the year.

The tax credit (charge) relating to other comprehensive income

is as follows:

WRnBEER
ﬁ@]uﬂ\ﬁfﬂwu
Wi AnBEEE

Fair value changes of FVOCI

2023
-t
Beforetax  Tax charge
wal  RERM
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiEn TEn

96,385 (24,09)

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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ERE MRS WmHAIMRIER 2 (1)
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2022
“ECCF
Aftertax  Before tax Tax credit After tax
itk mal RESH itk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THn TEL TEL TEL

72,289 60,773 (15,192) 45,581




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
EHE2023F12H831HLEFEE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 12.EEX ‘- HEHNITERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS Bl &

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EENEEHITENS

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BHE_Z”_-_F+“HA=+—HL
December 2023 is set out below: FE X EEFNMNEHEIUOT

Salaries and Pension
Fees bonus costs Total

BE FHERTEA - BARK # st

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET THERT THERT THET

Non-executive directors: FEHITES .
Wang Chuandong (ii) FERR (i)
Chen Guoyong R B
Liu Guixin (iii) 283 (iii)
Zhou Bo (iv) B (iv)
Zhang Yingzhong (v) SRIEHR (v)

Executive directors: BITES .

Shi Baofeng FEIE
Zhang Junzheng SRE I
Wang Xiao Bin (vi) F N (vi)
Song Kui (vii) IR EE T A (vii)

Independent non-executive ~ BILIEHAITES !
directors:

Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Raymond £ %&
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie REF
So Chak Kwong, Jack BREI
Yang Yuchuan BEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'SAND 12.EX ‘- HEHITERES

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (conTinuED) £ @

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EEREEHNITEME®
(Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BHE_Z_“HF+“HA=+—HL1Lt
December 2022 is set out below: FE > FEFMSHEYWT

Salaries and Pension
Fees bonus costs Total
WE FERIEA 527NN 45t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

Non-executive directors: FEHTES .
Wang Chuandong FER - - - -
Chen Guoyong B B 28 158 - - 158
Liu Guixin 2EH - - - -
Executive directors: MITES !
Shi Baofeng PEIE - 2,593 188 2,781
Zhang Junzheng IRE - 4,246 188 4,434
Wang Xiao Bin F - 3,329 78 3,407
Independent non-executive ~ BWILIFHITES !
directors:
Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Raymond ~ #£3R& 470 - - 470
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie R 470 - - 470
So Chak Kwong, Jack RN 470 - - 470
Yang Yuchuan BE 470 - - 470
2,038 10,168 454 12,660
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (conTiNnuED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(i) Remuneration to a director is generally an emolument paid or payable in respect of
that person’s services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries undertakings.

(ii) Mr. Wang Chuandong resigned as a non-executive director on 24 April 2023.
(iii) Mr. Liu Guixin resigned as a non-executive director on 18 October 2023.
(iv) Mr. Zhou Bo was appointed as a non-executive director on 18 October 2023.

(v) Mr. Zhang Yingzhong was appointed as a non-executive director on 18 October
2023.

(vi) Ms. Wang Xiao Bin resigned as an executive director on 8 February 2023.

(vii)

Mr. Song Kui was appointed as an executive director on 23 May 2023.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group
to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Certain executive directors who did not receive emoluments
during the reporting periods, also held positions in the
shareholders of the Company and their subsidiaries
(“Shareholder’s Entities”) and the emoluments were borne by
the respective Shareholder’s Entities for the services rendered
for the Shareholder’s Entities. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, it is not practicable to allocate their
remunerations to the Group. No directors have waived any
remuneration during the year.

237

12.

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE
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£ @
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= |l

+
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& 2 T AT RN & o

(if) FEBEEN S =FMB - +MNAFHTE
FERITES o

iy BIEMAEENRZZ=F+8+/\HETE
HiITEE -

vy BREER-_ZB_=F+B+/\BEZES
FERITES o

(v) REPEENR_Z_=FE+A+N\BEZE
BIERITES ©

viy T RERIZ-=FE"//N\BEIHT
EBEo

(i) REEEN_Z_=FRIR_+=HEST
BPITES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (conTiNUED)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

Other than those disclosed above, none of the directors
received or will receive any retirement benefits or termination
benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2023, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2022: Nil).

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES

ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of the
Company resolved to dispose of two mining companies in
Guizhou Province, PRC (“Mines”) which was included in
thermal power segment. The disposal agreement with an
interested party was subsequently signed in February 2023. The
assets and liabilities attributable to the Mines, which were
expected to be sold within twelve months at 31 December
2022, had been classified as assets held for sale and are
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position (see below). The net proceeds of disposal are
HK$432,261,000 which exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities (note 47). The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Mines as at 31
December 2022, which had been presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

M~ BB R &R

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

BHEFEEE ENES

FETEEEMEMNAaR

BE_ T+ "H=+—H1L
FE > ARNBDEFTRABHEMRF
EEMNENMKREEAT (MEX)) »
ZMRABBRNE DI - BEF
MEFNEERBZEERRRZ

TS RA®BE] AR E=C
F+-_A=+—HBH+ZEEARLE
NELEHEERBEEDEAR
EREEE UNEHEHBERIE
(BT HEBEY - HEMRSER
TH;3 %8 4 432,261,000 7% 73 » 8 45
MEERBENEREBFE (M
47) cHERBE_ZE-_=F+_H
—t+—HLEFERMR-

R-_E__HF#+_-_B=+—H'B
REHTBRTERPEBRIRE
LWEERSEMNEZEAMT :

2022/12/31
B _F
+=-B=+—H

HK$'000
THET

1,477,028

Right-of-use assets FERESE 60,799
Mining rights XUz 325,877
Exploration and resources rights R R ERE 151,887
Prepayments B =IE 31,195
Other receivables Hihpg g zria 4,727
Total assets classified as held for sale NEAFEFENREE 2,051,513
Liabilities associated with assets classified HNEARAEFEEERMD

as held for sale I=NE
— represented by trade and other payables

&

— UEZ REMENRIER

212,298
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

14.DIVIDENDS

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
Final dividend for 2022 of HK$0.376
(2022: for 2021 of HK$0.045) per share
on 4,810,443,740 (2022:
4,810,443,740) shares

Interim dividend for 2023 of HK$0.328
(2022: of HK$0.21) per share on
4,810,443,740 (2022: 4,810,443,740)
shares

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
Special dividend for 2023 of HK$0.50 per
share on 4,810,443,740 shares
(Note (i)

FRRRADIRIIRE

2714,810,443,740 0%

FRRERADIKIRE

B5t4,810,443,740 B IED = 1

14.12 8
2023

59

[ S —

HK$'000
TR

2022

HK$'000
THET

(T2 4,810,443,740 %)
BTN B _FREAKE
#0376 (CTE__F !
“E2T—F8K0.045%E7T)
B764,810,443,740 1%

(ZZT -4 :4,810,443,740 %)
BRBSZH_E_=FHHRE
B03288T (CTE-_&F !
58%0.21E77T)

1,808,727 216,470

1,577,826 1,010,193

“EC=FRAIRESKR

0.50 &7t (FFEE () 2,405,222

5,791,775 1,226,663

Dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting year:
Proposed final dividend for 2023 of
HK$0.587 (2022: HK$0.376) per
share (Note (ii))

REFEREREKNKE :
‘T};ir"/[k— =< ——EXH@HX/@\@HQ

0587 BT (ZE "%
0.37687t) (FF&E (i)

2,823,730 1,808,727

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT

Notes: (i) 12 November 2023 marks the 20th anniversary of the Company’s listing on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 9
November 2023, the board of Directors has resolved to declare a special
dividend of HK$0.50 per ordinary share of the Company (the “Special
Dividend”) which amounts to HK$2.405 billion of the Special Dividend

declared in total.

(ii) A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of
HK$0.587 per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$2,823,730,000 is
to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 5 June 2024. The
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary
shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.

Profit attributable to owners of the KABEE ANKRBIFE
Company from continuing operations KEREGLFE
(HK$'000) (F#7)

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

15. 5B HEF

REFBECERRIEEENERE
KB ARABER ABILFHE
FRUERBEETEERNMNETT
HEADBEUFFEFRMONE
BRRFRIN) 5t o

11,003,283 7,042,478

Weighted average number of ordinary BETEERME
shares in issue (thousands) T8 (FAR)

4,810,444

No diluted earnings per share for both 2023 and 2022 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
for both 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.M9% - BER®RE

Motor

Power vehicles,

generating fumiture,
plant and Mining fixtures  Construction

Buildings equipment structures and others in progress Total
AE R

BF LERREE RERE  RERHM fEIR st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn T TR TR TEn T

At 1 January 2022 R-E-"%-F-H

Cost S 48937844 225,664,408 380304 2891944 26421060 304,295,560
Impairment i (221,257) (221,939) (305,674) (4135)  (1588,021)  (2,347,026)
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (20,033936)  (86,512,576) (74630)  (1,781,366) - (108402,508)
Net book amount REAE 28676651 138,929,893 - 1106443 24833039 193546026

Yearended 31 December 202 ~ HE-EZZ

+2B=1-8

LEE
Opening net book amount EREFE 28,676,651 138,929,893 - 1,106,443 24833039 193,546,026
Exchange adjustments ERHE (2400139 (11,652,520) - (898200 (2.100753)  (16,243,232)
Disposal of subsidiaries RENEAT - - - (36) = (36)
Additions HE 162,895 675,971 - 65709 29507686 30,412,261
Transfer B 2705274 14,146,203 - 128231 (16,595,169) 384,559
Disposals & (32,899) (145,222) - (23,859) (231,438) (433,418)
Impairment B (6,300) (68,852) - (493) (547,573) (623,218)
Depreciation charge nERY (2236,551)  (11,697,117) - (276,293) - (14,209,91)
Reclassified as held for sale BN BARERERE (18,889) (8,800) - (677) (1448662  (1477,028)
Closing net book amount EXRERE 26850042 130,179,576 - 909205 33417130 191,355,953
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE

+-R=+-H
Cost A 47512,138 220973356 3826 2651307 34403116 305,543,743
Impairment A (217,595) (599,751) (2,885) (6,911) (985986)  (1,813,128)
Accumulated depreciation ZIiTE (20,444501)  (90,194,029) o1  (1,735,191) - (112374,66))
Net book amount FEFE 26850042 130,179,576 - 909205 33417130 191,355,953

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Yearended 31 December203 ~ HEZEC=

+ZB=+-A
LFE

Opening net ook amount EfRERE

Exchange adjustments ERR%

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENBAT

Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT

Additions hE

Transfer s

Disposals HE

Impairment A

Depreciation charge ERx

Closing net book amount EXRRERE

At 31 December 2023 RZEZZE
+ZB=+-A

Cost e

Impairment A

Accumulated depreciation e

Net book amount RE#E

Buildings

g7
HKS'000
TR

26,850,042
(366,179)
233,209
(274)
252,401
2,458,475
(18,089)
(25,016)
(2,254,880)

27,129,689

49,655,368
(234372)
(22,291,307)

27,129,689

Power
generating
plant and
equipment

EEEV e
HKS'000
TEn

130,179,576
(1,584,071)
1,816,649
(286)
2,250,928
25,016,073
(421,380)
(438,773)
(12,003,961)

150,814,755

252,675,760
(985,805)
(100,875,200)

150,814,755

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the following useful lives:

Buildings

-ES

Power generating plant and equipment
LB

Mining structures

RUEZR18

Motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and others
AE R B R EAM

243
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BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
fixtures

and others
AE R
RERHM
HK$'000
TiEn

Mining

R
HKS'000
TR

909,205
(51,581)
18,967
(492)
271,09
38,048
(102,679)

(220,099)

868,459

2,582,736
(5,904)
(1,708,373)

868,459

18-45 years
18456
15-20 years
15F 204
5-20 years
5ZE204F
3-10 years
3E 104

33,417,130
(537,763)

33,046,403
(27,512,59)
(606,338)
(1,427,519)

36,939,239

39,303,983
(2,364,744)

36,939,239

EBE2023F128318LLFE

16.9% - BERSZH®

Construction
in progress

Total

hRIRE st

HK$'000
TiEn

HKS'000
TR

191,355,953
(2,539,5%)
8,655,543
(27,348)
35,826,822

586,718
(26,79)

(1,148,486)
(1,891,308)
- (14,478,940)

215,752,142

344,217,847
(3,590,825)
(124,874,880

215,752,142

ERAERTREMSINIYE - BERRHFEE
BRI ERFHRRERAINE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to HK$800,406,000 (2022: HK$907,620,000) (note

9) on qualifying assets.

Depreciation charges of HK$14,467,949,000 and HK$10,991,000
(2022: HK$14,162,846,000 and HK$47,115,000) has been
recorded in operating expenses or capitalised in “construction

in progress”, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, total net book value of property,
plant and equipment pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank
borrowings amounted to HK$2,319,159,000 (2022:

HK$2,574,925,000) (note 39).

As at 31 December 2023, the ownership certificates of certain
buildings (“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$1,717,914,000 (2022: HK$758,427,000) had not been
obtained by the Group. After consultation made with the
Company’s legal counsel, the directors of the Company
consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply
for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and it should
not lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of

the Group.

Additional information on property, plant and
equipment

As at 31 December 2023, management identified property,
plant and equipment of certain thermal power generating
plants and renewable power generating plants with impairment
indicators. Management performed impairment assessment in
relation to such assets. Each thermal power generating plant or
renewable power generating plant is determined as a CGU. The
impairment losses attributable to these CGUs was then
allocated to write down the assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset (including
right-of-use assets (note 17) and related property, plant and

equipment) in the CGU.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 244
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Additional information on property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment charges
related to property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$1,891,308,000 (2022: HK$623,218,000) were recognised
in operating expenses, HK$1,153,479,000 (2022: nil) of which
is related to projects for which the relevant property, plant and
equipment with material impairment indicators is written down
to their recoverable amount, while HK$737,829,000 of which
is related to projects which are assessed to have as no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal,
resulting in full write-off on the relevant property, plant and
equipment. The net book value of the property, plant and
equipment with impairment indicators amounted to
HK$14,204,582,000 (net of impairment charges for the year of
HK$1,153,479,000) as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the management of one hydropower
plant under renewable energy decided to increase its
investment costs in coming year which was identified as a
material impairment indicator. The management conducted
impairment assessment of the CGUs to which these property,
plant and equipment belongs with carrying amounts of
HK$384,357,000 (net of impairment charges for the year of
HK$839,575,000). The recoverable amount of property plant
and equipment has been determined based on a value in use
calculation, using cash flow projections covering a period of
operating period with a pre-tax discount rate at 7% as at 31
December 2023. The other key assumption for the value in use
calculations are the generation volumes of those hydropower
plant power projects by reference to market expectation. The
management assumed no sales growth in the forecast period
because there is no change in the hydro power generation
capacity of those projects. Based on the result of the
assessment, management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than the carrying
amount, an impairment of HK$839,575,000 (2022: nil), has
been recognised against the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.99% - BER=EE @

(CONTINUED)

Additional information on property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain thermal
power generating plants’ operating performance were below
expectations, the management of the Group concluded that
there were material impairment indicators and conducted
impairment assessment of the CGUs to which these property,
plant and equipment belongs with carrying amounts of
HK$421,918,000 (net of impairment charges for the year of
HK$291,309,000). The recoverable amount of property plant
and equipment has been determined based on a value in use
calculation, using cash flow projections covering a period of
operating period with a pre-tax discount rate ranging from 6%
t0 9% as at 31 December 2023. The other key assumption for
the value in use calculations are the natural gas prices of those
thermal plants power projects with 3% to 7% per annum
decline in unit cost during the forecast period. Based on the
result of the assessment, management of the Group
determined that the recoverable amount of those certain CGUs
are lower than the carrying amount, an impairment of
HK$291,309,000 (2022: nil), has been recognised against the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain wind farms’
operating performance were below expectations, the
management of the Group concluded that there were material
impairment indicators and conducted impairment assessment
of the CGUs to which these property, plant and equipment
belongs with carrying amounts of HK$2,652,222,000 (net of
impairment charges for the year of HK$22,595,000). The
recoverable amount of property plant and equipment has been
determined based on a value in use calculation, using cash flow
projections covering a period of operating period with a pre-tax
discount rate at 9% as at 31 December 2023. The other key
assumption for the value in use calculations are the generation
volumes of those wind farms power projects by reference to
market expectation. The management assumed no sales growth
in the forecast period because there is no change in the wind
power generation capacity of those projects. Based on the
result of the assessment, management of the Group
determined that the recoverable amount of those certain CGUs
are lower than the carrying amount, an impairment of
HK$22,595,000 (2022: nil), has been recognised against the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Additional information on property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment charges
amounting to HK$568,451,000 (2022:nil) were recognised on
the certain thermal and renewable power generating plants
under construction included in the property, plant and
equipment for the year. The carrying amount has been
derecognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment charges
amounting to HK$462,315,000 (2023: nil) were recognised on
the mining structures under construction included in the
property, plant and equipment for the year. The recoverable
amount has been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal.

As at 31 December 2023, impairment charges amounting to
HK$169,378,000 (2022: HK$160,903,000) were related to
certain individual assets planned to be disposed, retired or
obsolete to follow the change in technology and regulating
environment.

The movement on the provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment of the Group by segment is as follows:

Thermal power
segment

KEHH

2023

—— =

—_—<—

HK$’000
TET

At 1 January n—B—H 1,434,790
Exchange differences EREER 8,569
Provision of impairment E R 969,779
Disposals/written-off/ HE MiH,

reclassified as assets EMNEARE

held for sales HEBE (121,515)
At 31 December R+ZR=+—H
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2,291,623 1,434,790
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Renewable energy
segment
B BAREIRD &
2022 2023
- S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

2022
BT

HK$'000
TET

1,972,816 378,338 374,210
145,632 2,099 29,105
560,691 921,529 62,527

(1,244,349) (2,764) (87,504)

1,299,202 378,338
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSE

TS 17.EREEE

Power
generating Motor
Leasehold [ENTENT vehicles
land Buildings  equipment  and others Total

BELH BT LBRRZE AEREM st
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TER TiEn TER TEn

CosT R
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%
tZA=+-H
Carrying amounts REfE 8,693,990 485,653 106,186 7384 9357173
As at 31 December 2022 RZIE_Z
+ZA=1+-H
Carrying amounts REE 6,322,426 296,269 17,220 79 6,635,994
For the year ended BE-Z-=
31 December 2023 +ZB=+-H
ILFE
Depreciation charge ERMS 278,799 93,128 379,024
For the year ended e
31 December 2022 +ZRA=+-H
ILEFE
Depreciation charge HERx 205,590 101,118 33,621 491 340,820

Expense relating to short-term
and low-value leases

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
HE—_=E_-= HE_E—_—

+t=ZB=t—H +ZA=+—H

IEFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET

B RREEEE
BRI 36,216 54,465

Total cash outflow for leases

HEMIRE iR 461,746 768,384

Additions to right-of-use assets

ERAEEERE 3,174,637 2,141,733

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (conTinuED)

As at 31 December 2023, land use right certificates (“Land
Certificates”) of certain parcels of land of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$170,194,000 (2022:
HK$57,999,000) had not been obtained. After consultation
made with the Company’s legal counsel, the directors consider
that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for and
obtain the Land Certificates and it should not lead to any
significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation of
HK$252,258,000 (2022: HK$265,339,000) and
HK$126,766,000 (2022: HK$75,481,000) has been recorded in
operating expenses or capitalised in construction in progress,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, HK$60,799,000
was reclassified as assets held for sale (note 13).

The Group leases various buildings, power generating plant and
equipment, land use rights, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures,
equipment and others. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 27 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. Leased assets
other than leasehold land may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for buildings
and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-
term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

17.FREEE @

RZE_=F+"FB=+—H =&
EEERESTETHIRMN Lt
BB (TTHMEE)) »EREBEA
170,194,000 7 (Z & - _&F:
57,999,000 7T) c EREFLHAEA
BAEERE RARNEERRBR
ééﬁ%»iiﬂzu WA FEEEEERS]

EHAEENKESEMIME
j:T%IJE/%E o

BHE_ZE_—_F+-_B=+—HL
FE o #485252,258,000/8 7T (Z&
— _”4# :265,339,0008 ) &
126,766,000 75 (Z & - —
75,481,000 75) 249 B ﬁ)\%%é?ﬁ%
T RIERTIE

HE_T_—_#+”"_AB=+—HL
FE 60,799,000/ 8 B EEEH D
MMARBETESE (H:E13)

rEEERTAREEREY &8
BRBE THEBEAE R

KB REREM HESOE
ER/IE27TFNEEHR o

HERRIREREEGRE P Rk—
%ﬂ’f’ﬂﬂ%?ﬂ&ﬂ%ﬁ & £ L
SR E B E R BE T AE A EERB
ERm ©

AEBTEHMEFT KRB LI
HE R_E_=ZFK_F__

+-B=+—H RHEEEsH
W EEHREERSIMNEAEE

HERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

18.GOODWILL

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill during the

18. 54
PE B R AR A A B T

year are as follows:

HK$'000
TET

COST 3%
At 1 January 2022 N_E_-__&F#—H—H 2,732,138
Exchange adjustments b 0 EREE (47,782)

At 31 December 2022
Exchange adjustments
Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46)

R_ZE__F+-H=+—H
b S0 5 2
BB B AT AR (i 46)

2,684,356
(42,628)
577,847

Relating to deregistration of subsidiaries BT HHIE AR A (42,683)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+Z"HA=+—H 3,176,892

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES KetRERE

At 1 January 2022 =B _F—H—H 2,068,479

Exchange adjustments b 42 5 B2 (6,027)

At 31 December 2022

W2 __F#+"A=+—H

2,062,452

Exchange adjustments b 42 5 B (1,464)
Relating to deregistration of subsidiaries B IE B A BB R (42,683)

At 31 December 2023

WZE_=%+"H=+—H

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2023

IREE
WZE_=F+"H=+—H

At 31 December 2022

RE__H#+"_HB=+—H

2,018,305

1,158,587

621,904

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EHBEHERARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.GOODWILL (conTiNUED)

Impairment tests for goodwiill

Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs of the Company’s subsidiaries
within two segments, thermal power and renewable energy, in
different provinces in the PRC. The carrying amounts of major
goodwill allocated to individual CGUs are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_ZT_=
+ZR=+-H
LLEE
Thermal power segment KNBEEDE
— China Resources (Jiangsu) —EBEN O1IH)
Investment Co., Ltd. REERRAE
— Xuzhou Huaxin Power —BMNESEE
Generation Co., Ltd. BRAE
— Other subsidiaries — HEtBAE
Renewable energy segment TEERERD
— Guangdong Runneng New — BREAENER
Energy Co., Ltd. BRAH
— Zhangye Lilong New Energy — Rk
Development Co., Ltd. FrAE R %
BRAF
— China Resources Finance — EHMEMER
New Energy (Dongying) (RE) BRAT
Co., Limited
Other subsidiaries Httf B AE
Total st
251

1 January
2023
“8_=F

—R—H
HK$'000

TET

210,925

88,115
312,416

611,456

10,448

10,448

621,904

18. & w

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

EHE2023F12H831HLEFEE

2R E A

BHEDREARTDNRFABETRE N
BYB BB A B W E 7 BF (A B R AT
BERR ANRESELEMN - D
EENREEEBUNTIEMER

HEWT :

Addition

B
HK$'000
TET

197,605

121,725

215,740
42,777

577,847

577,847

Exchange 31 December
adjustments 2023
“EC=HE

ER#EE +—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

(22,061) 188,864

(15,490) 72,625
(1,391) 311,025

(38,942) 572,514

(4,402) 193,203

121,725

PAVEL)
53,225

(2,222) 586,073

(41,164) 1,158,587
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

18. & w)
FEREAR @)

Exchange
adjustments

18. GOODWILL (conTinuED)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

31 December

2022
—m——

EpEE 1-A=1_p
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

1 January

2022
—m——

T —A-B
HK$'000
F

Impairment

R
HK$'000
TAT

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZE—-—

+ZRA=+-H
ILEFE
Thermal power segment KNEEDE
— China Resources (Jiangsu) —E=HEN (1)
Investment Co., Ltd. REBRAT 230,525 - (19,600) 210,925
— Xuzhou Huaxin Power —RNEBEE
Generation Co., Ltd. BRAR 101,876 - (13,761) 88,115
— Other subsidiaries — HAtf B A E 320,810 = (8,394) 312,416
653,211 - (41,755) 611,456
Renewable energy segment IEERERDE 10,448 - - 10,448
Total st 663,659 - (41,755) 621,904

FURESTEMS  FRLElmEs
NE-BERRE EERERE
WERABEEERMBRABEIRTA
BEEREELB -

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets that generate cash flows together with the
related goodwill are also included in the respective CGUs for
the purpose of impairment assessment.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EBHENEZERBRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.GOODWILL (conTinuED)

Impairment tests for goodwiill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group performed impairment
test for goodwill based on pre-tax cash flow projection covering
a period of operation period of each of the CGUs. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are generation
volumes, electricity prices, forecast period and discount rates of
thermal and renewable power plants, and coal price for thermal
power plants. The first year cash flow projection was on the
basis of the most recent financial budgets approved by
management, and the 2 to 5 years cash flow projection derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management, while the forecast beyond 5 years is compiled by
extrapolating the projection based on the financial budget,
assuming no sales growth. The sales growth rates for the first 5
years projection are mainly contributed by the generation
volume and electricity prices of the power plants. The
generation volume of the power plants are ranging from -4%
to 5% (2022: -4% to 1%) for thermal power segment and
ranging from 0% to 5% (2022: 0% to 6%) for renewable
energy segment, which are based on industry growth forecasts
and respective corporate’s historical performance. The growth
rate of electricity prices of the power plants are ranging from
-5% to 0% (2022: -8% to 0%) for thermal power segment and
staying at 0% (2022: 0%) for renewable energy segment,
which are based on industry growth forecasts and government
policy. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax
rates ranging from 7% to 13% (2022: 7% to 13%) that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The value in use was higher than the
carrying value for CGU to which goodwill was allocated and no
impairment charge was recognised against goodwill for the
year. Management believes that any reasonable change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts of
each of the CGUs to exceed its recoverable amount.

253

BHMBRRME
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BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

18. 88w

FEREAR @)

RZIE_=F+"FB=+—H =&
EERBEIREELBEMUNESZH
RELENRARESREEA > BF
EIEITRERE ° H%@%ﬁﬁm
BEARBRANNROIBEERES
mrEEE - BENEK B
ARIRE DR N S35 BBV IE SR BAE o
Efﬁgfﬁiuug%ﬁ E'JE%B/:\%EE
Btz ROBHFBBEEEL ™M
TEIFEREsAEEAIIKEEE
BtZzNRITHMBESE > MiEid
AENEANRESFEEEELTE
AMER TRRITEBHFEER -
BERFEINHEERERETIEKRR
BHERMNZEERENER -ZE
BHEBEANNBEDHNF-4%
E5% (ZCEZZF 4% ZE1%) &
ABEERDHLNF0%ES% (Z
T _F 0% E6%) 0 JHERITE
BEEANZEEABNBERIE-
%ﬁfmﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬁzﬁxﬁﬁ
BN F-5%FE0% (ZE -
F:-8%F0%) Mol BEFERDS
ﬁ%%mﬂ:%::&.mw’
HER{TEERTE RN RBFBER
EBEEMERAIMIRENFETI% E13%
(CEZZF 7% E13%) » Jhx
ERmEHEREEERRSESE
BAKNERENIG -FABES
N oEEENRSELEMAMNIRR
BE BFRASiESmERIRE
B EEEBEEGEZERINMEM
FEEHNEIEFEIREELEN
MEREEBRE U] EEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

19. MINING RIGHTS 19.$R1E1E

2023 2022
—=— =

—_—

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET

At 1 January w—HA—H
Cost D% 4,591,299 5,386,946
Impairment B (558,149) (612,452)
Accumulated amortisation Rty (196,790) (215,635)
Opening net book amount FYREFE 3,836,360 4,558,859
Exchange adjustments bE R (54,647) (381,646)
Impairment BIE = (13,570)
Amortisation charge &R (16,785) (1,406)
Transfer to assets held for sale BREREFEEE - (325,877)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 3,764,928 3,836,360
At 31 December R+=-B=+—H
Cost D% 4,381,653 4,591,299
Impairment BB (416,638) (558,149)
Accumulated amortisation Rt (200,087) (196,790)
Net book amount REFE 3,764,928 3,836,360
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the mining BIHDIRBIEEN IR RIER#ESE
rights using the unit of production method based on the proved AL EENMETUSR » LU
and probable reserves of the coal mines. PRUERERY S o
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited 254
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

20.CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS 20. 8 EH#EZE

EBE2023F128318LLFE

Contractual
Rights

SR

HK$'000
TR

COST D%

At 31 December 2022 RZE_—_F#+"F=+—H -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 46) R FET B A B MRS (M 46) 997,873
At 31 December 2023 WE_=F+"H=+—H 997,873
AMORTISATION 5y

At 31 December 2022 RZE_—_F#+"F=+—H -
Amortisation charge BiHER 3,373
At 31 December 2023 RZIE-_=F+"H=+—H 3,373
CARRYING VALUES IREE

At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+"H=+—H 994,500
At 31 December 2022 R_E_—_H#+_"B=+—H -

The contractual rights represent the relevant licences to operate
the power plants. Licences to operate power plant is an
intangible asset that meet the contractual legal criterion for
recognition separately from goodwill, even if the Group cannot
sell or transfer the licences separately from the acquired power
plants. The estimated useful life of contractual rights is 20
years, amortization on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

21.EXPLORATION AND RESOURCES

RIGHTS

21. BiREhERHE

At 1 January 2022
Transfer to assets held for sale
Exchange adjustments

HK$'000
FHBT
WZE-_—_F—8F—H 165,944
HEFEETEEE (151,887)
b 0 EREE (14,057)

At 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023

RIE-“HF+"HB=+—H
rRZZEZ=F+"H=+—H

22.DEFERRED TAXATION 22 IRIEFRIE

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
as follows:

T

2023
—E-=

HK$°000
THET

Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 1,083,928
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE (431,461)
Deferred tax assets — net IRIEFRIEES B 5 R 652,467

The gross movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

2023

==

—_——

HK$"000
THET

At 1 January n—HB—H 786,208
Exchange adjustments b A (2,131)

U BB B A =) (F5E46)
REERET A (FEE11)
R E fthiz & U 10 b

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46)
Credited to profit or loss (note 11)
Charged to other comprehensive income

46,476

At 31 December BR+—_B=+—H 652,467

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
EBHENEZERBRAT
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(153,990)

(24,096)

ELERBEEREEREBESRND

2022

HK$'000
THET

1,075,072
(288,864)

786,208

IESEFRSIER B RRE T ¢

HK$'000
THET

691,632
(60,878)

170,646
(15,192)

786,208



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

22.DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuED) 22 EIERIE @)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the UTAFRELEMEREERER
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ROEEE) > W 5t K [B — 1R 75 B] A 1
balances within the same tax jurisdictions, are as follows: & B AEERIRES -

Fair value

changes

of FVOCI
WARERE  Fairvalue
Retirement FEBEH  ofnon-
benefit Impairment sTAEM  current

Accrued  obligations and Government SAKEMN assets Lease Others

expenses £Z&  provision grant  ARBE JEREBEE  liability Hfth Total
it RAUEE AEKEE AR 28 QnBE  HEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAr  FTEr  FEx  FTEx  TEr  TEn  TErn TExn TEx

(Note (i)
Deferred tax assets BEREEE (M)
As at 1 January 2022 RZE-—%£-A-H 272,785 15,312 69,892 357,513 13,441 - 244,679 336,485 1,310,107
Exchange adjustments EREE (25,953) (950) (5,731) (30,290) (1,074) - (24,664) (18,559 (107,221)
Credited (charged) to profit or loss RERERA (08 69,469 (8.488) (4,626) 113 = = 9,174 39178 191,820
Credited to other comprehensive REMEEWESTA
income - - - - 8,028 - - - 8,028
As at 31 December 2022 RIB-ZE&
+ZR=t+-H 316,301 5874 59535 32733 20395 316189 357,104 1,402,734
Exchange adjustments ERRE (4,383) (7 (1:362) (4.903) 116 (27,669) (317)  (37.7129)
(Charged) credited to profit or loss RERIR (18 S A (17,534) (1,685 65,541 28,790 - 3231 (85359) 262,984
Charged to other comprehensive REMESWENER
income (5,098)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEREAR 77,929 71929
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-ZE
+-BA=+-8H 294,384 4118 123,714 351,223 561,751 271,428 1,700,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

22.DEFERRED TAXATION (conTiNuED)

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value

changes of

Fair value
of property,
plantand
equipment
EN1
S
RfEE
HK$'000
Thn

Fair value
of prepaid
of lease
payments
Bfif
BERm
NfEE
HK$'000
Tén

Difference
e
depreciation
life
HEEH
8
HK$'000

EEHESR FEn

Fvod
HRAEE
i

A
Ak

MBE

HKS000
FEn

22 RIEFRIE @)

Distributable
profits of
PRC
subsidiaries,
associates

and joint

ventures
e
MEAT
BEts
RELE
WA
HE
HK$'000
Thn

Mining  Accrued
fund
KBRS
(Note (ii))
(3 i)
HKS'000
TEn

interest  Right-of

income use

fest
HEKA
HK$'000

TR

Others
i
HK$'000
TEn

assets
REEE
HKS'000
Thn

As at 1 January 2022 KZE-ZE-A-H (37,978) (38,613) (29721)  (119,158) (48,991) (236) (89,492  (241,084) (13200 (618,475)
Exchange adjustments EREE 2,146 - - 10793 - 20 7,581 24,14 1662 46383
Credited to proft or loss RERREA 35,832 5230 12578 - 1148 - - (088) 4548 (1174)
Charged to other REMEARETR
comprehensive income - - - 20 - - - - - (B0
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZE
+ZR=+-H (33383)  (17,143)  (1315585)  (37,510) (81,911) (307,786 (6,992)
Exchange adjustments ER#E 506 4,626 1,934 602 1,920 25328 679
Credited (chargec) to profit B IRE A (B
orloss 18,695 (26,987) 79991 (47,015 (43,135
Charged to other REfEEIETR
comprehensive income - (18,998)
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEREAT (312)  (231,607) -
As at 31 December 2023 RIBZZ%
+ZB=+-H (31,46)  (225429) (148,649  (63,895) (529,473)  (49,448) (1,048,353)
Notes:
i) Others represent mainly deductible tax losses and depreciation differences. (i) Hith T EOETIRINMBEERITEER -
(ii) Pursuant to certain regulations of the mining industry in the PRC, the Group is (i) RIEFERBITENS THRAZER  x&8
required to transfer an amount to a specific reserve and such fund is not available EEE-ENEERTEHE BZREERT
for distribution to shareholders. Such amounts are deductible for tax purposes Ak T RRER o R EER AR oIR8
when they set aside but are expensed for accounting purposes only when they are EEHARIIZ EIt > MZEYUREER
utilised. Therefore, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for such temporary RIRIERIBEE ©
differences.
(i) Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the (iy ELERMIBEECSHNIBEBEETURES

realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets in respect
of tax losses amounting to HK$11,263,812,000 (2022: HK$22,466,925,000) and
deductible temporary differences amounting to HK$8,874,679,000 (2022:
HK$6,388,145,000). Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 are
losses of approximately HK$10,182,252,000 (2022: HK$21,350,530,000) that will
expire within 5 years from the year of origination, in or before 2028 (2022: 2027).

T2 A R IBEF Al AE BB R AR B FE AR AR
mAEEEAR R _ZE_=Z=+_A8
=+ —HB > B AEENEMRBSBH
11,263,812,000 B TN HEHEE/ (T 2=
£ :122,466,925,0008B 7t) R A®
8,874,679,000 B eI A B E 88 (T &
— T 4F:6,388,145,00078 7t) FESRIEIERIE
BE-RZZZT=F+ZB=+—H > K®
RRBEEBOEENEENFERLRTAE
ARRZBEZNE (CBF: Z2 )
82 B Z EAAVE 1849 10,182,252,000 8 7T (=
T T £ 1 21,350,530,000587T) °

. China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited
Ly EEEHERBRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.DEFERRED TAXATION (conTinuED)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by subsidiaries in
the PRC with effect from 1 January 2008 onwards.

During the year end 31 December 2023, due to short-term
fluctuation in the bank loan interest rate, RMB5,000,000,000
(2022: RMB4,000,000,000) dividends was paid by the PRC
subsidiary primarily for the purpose of loan repayment,
withholding tax of HK$278,561,000 (2022: HK$219,938,000)
was recognised during the year .The directors of the Company
consider that the Group, under normal circumstance, has
sufficient funds in overseas companies and therefore the
earnings retained by the subsidiaries in the PRC are expected to
be reinvested in the foreseeable future. Other than an
immaterial amount of distributable profits of HK$204,832,000
(2022: HK$272,410,000) retained by PRC subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liability of HK$51,208,000 was recognized as at 31
December 2023 (2022: HK$50,108,000), no deferred tax
liabilities has been recognised in respect of the remaining
distributable profits HK$44,295,697,000 (2022:
HK$35,597,996,000) earned by PRC subsidiaries for the years
from 2008 to 2023 (2022: 2008 to 2022).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

22 IR JEFRIE @)

RIBERETEXEMIREZ BT
NE—RB—HE > sthEKHEAQE
FRENBI A PR BRI IR B BB TR
R o

BE_Z”_-—F+"BA=+—HL
FE > HRIRITERF EZNEER
FoFhENBARASZN AR
5,000,000,0007¢ (ZE -4 : AR
#%4,000,000,0007c) FIRGE » FEHA
EEEBEER FARIBENOR
278,561,000 (Z & - — 4.
219,938,000/ 7T) c " A B EER
AOEEEBRT  KEERBIH
NEEERRES > HILFEMNE
NERENEFFBERNIBERRK
BRE-BRTHEMNBABREN
‘DERHBLEF 204,832,0008 7T (Z
LT~ T4 :272,410,000E 75) 0 i
RZE_=F+"_B=+—HHIt
M IEILIR B & (551,208,000 75
(ZZE "4 :50,108,000 % 7T) 4p >
FERNBASN _EENEFE_E
TR (CEIZF . ZIEENEFEE
T2 ) BB T R %J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AHMBRRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND 23. mu&%@%&* E 23 5z 7] it
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE ¥§#
Interests in associates 73’\ METENER

HK$'000
FET

At 1 January 2022 AT "F—H—H 8,760,459
Acquisition of interest in an associate (note 25(a))  EWfSEHE 2R (i5E25()) 1,246,537
Capital contributions to associates M ERETE 586,550
Share of losses FE1L E5 18 (112,676)
Dividends L3S (511,522)
Share of other comprehensive expense and FEGEMEEmMAST RERHE
capital reserve (190,923)
Exchange adjustments PE R (728,094)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZHF+ZHA=+—H 9,050,331
Acquisition of interest in associates EEHE b E#ER 7,058,514
Transferred from investment in FVOCI BREUANEEFEBEEET
AEMEE R E 215,875
Capital contributions to associates migEhEEE 492,360
Share of profits &1L A1) 1,183,055

Dividends 35

Share of other comprehensive expense and FELEMEEMAST RERHE
capital reserve

Exchange adjustments

(764,370)

(513,263)
bE 50 58 B (51,132)

At 31 December 2023 RZE2E_=F+"_H=+—H 16,671,370

During the current year, the Group acquired 38.25% equity
interest in an associate, Chongqging Energy Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (“Chongneng”) from an independent third party for a
cash consideration of RMB6,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,573,300,000), out of which RMB3,037,500,000
(equivalent to HK$3,327,733,000) has been paid and the
remaining balance of RMB2,962,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,269,060,000) is included in other payable. The fair value
is provisional and pending for finalisation of valuation.

During the current year, the Group acquired 40% equity
interest in an associate, Shenyang Resources Electric Heating
Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang Rundian”) from an independent third
party for a cash consideration of RMB442,896,000 (equivalent
to HK$485,214,000), the full amount of the consideration has
been paid. At 31 December 2023, the valuation of acquisition
is pending for finalisation and the fair value is presented on
provisional.

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

EEENERERAT 260

RAEEE » ZEBUIBSABARK
6,000,000,000 7 (4 & ¥
6,573,300,00078 7T) MWL = FH W
BHErEXEEMIERREERER
~nEl (TEESER) 238.25% g #
HABE X+ A R#3,037,500,000 70
(8% 12 3,327,733,00038 1) > M &R

T 4585 A\ R 2,962,500,000 7T (105
ﬁAa 269,060,000 7T) 5t A H A EAS

B NABEAERHEEFTRR
Eﬁmfﬁ{a °

REFEE  ZEBUREREBAR
442,896,000 (4 %
485,214,000/ 7T) BBILE=H I
ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj
(DL BB S Z240% B HE
EHEZNRERRE- ﬁ’f:vi:
+ZB=+—H WBENEEEBRF
RIZHETE » T2 AR EE SRS o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTiNUED)

Interests in associates (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the principal associates of
the Group, all being accounted for using equity method, were
as follows:

Place of
incorporation
and operation
Ik
e

Issued and fully paid share capital/
registered capital and paid-up capital
BEARRS/
AfEARSEER
2023 2022
—g-—

— =

Name of associates

ST

—Em——
=
—_

China Resources (Xuzhou) Registered and Registered and

Flectric Power Co, Lid. & paid-up capital paic-up capital
FNEBENERAT RMB363,110,000 RMB83,110,000
AR ARER AftkAEES

AEH863,1100007 WNGAERRINIGS

Funeng Guizhou Power PRC Registered and Registered and

Corporation B paid-up capital paic-up capital
o (EM) #BBRAT RB1,300,000,000 T KTl
Gt i rING N AR A RERARE

1,300,000,0007% 1,300,000,0007c

Jingneng (Xilinguale) PRC Registered and Registered and
Power Corporation B paid-up capital paic-up capital
ik (B 43 CARIINNIN  RMB1,916,000,000
BRAZ afRSMERRARE EdltiErINws

1,916,000,0007 1,916,000,0007c

Fuyang China Resources PRC Registered capital Registered and
Power Co,, Ltd. e RMB1,795,000,000 paic-up capital
ERERENARLT ZIRTIENE S RMBI, 738,400,000
RMB1,738,400,000 [Edileta-tING
AREEARE 1,738 400,0007¢

1,795,000,0007c

HEERARK

1,738,400,00070
Hunan Taohuajiang PRC Registered and Registered and
Nuclear Power Co,, Ltd. % paid-up capital paid-up capital
MEMEIRE RMB1,149,227,000 RMB1,149,227,000
BRAT itk iftk
HRERARK HRERARE
1,149,227,0007c 1,149,227,00070

261

-F-=

— =

Direct!

BB ERRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F 12831 HIEFE

23. JMHE R MRS R (1
SBTESH®@
REE S ENER @

B _F+°A4H

—t+—H XEEFEBSEPE (S

AR EZE) T

AN — = — —
_EF_=

Percentage of equity interest held

Principal activities

iRNREEL
3 00
Z8_: g B °f

Indirectly Indirectly
i ! Fif

4265 Operation of a
power station

49 - Operation of a
power station

- 30 Operation of a
power station

- 40 Operation of a
power station

- 2429 Operation of a
power station
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMB BRI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
BE2023F1N2ANELEEE

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND
LOANS TO AN ASSOCIATE (conTiNuED)

Interests in associates (Continued) N =

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the principal associates of
the Group, all being accounted for using equity method, were
as follows: (Continued)

Name of associates

BELERH

Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power

Place of
incorporation
and operation ~ registered capital and paid-up capital
Ik
AEnE

A— = — =

N —

23. [ Bk 1 5% ) 4 e B [ Bk

St¥EENw@
iaE3:0k:

= m ()

5L

—E-F+°H

=+—HB > xEEEXEBHMERE (17

RAEDEZE) WT (@

Issued and fully paid share capital/

BETARRE/

HRERRERER FRANRER I
2022

S
Directly
B%

2003 203 23
ZEC= R"F B _EC=

Directly Indirectly
B& i

Registered and Registered and 425

Generation Co,, Ltd. | paid-up capital paic-up capital
IHETEEERAT UCEPRINNNN  RMBI,482,200,000
AfRAEEE Bl rING:
NG 1,482,200,0007

1,482,200,0007c
Yangzhou No. 2 Power PRC Registered and Registered and
Generation Co, Ltd | paid-up capital paid-up capital
IZ_4EER RN RMBI,692,000,000
BfEAT Gt i rING N AR A RERARE
1,692,000,0007c 1,692,000,00075
Shanxi Zhonglv China PRC Registered and Registered and
Resources Company Ltd Bl paid-up capital paic-up capital
LARREERRAR CARTARENIIN  RMBI,641,750,000
Gt i rING N AR ARERARE
1,641,750,0007C 1,641,750,00075
Henan Yonghua Energy PRC Registered and Registered and
(o, ltd. e paid-up capital paic-up capital
AEXERRERAT RMB300,000,000 RMB300,000,000
AR ARER BTN
AR%3000000007c WNGEEUNIKIIYH
Gansu Changle Power PRC Registered capital Regstered capital
Generation Co,, Ltd | RMB4, 180,000,000 RMB2,680,000,000
HEERRLEE Paid-up capital Paid-up capita
BREEAT CPREPRININ  RMB1,965,280,000
AfEFARS GAELIN
4,180,000,000 7 2,680,000,0007
HRERARK HRERARE
